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2025

5,185,331.07 8.56
5,063,294.43 8.36
4,804,486.70 7.93
4,598,276.16 7.59
4,167,448.71 6.88
2,538,871.33 4.19
2,428,889.40 4.01
2,269,466.20 3.75
2,086,446.84 3.44
1,860,658.98 3.07
1,850,780.63 3.05
1,665,466.00 2.75
1,647,342.40 2.72
1,592,937.50 2.63
1,507,936.38 2.49
1,454,182.14 2.40
1,232,089.20 2.03
1,215,575.33 2.01
1,186,961.62 1.96
1,177,080.80 1.94
1,091,340.00 1.80
1,080,353.50 1.78
1,058,527.80 1.75
949,608.83 1.57
921,772.01 1.52
906,132.70 1.50
668,300.00 1.10
525,180.65 0.87
484,992.00 0.80
368,240.00 0.61
350,280.00 0.58
341,888.00 0.56
295,500.00 0.49
258,120.20 0.43
252,655.52 0.42
214,772.76 0.35
161,262.50 0.27
59,462,448.29 98.15
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2,342,476.48 3.87
0.08 0.00
1,219,218.13 2.01

60,585,706.72

( 9,356 ) 100.00
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2025

TEVA PHARM 3.75% 05/09/27/EUR/ 2027 3.7500 1,070,000.00 1,239,059.99 1,112,952.50 1.84
ACCESS BANK PL 6.125% 09/21/26 2026 21 6.1250 1,120,000.00 1,121,888.65 1,087,900.80 1.80
ECOPETROL SA 8.625% 01/19/29 2029 19 8.6250 950,000.00 978,379.17 1,006,040.50 1.66

WYNN MACAU LTD 5.5% 01/15/26 2026 15 5.5000 990,000.00 990,222.47 987,030.00 1.63
SEPLAT ENERGY P 7.75% 04/01/26 2026 7.7500 980,000.00 980,000.00 974,835.40 1.61
OFFICE CHERIFI 5.125% 06/23/51 2051 23 5.1250 1,280,000.00 911,199.87 967,539.20 1.60
MELCO RESORTS F 5.75% 07/21/28 2028 21 5.7500 1,010,000.00 1,010,560.93 965,499.40 1.59

TEVA PHARMACEUT 4.75% 05/09/27 2027 4.7500 960,000.00 960,000.00 943,323.85 1.56

.| INTL AIRPORT FINA 12% 03/15/33 2033 15 12.0000 806,519.68 708,797.90 859,951.61 1.42
10. | SASOL FINANCIN 4.375% 09/18/26 2026 18 4.3750 860,000.00 822,718.23 826,141.80 1.36
11. | IPOTEKA-BANK ATI 5.5% 11/19/25 2025 11 19 5.5000 820,000.00 795,603.76 809,750.00 1.34
12. | LIMAK ISKENDERUN 9.5% 07/10/36 2036 10 9.5000 824,041.88 779,675.89 794,368.13 1.31
13. | ABSA GROUP LTD V/R /PERP/ 2173 11 27 6.3750 790,000.00 790,000.00 780,125.00 1.29
14. | YAPI VE KREDI BAN V/R 01/17/34 2034 17 9.2500 740,000.00 763,290.68 775,150.00 1.28
15. | YPF SOCIEDAD AN 6.95% 07/21/27 2027 21 6.9500 770,000.00 699,764.28 774,620.00 1.28
16. | MONG DUONG FIN 5.125% 05/07/29 2029 5.1250 800,573.35 785,174.07 769,591.16 1.27
17. | KOSMOS ENERGY L 8.75% 10/01/31 2031 10 8.7500 800,000.00 799,942.49 763,000.00 1.26
18. | ECOPETROL SA 5.875% 11/02/51 2051 11 5.8750 1,057,000.00 682,023.43 719,817.00 1.19
19. | ENERGUATE TRUS 5.875% 05/03/27 2027 5.8750 729,000.00 729,386.41 716,709.06 1.18
20. | OTP BANK NYRT V/R 05/15/33 2033 15 8.7500 670,000.00 666,423.91 705,382.70 1.16
21. | ECOPETROL SA 8.875% 01/13/33 2033 13 8.8750 680,000.00 676,189.88 698,734.00 1.15
22. | HUNT OIL CO OF 8.55% 09/18/33 2033 18 8.5500 610,000.00 610,000.00 667,828.00 1.10
23. | BANCOLOMBIA SA V/R 12/24/34 2034 12 24 8.6250 630,000.00 637,198.39 658,350.00 1.09
24. | MERSIN ULUSLARA 8.25% 11/15/28 2028 11 15 8.2500 630,000.00 624,997.34 651,457.80 1.08
25. | FIRST QUANTUM 6.875% 10/15/27 2027 10 15 6.8750 650,000.00 605,079.90 645,742.50 1.07
26. | ANADOLU EFES B 3.375% 06/29/28 2028 29 3.3750 710,000.00 707,174.13 617,920.10 1.02
27. | SAMARCO MINERACAO 9% 06/30/31 2031 30 9.0000 636,653.00 595,701.40 615,961.78 1.02
28. | LATAM AIRLINES 7.875% 04/15/30 2030 15 7.8750 600,000.00 601,726.70 603,000.00 1.00
29. | CA MAGNUM HOLD 5.375% 10/31/26 2026 10 31 5.3750 610,000.00 594,148.52 597,190.00 0.99
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2025

F/C US 5YR NOTE (CBT) MAR25 2025 31 3,520,468.77 | 3,515,788.98 5.80

2025

2025
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2024 2025
996,524.78 153,893,322 4.59 709
(2015 )
1,885,550.16 291,185,511 6.01 928
(2016 )
12,295,166.49 1,898,742,561 6.44 995
(2017 ) t 7 E 7 E
11,457,600.21 1,769,397,200 4.41 681
(2018 )
18,451,796.72 2,849,510,967 4.03 622
(2019 )
19,847,428.61 3,065,038, 400 2.66 411
(2020 )
14,709,924.12 2,271,653,582 2.79 431
(2021 ) E 7’ E 7 E
10 6,878,966.29 1,062,318,764 2.17 335
(2022 ) E 7 - E 7 E -
11
6,433,583.94 993,538,368 2.47 381
(2023 )
12 3,962,884.79 611,988,298 2.43 375
(2024 ) PR, TR PR .
2024 4,498,963.96 694,775,004 2.62 405
4,365,760.17 674,204,343 2.61 403
4,135,773.46 638,687,495 2.50 386
4,000,846.54 617,850,731 2.47 381
3,804,085.19 587,464,876 2.34 361
3,768,474.15 581,965,463 2.31 357
3,793,803.33 585,877,048 2.33 360
3,962,884.79 611,988,298 2.43 375
10 3,702,898.86 571,838,671 2.27 351
11 3,462,616.54 534,731,872 2.18 337
12 3,213,224.38 496,218,241 2.07 320
2025 3,441,627.33 531,490,509 2.21 341
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(2015 24,636,476.62 3,804,611,084 6.01 928

(2016 18,413,282.64 2,843,563,238 5.58 862

(2017 57,968,994.39 8,952,151,804 6.25 965

(2018 46,284,475.02 7,147,711,477 5.74 886

(2019 35,832,967.76 5,533,685,211 5.62 868

(2020 25,546,002.27 3,945,069,131 4.82 744

(2021 21,180,870.89 3,270,961,892 5.44 840
10

(2022 12,633,209.15 1,950,946,489 4.27 659
11

(2023 14,103,958.33 2,178,074,285 5.35 826
12

(2024 11,174,734.22 1,725,714,206 5.35 826

2024 12,806,126.22 1,977,650,072 5.85 903

13,225,279.33 2,042,379,887 6.04 933

12,879,344.02 1,988,957,097 5.87 907

12,980,221.73 2,004,535,642 5.92 914

11,922,110.07 1,841,131,458 5.55 857

11,848,690.54 1,829,793,280 5.51 851

11,077,312.32 1,710,669,342 5.29 817

11,174,734.22 1,725,714,206 5.35 826

10 9,714,266.58 1,500,174,188 5.16 797

11 9,570,679.60 1,478,000,051 5.14 794

12 9,414,289.70 1,453,848,758 5.05 780

2025 9,449,355.29 1,459,263,937 5.06 781
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(2015 12,545,515.32 1,937,403,931 8.51 1,314

(2016 12,310,008.67 1,901,034,639 9.07 1,401

(2017 15,513,952.09 2,395,819,621 9.23 1,425

(2018 9,341,792.61 1,442,653,033 8.55 1,320

(2019 8,664,661.24 1,338,083,635 8.75 1,351

(2020 15,915,357.29 2,457,808,626 8.51 1,314

(2021 23,726,572.04 3,664,094,520 9.00 1,390
10

(2022 14,113,279.88 2,179,513,812 6.85 1,058
11

(2023 15,572,885.92 2,404,920,773 7.25 1,120
12

(2024 25,637,365.89 3,959,178,414 8.02 1,239

2024 25,460,674.08 3,931,891,898 7.72 1,192

25,588,186.59 3,951,583,655 7.75 1,197

25,280,739.02 3,904,104,527 7.71 1,191

25,419,903.01 3,925,595,622 7.76 1,198

25,779,347.71 3,981,104,667 7.79 1,203

25,920,163.63 4,002,850,869 7.87 1,215

25,797,874.71 3,983,965,791 7.96 1,229

25,637,365.89 3,959,178,414 8.02 1,239

10 25,438,374.28 3,928,448,140 7.97 1,231

11 25,444,896.90 3,929,455,428 7.96 1,229

12 25,048,803.00 3,868,286,647 7.92 1,223

2025 25,227,083.36 3,895,818,483 7.96 1,229
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(2015 ; 4,895,252.60 755,973,859 4.19 647
P ) 19,197,441.04 2,964,660,820 4.60 710
195,545,697.37 30,198,122,045 5.22 806
(2017 )
2018 ) 188,335,133.88 29,084,594,725 4.08 630
2019 ) 175,944,012.52 27,171,033,853 3.94 608
137,008, 940.97 21,158,290, 754 2.98 460
(2020 )
(2021 ; 128,578,318.11 19,856,349, 666 3.26 503
10 29,699,107.99 4,586,433,247 2.49 385
(2022 ) Y POER RS
1 19,742,776.98 3,048,877,049 2.67 412
(2023 ) e R
12 19,890, 303.56 3,071,659,579 2.94 454
(2024 ) P AR
2024 19,669, 489.32 3,037,559,236 2.82 435
19,433,016.37 3,001,040,718 2.83 437
19,186,492.54 2,962,970,043 2.82 435
19,264,573.22 2,975,028,042 2.84 439
19,357,129.06 2,989,321,441 2.85 440
19,560, 730. 20 3,020,763,565 2.88 445
19,782,282.37 3,054,977, 866 2.91 449
19,890, 303.56 3,071,659,579 2.94 454
10 18,981, 886.61 2,931,372,749 2.92 451
11 18,749,864.48 2,895,541,572 2.92 451
12 18,527,594.21 2,861,216, 374 2.90 448
2025 18,637,197.12 2,878,142, 351 2.92 451
2024 29
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(2015 1,716,372.04 164,548,587 8.46 811

(2016 2,059,464.35 197,440,847 9.02 865

(2017 2,445,261.33 234,427,204 9.12 874

(2018 3,797,275.11 364,044,765 8.44 809

(2019 2,654,672.31 254,503,434 8.58 823

(2020 10,784,699.36 1,033,929,128 8.19 785

(2021 8,987,127.89 861,595,951 8.62 826
10

(2022 5,594,252.31 536,320,969 6.51 624
11

(2023 4,676,314.78 448,318,298 6.76 648
12

(2024 5,427,580.30 520,342,123 7.37 707

2024 4,869,523.56 466,841,224 7.15 685

5,113,601.45 490,240,971 7.16 686

5,377,920.33 515,581,222 7.12 683

5,409,184.88 518,578,554 7.16 686

5,202,766.29 498,789,204 7.18 688

5,257,379.44 504,024,967 7.25 695

5,412,579.45 518,903,992 7.32 702

5,427,580.30 520,342,123 7.37 707

10 5,395,391.56 517,256,189 7.32 702

11 5,164,334.94 495,104,791 7.30 700

12 5,138,865.29 492,663,015 7.26 696

2025 5,172,761.12 495,912,609 7.30 700
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(2015 ) 136,438,323 8,587

(2016 ) 175,198,029 9,122

(2017 ) 347,761,671 9,130

(2018 ) 268,354,480 8,277

(2019 ) 283,762,644 8,212

(2020 ) 188,680,012 7,798

(2021 ) 376,022,106 8,186
10

(2022 ) 262,997,994 6,139
11

(2023 ) 151,557,072 6,109
12

(2024 ) 104,242,531 6,373

2024 106,920,879 6,316

106,679,222 6,300

105,837,159 6,249

106,052,790 6,260

106,179,917 6,266

106,850,228 6,304

103,768,668 6,345

104,242,531 6,373

10 103,297,971 6,313

11 102,773,853 6,280

12 93,310,870 6,214

2025 93,519,189 6,226
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(2014 10 1.320 204
2015 )
(2015 10 0.910 141
2016 )
(2016 10 0.840 130
2017 )
(2017 10 0.810 125
2018 )
(2018 10 0.600 93
2019 )
(2019 10 0.460 71
2020 )
(2020 10 0.300 46
2021 )
10
(2021 10 0.300 46
2022 )
11
(2022 10 0.300 46
2023 )
12
(2023 10 0.300 46
2024 )
2024 0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
0.025 4
10 0.025 4
11 0.025 4
12 0.025 4
2025 0.025 4
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(2014 10 1.080 167
2015 )
(2015 10 0.620 96
2016 )
(2016 10 0.480 74
2017 )
(2017 10 0.480 74
2018 )
(2018 10 0.480 74
2019 )
(2019 10 0.480 74
2020 )
(2020 10 0.480 74
2021 )
10
(2021 10 0.480 74
2022 )
11
(2022 10 0.480 74
2023 )
12
(2023 10 0.480 74
2024 )
2024 0.040 6
0.040 6
0.040 6
0.040 6
0.040 6
0.040 6
0.040 6
0.040 6
10 0.040 6
11 0.040 6
12 0.040 6
2025 0.040 6
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(2014 10 0.720 111
2015 )
(2015 10 0.670 103
2016 )
(2016 10 0.600 93
2017 )
(2017 10 0.380 59
2018 )
(2018 10 0.360 56
2019 )
(2019 10 0.360 56
2020 )
(2020 10 0.360 56
2021 )
10
(2021 10 0.360 56
2022 )
11
(2022 10 0.360 56
2023 )
12
(2023 10 0.360 56
2024 )
2024 0.030 5
0.030 5
0.030 5
0.030 5
0.030 5
0.030 5
0.030 5
0.030 5
10 0.030 5
11 0.030 5
12 0.030 5
2025 0.030 5
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(2014 10 1.200 185
2015 )
(2015 10 0.740 114
2016 )
(2016 10 0.600 93
2017 )
(2017 10 0.600 93
2018 )
(2018 10 0.600 93
2019 )
(2019 10 0.520 80
2020 )
(2020 10 0.360 56
2021 )
10
(2021 10 0.225 35
2022 )
11
(2022 10 0.180 28
2023 )
12
(2023 10 0.150 23
2024 )
2024 0.015 2
0.015 2
0.010 2
0.010 2
0.010 2
0.010 2
0.010 2
0.010 2
10 0.010 2
11 0.010 2
12 0.010 2
2025 0.010 2
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(2014 10 0.960 92
2015 )
(2015 10 0.790 76
2016 )
(2016 10 0.720 69
2017 )
(2017 10 0.390 37
2018 )
(2018 10 0.360 35
2019 )
(2019 10 0.360 35
2020 )
(2020 10 0.360 35
2021 )
10
(2021 10 0.360 35
2022 )
11
(2022 10 0.360 35
2023 )
12
(2023 10 0.360 35
2024 )
2024 0.030 3
0.030 3
0.030 3
0.030 3
0.030 3
0.030 3
0.030 3
0.030 3
10 0.030 3
11 0.030 3
12 0.030 3
2025 0.030 3
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(2014 10 660
2015
(2015 10 635
2016
(2016 10 600
2017
(2017 10 380
2018
(2018 10 360
2019
(2019 10 360
2020
(2020 10 360
2021
10
(2021 10 360
2022
11
(2022 10 360
2023
12
(2023 10 300
2024
2024 30
30
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
2025 20
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(2014 10 31.36 21.48 4.94 33.21 2.89 5.00
2015 )

(2015 10 50.76 3.16 14.45 27.45 15.96 13.63
2016 )

(2016 10 21.13 20.61 8.38 26.52 9.09 6.67
2017 )

(2017 10 18.94 0.48 3.25 10.34 3.18 5.18
2018 )

(2018 10 4.99 6.27 6.55 11.27 5.92 3.56
2019 )

(2019 10 22.58 5.69 1.37 11.17 0.35 0.66
2020 )

(2020 10 16.17 22.82 9.99 21.48 9.65 9.59
2021 )

10
(2021 10 11.47 12.68 19.89 16.72 20.30 20.61
2022 )

11
(2022 10 27.65 36.53 11.09 14.46 9.37 5.38
2023 )

12
(2023 10 10.53 8.97 15.59 15.73 14.35 9.23
2024 )

x 100
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89,006.341 64,406.649 217,014.566
(2014 10 2015 (89,096.341) (64,406.649) (217,014.566)
157,889.493 61,282.333 313,621.726

(2015 10 2016 (157,889.493) (61,282.333) (313,621.726)
2,350,244.930 755,345.139 1,908,521.517

(2016 10 2017 (2,350,244.930) | (755,345.139) | (1,908,521.517)
1,193,906.787 503,182.895 2,599,245.409

(2017 10 2018 (1,193,906.787) | (503,182.895) | (2,599,245.409)
2,440,094.202 464,588.135 4,574,751.476

(2018 10 2019 (2,440,094.202) | (464,588.135) | (4,574,751.476)
5,959,445.905 | 3,086,000.162 | 7,448,197.219

(2019 10 2020 5,959,445.905 | 3,086,000.162 | 7,448,197.219
289,921.645 2,460,905.816 | 5,277,213.048

(2020 10 2021 (289,921.645) | (2,460,905.816) | (5,277,213.048)
10 550,220.505 2,660,933.974 | 3,166,499.579

(2021 10 2022 (550,220.505) | (2,660,933.974) | (3,166,499.579)
11 85,160.994 648,440.971 2,603,219.602

(2022 10 2023 (85,160.994) (648,440.971) | (2,603,219.602)
12 51,394.969 1,023,740.834 | 1,630,873.737

(2023 10 2024 (51,394.969) | (1,023,740.834) | (1,630,873.737)
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242,458.955 2,377,887.396 4,101,591.185

(2014 10 2015 ) | (242,458.955) | (2,377,887.396) | (4,101,591.185)
258,879.000 1,063,445.270 | 3,297,024.915

(2015 10 2016 ) | (258,879.000) | (1,063,445.270) | (3,297,024.915)
7,444,083.147 | 1,470,894.161 | 9,270,213.901

(2016 10 2017 Y | (7.444,083.147) | (1,470,894.161) | (9,270,213.901)
1,822,637.108 | 3,024,299.662 | 8,068,551.347

(2017 10 2018 ) | (1,822,637.108) | (3,024,299.662) | (8,068,551.347)
1,300,947.992 | 2,998,806.286 | 6,370,693.053

(2018 10 2019 ) | (1,300,947.992) | (2,998,806.286) | (6,370,693.053)
1,019,384.663 | 2,086,551.012 | 5,303,526.704

(2019 10 2020 ) | (1,019,384.663) | (2,086,551.012) | (5,303,526.704)
354,099.014 1,760,722.685 | 3,896,903.033

(2020 10 2021 ) | (354,000.014) | (1,760,722.685) | (3,896,903.033)
10 125,043.287 1,062,759.278 | 2,959,187.042

(2021 10 2022 ) | (125,043.287) | (1,062,759.278) | (2,959,187.042)
11 325,960.130 648,579.550 2,636,567.622

(2022 10 2023 )| (325,960.130) | (648,579.550) | (2,636,567.622)
12 104,555.472 652,057.284 2,089,065.810

(2023 10 2024 ) | (104,555.472) | (652,057.284) | (2,089,065.810)
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662,640.221 368,757.934 1,474,709.777
(2014 10 2015 (662,640.221) | (368,757.934) | (1,474,709.777)
598,067.506 714,817.960 1,357,959.323

(2015 10 2016 (598,067.506) | (714,817.960) | (1,357,959.323)
1,457,513.530 | 1,134,027.368 | 1,681,445.485

(2016 10 2017 (1,457,513.530) | (1,134,027.368) | (1,681,445.485)
172,772.251 762,107.409 1,092,110.327

(2017 10 2018 (172,772.251) | (762,107.409) | (1,092,110.327)

25,711.634 127,488.889 990, 333.072

(2018 10 2019 (25,711.634) (127,488.889) | (990,333.072)
989,837.733 110,804.331 1,869,366.474

(2019 10 2020 (989,837.733) | (110,804.331) | (1,869,366.474)
857,897.130 89,943.502 2,637,320.102

(2020 10 2021 857,897.130 89,943.502 2,637,320.102
10 155,870.335 733,192.913 2,059,997 .524

(2021 10 2022 (155,870.335) | (733,192.913) | (2,059,997.524)
11 199,341.004 111,980.156 2,147,358.372

(2022 10 2023 (199,341.004) | (111,980.156) | (2,147,358.372)
12 1,306,924.719 258,940.075 3,195,343.016

(2023 10 2024 (1,306,924.719) | (258,940.075) | (3,195,343.016)
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1,068,628.623 221,262.071 1,168,448.997
(2014 10 2015 (1,068,628.623) | (221,262.071) | (1,168,448.997)
3,299,165.348 290,115.870 4,177,498.475

(2015 10 2016 (3,299,165.348) | (290,115.870) | (4,177,498.475)
40,292,115.963 | 6,980,188.232 | 37,489,426.206

(2016 10 2017 (40,292,115.963) | (6,980,188.232) |(37,489,426.206)
14,326,563.171 | 5,634,491.307 | 46,181,498.070

(2017 10 2018 (14,326,563.171) | (5,634,491.307) | (46,181,498.070)
4,246,257.334 | 5,742,021.344 | 44,685,734.060

(2018 10 2019 (4,246,257.334) | (5,742,021.344) | (44,685,734.060)
9,849,487.391 | 8,518,999.667 | 46,016,221.784

(2019 10 2020 (9.,849,487.391) | (8,518,999.667) | (46,016,221.784)
2,874,634.402 | 9,414,815.503 | 39,476,040.683

(2020 10 2021 (2,874,634.402) | (9,414,815.503) |(39,476,040.683)
10 2,461,579.381 | 29,990,743.370 | 11,946,876.694

(2021 10 2022 (2,461,579.381) |(29,990,743.370) | (11,946,876.694)
11 13,229.982 4,573,900.520 | 7,386,206.156

(2022 10 2023 (13,229.982) | (4,573,900.520) | (7,386,206.156)
12 6,869,535.662 | 7,483,868.636 | 6,771,873.182

(2023 10 2024 (6,869,535.662) | (7,483,868.636) | (6,771,873.182)
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161,461.847 33,901.005 202,774.777
(2014 10 2015 ) | (161,461.847) (33,901.005) (202,774.777)
97,121.007 71,686.255 228,209.529

(2015 10 2016 Yy | (97,121.007) (71,686.255) (228,209.529)
177,963.136 138,002.168 268,170.497

(2016 10 2017 ) | (177,963.136) | (138,002.168) | (268,170.497)
204,597.000 23,060.282 449,707.215

(2017 10 2018 ) | (204,597.000) (23,060.282) (449,707.215)
10,830.782 150,990.884 309,547.113

(2018 10 2019 ) | (10,830.782) (150,990.884) | (309,547.113)
1,037,510.989 30,638.883 1,316,419.219

(2019 10 2020 ) | (1,037,510.989) | (30,638.883) | (1,316,419.219)
549,414.342 822,788.797 1,043,044.764

(2020 10 2021 ) | (549,414.342) | (822,788.797) | (1,043,044.764)
10 224,020.341 407,830.471 859,234.634

(2021 10 2022 ) | (224,020.341) | (407,830.471) | (859,234.634)
11 112,346.800 280,118.611 691,462.823

(2022 10 2023 ) | (112,346.800) | (280,118.611) | (691,462.823)
12 125,374.855 80,349.251 736,488.427

(2023 10 2024 ) | (125,374.855) (80,349.251) (736,488.427)
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4,403.825 18,904.419 15,889.087
(2014 10 2015 (4,403.825) (18,904.419) (15,889.087)
11,789.979 8,473.341 19,205.725

(2015 10 2016 (11,789.979) (8,473.341) (19,205.725)
32,742.974 13,857.809 38,090.890

(2016 10 2017 (32,742.974) (13,857.809) (38,090.890)
10,834.961 16,503.233 32,422.618

(2017 10 2018 (10,834.961) (16,503.233) (32,422.618)
9,516.887 7,384.783 34,554.722

(2018 10 2019 (9,516.887) (7,384.783) (34,554.722)
162.384 10,520.827 24,196.279

(2019 10 2020 (162.384) (10,520.827) (24,196.279)
27,946.230 6,210.374 45,932.135

(2020 10 2021 (27,946.230) (6,210.374) (45,932.135)
10 6,472.087 9,565.530 42,838.692

(2021 10 2022 (6,472.087) (9,565.530) (42,838.692)
11 5,535.633 23,567.039 24,807.286

(2022 10 2023 (5,535.633) (23,567.039) (24,807.286)
12 1,642.238 10,091.483 16,358.041

(2023 10 2024 (1,642.238) (10,091.483) (16,358.041)
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REE @ISO (202551 BFERE

)

5% A HARHER ()
TEWVA PHARM 3.75% 05/09/27/EURS 3.7500 1.84
ACCESS BAMK PL 6,125% 09/21/26 61250 1.80
ECOPETROL 5A B.625% 01/19/29 8.6250 1.656
WYHNN MACAULTD 5.5% 01/15/26 S.5000 163
SEPLAT ENERGY P 7.75% 04/01/26 7.7500 161
CFFICE CHERIFI 5.125% 06/23/51 51250 1.60
MELCO RESORTS F 5.75% 07/21/28 5.7500 1.E9
TEVA PHARMACEUT 4.75% 05/09/27 4.7500 1.56
INTL AIRPORT FIMA 12% 03/15/33 12,0000 1.42
SASOL FINANCIN 4.375% 09/18/26 43750 1.36

(FHEEIERE . T 2 FOH RSN A T 2N EE EME D LERE LE T LR T

{5

RiFs B MR )
7

FfC US BYR NOTE (CBT) MAR2S 580
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https://www.mufg-investorservices.com/wp-
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2024 30
2024 30 2023 30
( ) C ) ( ) C )
©, 63,536,555 9,811,950 57,653,792 8,903,475
() 1,035,592 159,926 1,048,659 161,944
©) 56,640 8,747 451,975 69,798
©) 720,000 111,190
204,439 31,572 1,446,858 223,438
989 153
@,12 895,176 138,242 1,630,468 251,793
66,448,402 10,261,627 62,232,741 9,610,602
©. 312,893 48,320 337,641 52,142
©) 20,000 3,089
617,419 95,348 1,275,325 196,948
6,364 983
) 121,886 18,823 433,215 66,901
@ 104,719 16,172 113,312 17,499
60,437 9,333 52,695 8,138
(b) 16,827 2,599 19,774 3,054
©) 14,161 2,187 14,117 2,180
') 13,985 2,160 13,453 2,078
@) 4,904 757 4,658 719
©) 2,277 352 2,166 334
187 29 69,343 10,709
15,110 2,333 17,039 2,631
1,291,169 199,395 2,372,738 366,422
65,157,233 10,062,231 59,860,003 9,244,180
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/(

/(

2024 30
2024 30 2023 30

( ) C ) ( ) C )
() 71,834 11,093 70,752 10,926
() 4,955,874 765,336 4,990,915 770,747
() 55,181 8,522 61,390 9,480
(4,997,505) (771,765) (4,671,513) (721,422)
87,228 13,471 (600,016) (92,660)
(861,843) (133,094) 3,927,824 606,574
84,260 13,012 90,190 13,928
10,995,954 1,698,105 7,779,212 1,201,344
(42,530) (6,568) 396,343 61,207
146,250 22,585 617,019 95,286
(97,151) (15,003) 256,935 39,678
10,397,552 1,605,694 12,919,051 1,995,089
@) 519,282 80,193 515,782 79,652
@ 519,282 80,193 515,782 79,652
) 89,275 13,787 72,852 11,251
©) 84,880 13,108 80,935 12,499
69,203 10,687 99,116 15,306
67,798 10,470 52,694 8,138
() 31,480 4,861 41,791 6,454
@) 19,473 3,007 19,342 2,987
©) 12,982 2,005 10,504 1,622
18,610 2,874 49,357 7,622
1,432,265 221,185 1,458,155 225,183
8,965,287 1,384,509 11,460,896 1,769,906
(h),10 4,037,033 623,439 4,805,734 742,150
4,928,254 761,070 6,655,162 1,027,757
4,928,254 761,070 6,655,162 1,027,757
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2024 30
2024 30 2023 30

( ) C D ( ) « D
59,860,003 9,244,180 68,952,058 10,648,266
11,074,705 1,710,267 4,166,812 643,481
(10,705,729) (1,653,286)  (19,914,029) (3,075,323)

4,928,254 761,070 6,655,162 1,027,757
65,157,233 10,062,231 59,860,003 9,244,180
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/(

/(

/(

)/

/(

2024 30
2024 30 2023 30
( ) C ) ( ) C )
4,928,254 761,070 6,655,162 1,027,757
(4,101) (633) (3,369) (520)
(h).10 4,037,033 623,439 4,805,734 742,150
(71,834) (11,093) (70,752) (10,926)
(4,955,874) (765,336) (4,990,915) (770,747)
(55,181) (8,522) (61,390) (9,480)
3,878,297 598,925 6,334,470 978,232
©) 395,335 61,052 1,440,417 222,444
©) (720,000) (111,190) 160,000 24,709
1,242,419 191,867 (639,769) (98,800)
989 153 6,352 981
(5.882,763) (908, 475) 7,180,204 1,108,839
©) (20,000) (3,089) (390, 000) (60,228)
6,364 983
(657,906) (101,600) 14,315 2,211
7,742 1,196 @ ©)
) 532 82 (20,166) (3,114)
@) 246 38 (915) (141)
) 111 17 (2,700) 17)
©) 44 7 (11,220) (1,733)
(1,929) (298) (9,697) (1,498)
(b) (2,947) (455) 8,028 1,240
) (8,593) (1,327) (58,574) (9,046)
(69,156) (10, 680) 59,542 9,195
@) (311,329) (48,079) (232,205) (35,859)
(24,748) (3.822) (902,873) (139, 431)
(2,167,292) (334,695) 12,935,208 1,997,584
5,040,775 778,447 5,274,884 814,600
55,181 8,522 85,945 13,272
2,928,664 452,274 18,296,037 2,825,457
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2024 30 2023 30
( ) C ) ( ) C )

11,074,705 1,710,267 4,166,812 643,481

(10,705,729)  (1,653,286)  (20,305,815)  (3,135,827)

(4,037,033) (623,439)  (4,805,734) (742,150)

/( ) (3,668,057) (566,458)  (20,944,737)  (3,234,496)

/C ) 4,101 633 3,369 520

/C ) (735,292) (113,551)  (2,645,331) (408,518)

1,630,468 251,793 4,275,799 660,312

895,176 138,242 1,630,468 251,793
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2024 30

2011 2010 10

2013
2013
2013
2013
2013
2013

2024 29

2024 29
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2024 30 2023 30

2024 30

Alfa Bank AO Via Alfa Bond Issuance PLC
1,480,000 5. 95 2030 15 0 0.00

Credit Bank of Moscow Via CBOM Finance PLC
2,530,000 - 2027 10 0 0.00

2023 30
Alfa Bank AO Via Alfa Bond Issuance PLC
1,480,000 5 o5 2030 15 0 0.00
2,530,000 Credit Bank of Moscow Via CBOM Finance PLC 0 0.00

7.50 2027 10

«
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2024 30 3,666 891,510 895,176
2023 30 8,726 1,621,742 1,630,468
(e
2024 30 2023
30
(f
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2024 30 30,031 41,165
2024 30
2024 30
63,046,936 * 63,046,936
196,680 196,680
23,964 23,964
268,975 268,975
1,471 1,471
265 265
25,435 63,512,856 63,538,291
2024 30
2024 30
311,392 311,392
2,485 2,485
8,780 8,780
2,485 320,172 322,657

2024 30
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2023 30 7,313 410,586
2023 30
2023 30
56,900,178 * 56,900,178
600,454 600,454
88 88
153,072 153,072
80,011 80,011
90,707 90,707
80,099 57,744,411 57,824,510
2023 30
2022
30
2023 30
2023 30
337,641 337,641
38,495 38,495
2,071 2,071

38,495 339,712 378,207
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2024 30 2023 30
2024 30
2023 30
253,000
2023 30
(253,000) 253,000
(253,000) 253,000

Credit Bank of Moscow Via CBOM Finance PLC
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Alfa Bank AO Via Alfa Bond Issuance PLC
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50
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taxes or



(a
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2024

1974

30

11

2023

30

2024

0.05
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(c
500 5.0
500 10 4.0
10 3.0
2024 30 2023 30
(d
0.80
2024 30 2023 30
(e
0.02
10,000
2024 30 2023 30

(f
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2024 30 2023 30
0.03
2024 30 2023 30
10 100
10 100
10,000 10,000
10 100
10 100
10 100
10 100
2024 29

2024 30 2023 30
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*

2022 30 859,235 3,166,499 42,839 2,959,187 11,946,877 2,059,997
112,347 85,161 5,536 325,960 13,230 199,341
(280,119)  (648,440) (23,568)  (648,579) (4,573,901)  (111,980)
2023 30 691,463 2,603,220 24,807 2,636,568 7,386,206 2,147,358
125,374 51,394 1,642 104,555 2,559 1,306,925 1,382
(80,349)  (1,023,740) (10,091)  (652,057)  (523,171)  (258,940) (95,103)
(6,865,594) 6,865,594
2024 30 736,488 1,630,874 16,358 2,089,066 3,195,343 6,771,873
2024 29
2024 30 2023 30
3,765,256 7.369296 3,016,628 6.759647
3,962,751 2.429833 6,430,468 2.470198
728,740 6,372.354175 1,017,336 6,119.652291
11,174,357 5.348973 14,097,165 5.346787
19,733,130 2.671619
25,636,498 8.023082 15,565,276 7.248569
19,889,631 2.937095
2024 29
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2024 30 2023 30
100
2023 30 2024 29

2024 30 2023 30

20 20

2024 30 2024 30 2023 30 2023 30
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1.2 ) 1.2 .1 ) 2.1

3.4 ) 3.4 (4.6 ) 4.6

4.6 ) 4.6 6.7 ) 6.7

2024 30 2023 30 20
20
2023 10 2024 29
2024 30 2023 30
2024 30 2023 30
5.78 5.08
6.01 10.69

17.06 23.75
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75
75 0.75
2024 30 2023 30
75

2024 30 2024 30 2023 30 2023 30

2.3 ) 2.3 2.3 ) 2.3

0.0 ) 0.0 0.0 ) 0.0

2.3 ) 2.3 2.3 ) 2.3

0.05
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2024 30
891,510 3,666 895,176
1,739,161 41,432,150 20,072,305 292,939 63,536,555
(1,014) (6,246) (769) 64,669 56,640
204,439 204,439
1,755,592 1,755,592
2,629,657 41,425,904 20,071,536 2,321,305 66,448,402
1,501 311,392 312,893
617,419 617,419
360,857 360,857
1,501 1,289,668 1,291,169
2023 30
1,621,742 8,726 1,630,468
3,966,072 35,411,900 17,296,935 978,885 57,653,792
41,516 80,772 7,864 321,823 451,975

1,446,858 1,446,858
1,049,648 1,049,648

5,629,330 35,492,672 17,304,799 3,805,940 62,232,741

337,641 337,641

1,275,325 1,275,325

759,772 759,772

2,372,738 2,372,738
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(c

2024

2024
30,819,535

30

30

2023

30,861,952

30

42,945,674
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2023 30
43,130,242
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2024
30 2023 30
2024 30 2023 30
(
)
2024 30 2023 30

895,176 1,630,468
63,243,616 57,500,632
1,035,592 1,048,659
56,640 451,975

720,000
268,975 153,072
204,439 1,446,858
989

66,424,438 62,232,653
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2024 30 2023 30
0.30
10.16 9.77
54.79 46.42
26.22 29.50
4.98 8.27
0.14 0.69
0.02 0.14
3.39 5.21
100.00 100.00

2024 30 2023 30
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2024

30

2023

30
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2024 30 2023 30
@ 3,666 0.01 8,726 0.01
@ 18,990 0.03 17,140 0.03
@ 11,588 0.02 10,616 0.02
@ 12,118 0.02 10,580 0.02
@ 6,176 0.01
@ 842,638 1.28
@ 1,583,406 2.64
895,176 1.37 1,630,468 2.72
®
27,623 0.05 444,662 0.75
29,017 0.04 7,313 0.01
®
380,000 0.58
340,000 0.53
776,640 1.20 451,975 0.76
€
@
®
®
2024 30 2023 30
(6N
20,000 0.03
20,000 0.03
€
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13
2024 30 2023 30
1.441442 1.549427
1.350950
7.285750
0.896017 0.944510
0.745518 0.819303
7.767500
143.040000 149.225000
19.602000 17.378500
1.282000 1.364900
14
2024 30 2023 30
15
2024 30 2023 30
16
2024 30
17
18

2024 12 19
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2024 30
)

680,000 Altice Financing SA 4.25 15/08/2029 610,925 0.94
480,000 Banca Transilvania SA(®) 8.88 27/04/2026 567,176 0.87
1,070,000 Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands Il BV 3.75 09/05/2027 1,183,283 1.81
2,361,384 3.62
790,000 Absa Group Ltd(2) (b) 6.38 27/05/2026 778,644 1.20
1,120,000 Access Bank PLC 6.13 21/09/2026 1,063,485 1.63
349,574 Acu Petroleo Luxembourg Sarl 7.50 13/01/2032 349,923 0.54
240,000 Adani Ports & Special Economic Zone Ltd 4.20 04/08/2027 230,925 0.36
230,000 Adani Transmission Ltd 4.00 03/08/2026 223,172 0.34
35,014 Add Hero Holdings Ltd(c) 8.50 30/09/2029 1,954 0.00
27,063 Add Hero Holdings Ltd(c) 9.00 30/09/2030 677 0.00
35,452 Add Hero Holdings Ltd(c) 9.80 30/09/2031 709 0.00
200,000 Aeropuerto Internacional de Tocumen SA 5.13 11/08/2061 158,812 0.24
880,000 Aeropuertos Dominicanos Siglo XXI SA 7.00 30/06/2034 918,962 1.41
588,730 AES Panama Generation Holdings SRL 4.38 31/05/2030 530,575 0.81
200,000 Agile Group Holdings Ltd(b) 15.12 12/11/2024 5,000 0.01
460,000 Akbank TAS 7.50 20/01/2030 474,950 0.73
1,480,000 Alfa Bank AO Via Alfa Bond lIssuance PLC 5.95 15/04/2030 0* 0.00
710,000 Anadolu Efes Biracilik Ve Malt Sanayii AS 3.38 29/06/2028 630,125 0.97
200,000 o Colonbia SKS / Andean Teleqon par 405 2/04/2026 193,838 0.30
400,000 52T Cotonbia S45 / Andean Telecon par() 405 2/04/2006 T8 0.60
520,000 Axian Telecom 7.38 16/02/2027 521,950 0.80
600,000 Banco Davivienda SA(2) (b) 6.65 22/04/2031 511,500 0.79
500,000 Banco de Bogota SA 6.25 12/05/2026 502,320 0.77
230,000 Banco del Estado de Chile(® () 7.95 02/05/2029 247,020 0.38
410,000 Banco do Brasil SA(®) (b) 8.75 15/04/2025 416,150 0.64
380,000 Banco Industrial SA 4.88 29/01/2026 370,698 0.57
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280,000 Banco Industrial SA/Guatemala(®) (d) 4.88 29/01/2026 273,146 0.42
370,000 Egyco Mercantil del Norte SA/Grand Cayman(2) 5 88 24/01/2027 362,748 0.56
630,000 Bancolombia SA( 8.63 24/06/2029 670,320 1.03
450,000 BBVA Bancomer SA/Texas(2) 5.13 17/01/2028 425,835 0.65
760,000 Bidvest Group UK PLC/The 3.63 23/09/2026 737,200 1.13
200,000 Braskem Netherlands Finance BV(2) 8.50 24/10/2025 200,438 0.31
270,000 Braskem Netherlands Finance BV 4.50 31/01/2030 240,759 0.37
200,000 Braskem Netherlands Finance BV 7.25 13/02/2033 198,140 0.30
320,000 Braskem Netherlands Finance BV 5.88 31/01/2050 249,600 0.38
200,000 BRF SA 4.88 24/01/2030 193,152 0.30
360,000 BRF SA 5.75 21/09/2050 311,944 0.48
610,000 CA Magnum Holdings 5.38 31/10/2026 601,393 0.92
200,000 CAP SA 3.90 27/04/2031 163,500 0.25
500,000 CAS Capital No 1 Ltd(® (®) 4.00 12/07/2026 479,950 0.74
310,000 Cemex SAB de Cv(a) (b) 5.13 08/06/2026 304,575 0.47
310,000 Cemex SAB de CV(2) (b) (d) 5.13 08/06/2026 304,575 0.47
300,000 Cemex SAB de cv(a) (b) 9.13 14/03/2028 327,030 0.50
500,000 53?522'S‘L\mir;g?ri‘vB‘H’g;iggsforp / CBC Bottling 5 g 27/04/2029 484,750 0.74
310,000 Champion Path Holdings Ltd 4.50 27/01/2026 302,056 0.46
200,000 Champion Path Holdings Ltd 4.85 27/01/2028 186,938 0.29
4,576 China Aoyuan Group Ltd 0.00 30/09/2028 61 0.00
19,826 China Aoyuan Group Ltd(c) 5.50 30/09/2031 99 0.00
51,207 China Aoyuan Group Ltd(®) 0.00 30/03/2173 256 0.00
200,000 China Qil & Gas Group Ltd 4.70 30/06/2026 184,188 0.28
660,000 g:ﬁéﬂcglglkég;ﬁt“cm” de Banca Multiple 4.38 22/07/2031 549,800 0.84
400,000 Cikarang Listrindo Thk PT 4.95 14/09/2026 393,400 0.60
167,500 Clean Renewable Power Mauritius Pte Ltd 4.25 25/03/2027 159,805 0.25
210,000 Continuum Energy Aura Pte Ltd 9.50 24/02/2027 220,369 0.34
340,000 Continuum Green Energy India Pvt / Co-lssuers 7.50 26/06/2033 357,530 0.55
200,000 Country Garden Holdings Co Ltd(e) 3.88 22/10/2030 14,500 0.02
2,530,000 Credit Bank of Moscow Via CBOM Finance PLC 7.50 05/10/2027 0* 0.00
460,000 CT Trust 5.13 03/02/2032 421,682 0.65
660,000 Delta Merlin Dunia Tekstil PT 0.00 26/06/2032 40,354 0.06
460,000 DNO ASA(D) 7.88 09/09/2026 461,748 0.71
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200,000 DNO ASA 9.25 04/06/2029 206,700 0.32
210,235 Easy Tactic Ltd(e) 6.50 11/07/2027 6,307 0.01
950,000 Ecopetrol SA 8.63 19/01/2029 1,021,487 1.57
190,000 Ecopetrol SA 6.88 29/04/2030 189,548 0.29
110,000 Ecopetrol SA 4.63 02/11/2031 94,237 0.14
680,000 Ecopetrol SA 8.88 13/01/2033 728,416 1.12
1,057,000 Ecopetrol SA 5.88 02/11/2051 764,581 1.17
300,000 Empresas Publicas de Medellin ESP 4.25 18/07/2029 272,175 0.42
310,000 Endeavour Mining PLC 5.00 14/10/2026 300,545 0.46
929,000 Energuate Trust 5.88 03/05/2027 915,353 1.40
210,000 E”gﬁﬁg”gg?gfgasizr SA / EnfraGen Spain SA 5.38 30/12/2030 180,766 0.28
230,000 Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd 7.13 11/02/2025 230,195 0.35
200,000 Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd 6.35 10/08/2028 203,000 0.31
230,000 Fantasia Holdings Group Co Ltd(e) 10.88 09/01/2023 3,450 0.01
240,000 Fantasia Holdings Group Co Ltd(®) 10.88 02/03/2024 3,600 0.01
200,000 Far East Horizon Ltd 6.63 16/04/2027 201,998 0.31
200,000 fﬂfﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁgéi ; aﬁigcauﬁ'i‘;?‘e’er SA 7.25 31/01/2041 207,750 0.32
360,000 Ecrst Bank of Nigeria Ltd Via FBN Finance Co 8.63 27/10/2025 359,867 0.55
650,000 First Quantum Minerals Ltd 6.88 15/10/2027 639,360 0.98
470,000 First Quantum Minerals Ltd 9.38 01/03/2029 498,200 0.76
560,000 First Quantum Minerals Ltd 8.63 01/06/2031 560,700 0.86
200,000 FWD Group Holdings Ltd 7.64 02/07/2031 217,112 0.33
300,000 GENM Capital Labuan Ltd 3.88 19/04/2031 272,719 0.42
430,000 Geopark Ltd 5.50 17/01/2027 409,102 0.63
347,823 CGuara Norte Sarl 5.20 15/06/2034 330,164 0.51
207,628 Huachen Energy Co Ltd(c) 4.65 29/12/2026 113,488 0.17
610,000 Hunt Oil Co of Peru LLC Sucursal Del Peru 8.55 18/09/2033 684,115 1.05
370,000 1IHS Holding Ltd 5.63 29/11/2026 363,717 0.56
310,000 IHS Holding Ltd 6.25 29/11/2028 289,463 0.44
610,000 IHS Netherlands Holdco BV 8.00 18/09/2027 611,144 0.94
340,000 Indika Energy Tbk PT 8.75 07/05/2029 347,650 0.53
806,520 International Airport Finance SA 12.00 15/03/2033 855,572 1.31
820,000 Ipoteka-Bank ATIB 5.50 19/11/2025 802,829 1.23
200,000 IRB Infrastructure Developers Ltd 7.11 11/03/2032 208,250 0.32
334,400 JSW Hydro Energy Ltd 4.13 18/05/2031 305,349 0.47
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330,000 JSW Infrastructure Ltd 4.95 21/01/2029 320,925 0.49
380,000 Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd(®) 10.88 23/07/2023 16,910 0.03
310,000 Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd(b) 10.88 30/10/2024 6,200 0.01
400,000 KazMunayGas National Co JSC 5.75 19/04/2047 369,124 0.57
400,000 Kingston Airport Revenue Finance Ltd 6.75 15/12/2036 412,600 0.63
800,000 Kosmos Energy Ltd 8.75 01/10/2031 790,000 1.21
200,000 LG Chem Ltd 1.60 18/07/2030 191,300 0.29
830,056 %;Tg'éméz'l“:':gfrzg Ulustararasi Liman 9.50 10/07/2036 776,185 1.19
498,894 LLPL Capital Pte Ltd 6.88 04/02/2039 515,888 0.79
187,159 MC Brazil Downstream Trading SARL 7.25 30/06/2031 160,358 0.25
220,000 Medco Bell Pte Ltd 6.38 30/01/2027 219,430 0.34
200,000 Melco Resorts Finance Ltd 5.63 17/07/2027 194,688 0.30
1,010,000 Melco Resorts Finance Ltd 5.75 21/07/2028 975,913 1.50
830,000 Mersin Uluslararasi Liman Isletmeciligi AS 8.25 15/11/2028 866,053 1.33
660,000 Metinvest BV 8.50 23/04/2026 514,800 0.79
420,000 Mexico City Airport Trust 5.50 31/07/2047 360,280 0.55
330,000 MGM China Holdings Ltd 4.75 01/02/2027 321,131 0.49
335,412 Modern Land China Co Ltd(¢) 10.00 30/12/2024 470 0.00
243,018 Modern Land China Co Ltd(c) 11.00 30/12/2026 1,215 0.00
354,674 Modern Land China Co Ltd 9.00 30/12/2027 496 0.00
34,354 Modernland Overseas Pte Ltd(c) 5.00 30/04/2027 3,435 0.01
269,841 Modernland Overseas Pte Ltd(c) 5.00 30/04/2027 88,411 0.14
885,445 Mong Duong Finance Holdings BV 5.13 07/05/2029 857,000 1.32
47,191 Mongolian Mining Corp(b) 11.00 01/10/2024 47,380 0.07
259,000 Mongolian Mining Corp/Energy Resources LLC 12.50 13/09/2026 279,720 0.43
200,000 MTN Mauritius Investments Ltd 6.50 13/10/2026 202,510 0.31
536,044 Mv24 Capital BV 6.75 01/06/2034 524,326 0.81
500,000 NBK Tier 1 Financing Ltd(® (b) 3.63 24/08/2026 477,187 0.73
260,000 OCP SA 6.75 02/05/2034 278,647 0.43
1,280,000 OCP SA 5.13 23/06/2051 1,040,384 1.60
460,000 Oleoducto Central SA 4.00 14/07/2027 439,990 0.68
670,000 OTP Bank Nyrt(2) 8.75 15/02/2028 711,875 1.09
30,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.50 13/03/2027 29,385 0.04
40,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 5.35 12/02/2028 37,380 0.06
70,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.50 23/01/2029 66,066 0.10
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60,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 8.75 02/06/2029 60,840 0.09
40,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.38 23/01/2045 27,932 0.04
90,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.75 21/09/2047 64,350 0.10
50,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.35 12/02/2048 34,601 0.05
90,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.95 28/01/2060 64,404 0.10
240,000 Rede D"or Finance Sarl 4.50 22/01/2030 230,040 0.35
240,000 Redsun Properties Group Ltd(e) 7.30 13/01/2025 1,200 0.00
553,744 Samarco Mineracao SA(C) 9.00 30/06/2031 515,813 0.79
360,000 San Miguel Global Power Holdings Corp(a) (b) 7.00 21/10/2025 358,877 0.55
200,000 San Miguel Global Power Holdings Corp(a) (b) 5.70 21/01/2026 195,250 0.30
500,000 San Miguel Global Power Holdings Corp(2 (b) 8.75 12/06/2029 512,500 0.79
560,000 Egﬂiﬂigrﬁ:iégdgit”as Pet SA / NG PET R&P 3.50 02/08/2028 511,874 0.79
860,000 Sasol Financing USA LLC 4.38 18/09/2026 833,125 1.28
330,000 Sasol Financing USA LLC 8.75 03/05/2029 349,130 0.54
980,000 SEPLAT Energy PLC 7.75 01/04/2026 980,306 1.50
141,924 ShaMaran Petroleum Corp(d) 12.00 30/07/2027 142,137 0.22
200,000 Sisecam UK PLC 8.25 02/05/2029 206,320 0.32
400,000 Sisecam UK PLC 8.63 02/05/2032 411,000 0.63
390,000 Sitios Latinoamerica SAB de CV 5.38 04/04/2032 374,400 0.57
330,000 Sri Rejeki Isman Thk PT 7.25 16/01/2025 7,920 0.01
156,600 Star Energy Geothermal Wayang Windu Ltd 6.75 24/04/2033 159,683 0.25
200,000 Stillwater Mining Co 4.00 16/11/2026 191,000 0.29
250,000 Studio City Co Ltd 7.00 15/02/2027 252,344 0.39
320,000 Studio City Finance Ltd 6.00 15/07/2025 319,680 0.49
200,000 Studio City Finance Ltd 6.50 15/01/2028 196,125 0.30
84,117 Sunac China Holdings Ltd(c) 7.00 30/09/2029 6,519 0.01
67,590 Sunac China Holdings Ltd(c) 7.25 30/09/2030 4,731 0.01
80,461 Sunac China Holdings Ltd(c) 1.00 30/09/2032 7,778 0.01
310,000 Telecomunicaciones Digitales SA 4.50 30/01/2030 283,941 0.43
360,000 Tengizchevroil Finance Co International Ltd 4.00 15/08/2026 351,720 0.54
960,000 gsva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands 111 4.75 09/05/2027 946,088 1.45
240,000 Transnet SOC Ltd 8.25 06/02/2028 249,074 0.38
710,000 Tullow Oil PLC 7.00 01/03/2025 672,356 1.03
201,000 Tullow Oil PLC 10.25 15/05/2026 183,727 0.28
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360,000 Tupy Overseas SA(d) 4.50 16/02/2031 320,962 0.49
450,000 Turkiye Garanti Bankasi AS(2) 8.38 28/02/2029 462,797 0.71
200,000 UPL Corp Ltd 4.63 16/06/2030 170,312 0.26
380,000 Uzbek Industrial and Construction Bank ATB 8.95 24/07/2029 381,662 0.59
200,000 Vedanta Resources Finance 11 PLC 9.25 23/04/2026 198,376 0.30
108,100 Vedanta Resources Finance 11 PLC 13.88 21/01/2027 108,132 0.17
218,400 Vedanta Resources Finance 11 PLC 13.88 09/12/2028 219,151 0.34
188,000 Vedanta Resources Ltd 13.88 09/12/2028 191,995 0.30
440,000 Virtusa Corp 7.13 15/12/2028 417,079 0.64
350,000 Vivo Energy Investments BV 5.13 24/09/2027 339,720 0.52
270,000 VTR Comunicaciones SpA 5.13 15/01/2028 247,304 0.38
990,000 Wynn Macau Ltd 5.50 15/01/2026 982,884 1.51
250,000 Wynn Macau Ltd 5.50 01/10/2027 245,000 0.38
370,000 Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi AS 9.25 16/10/2028 405,728 0.62
740,000 Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi AS(2) 9.25 17/01/2029 789,025 1.21
200,000 Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi AS(2) (b) 9.74 04/04/2029 208,750 0.32
770,000 YPF SA 6.95 21/07/2027 746,900 1.15
200,000 YPF SA 9.50 17/01/2031 210,750 0.32
410,000 YPF SA 7.00 15/12/2047 338,865 0.52
420,000 Yuzhou Group Holdings Co Ltd(®) (&) 5.38 29/03/2025 8,400 0.01
200,000 Zhenro Properties Group Ltd(e) 7.10 10/09/2024 250 0.00
60,685,552 93.14

200,000 National Bank of Uzbekistan 4.85 21/10/2025 196,680 0.30
196,680 0.30

63,243,616 97.06

82,001 Sunac Services Holdings Ltd 23,964 0.04
23,964 0.04
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24/10/2024  EUR 416,050  USD 462,134 BNP Paribas 2,658 0.00
2,658 0.00

24/10/2024  USD 2,774,418 EUR 2,543,587 Bank of America NA (67,160)  (0.10)
(67,160)  (0.10)

15/10/2024  AUD 13,461  USD 9,181 UBS AG 159 0.00
15/10/2024  AUD 55,762 USD 37,818 HSBC Bank PLC 876 0.00
15/10/2024  AUD 50,458  USD 39,035 Royal Bank of Canada 2,223 0.00
15/10/2024  AUD 103,167  USD 66,882 gg?te Street Bank & Trust 4,705 0.01
15/10/2024 AUD 5,317,257 usb 3,562,078 Westpac Banking Corp 127,574 0.19
02/10/2024  BRL 239,823 USD 43,36 orote Street Bank & Trust 674 0.00
02/10/2024  BRL 10,614,179 USD 1,920,729 Barclays Bank PLC 28,329 0.05
02/10/2024  BRL 10,614,179 USD 1,921,880 Deutsche Bank AG 27,178 0.04
04/11/2024  BRL 21,396,489 USD 3,899,985 Standard Chartered Bank 13,431 0.02
17/10/2024  JPY 106,367,937  USD 684,119 Natwest Markets PLC 61,168 0.10
266,317 0.41

02/10/2024  BRL 229,873 USD 42,332 JPlorgan Chase & Co. (121)  (0.00)
17/10/2024  JPY 1,193,560  USD 8,371 HSBC Bank PLC 8  (0.00)
19/12/2024  MXN 4,915,461  USD 250,325 Citibank NA (2,629)  (0.01)
19/12/2024 MXN 215,690,748 USD 11,089,636 Morgan Stanley & Co. (220,712)  (0.34)
02/10/2024  USD 54,802  BRL 301,567 gséte Street Bank & Trust (574)  (0.00)
02/10/2024  USD 3,013,753 BRL 21,396,489 Standard Chartered Bank (15,236)  (0.02)
15/10/2024  USD 17,781 AUD 26,614 ggﬁﬁ:ﬁ;igrsﬂg ﬁig Zealand (686)  (0.00)
15/10/2024  USD 80,813  AUD 121,106 g;?te Street Bank & Trust (3.223)  (0.01)
17/10/2024  USD 8,076  JPY 1,252,745 JPNorgan Chase & Co. (702)  (0.00)
17/10/2024  USD 19,944 JPY 2,895,009 Barclays Bank PLC (341)  (0.00)
(244,232)  (0.38)
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2024 30 30,031
/
(8) Ultra Bond December 2024 1,461 0.00
(1) US Long Bond December 2024 10 0.00
1,471 0.00
/
4 US 2 Year Note December 2024 (1,063) (0.00)
10 US 5 Year Note December 2024 (1,422) (0.00)
(2,485) (0.00)
( ) )
140,000 Qakistan Government o, 1.00  USD 20/03/2025 (1,501)  (0.00)
International
(1,501) (0.00)
(1,501) (0.00)
2024 30 41,165
( ) )
Floating (EUR
60,000 6 Month Fixed, 2.50% EUR 18/12/2044 265 0.00
EURIBOR)
265 0.00
265 0.00
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) ( )

Colombia Government

150,000 International

Purchased 1.00 USD 20/06/2029 (425)  (0.00)

(425)  (0.00)

) ( )
220,000 Fixed, 2.50% Ebg?;ggg (EUR 6 Month ¢ o 18/12/2027 (1,019)  (0.00)
870,000 Fixed, 2.50% Ebg?ﬁggg (EUR 6 Month ¢ o 18/12/2028 (4,802)  (0.01)
160,000 Fixed, 2.50% Eﬁﬁ?ﬁégg (EUR 6 Month  p o 18/12/2031 (1,033)  (0.00)

(6,854)  (0.01)
(7,279)  (0.01)

63,243,616 97.06

23,964 0.04
2,658 0.00
(67,160)  (0.10)
266,317 0.41
(244,232)  (0.38)
1,471 0.00

(2,485)  (0.00)
(1,501)  (0.00)
265 0.00

(425)  (0.00)
(6,854)  (0.01)
1,941,599 2.98
65,157,233 100.00
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@ 2024 30

®
© Payment in kind
(@ 1933 144

©)
* 2024 30

AUD
BRL
EUR
JPY
MXN
uSsD
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2023 30
)

1,000,000 Far East Horizon Ltd 4.70 09/02/2024 133,578 0.23
133,578 0.23
780,000 Altice Financing SA 4.25 15/08/2029 685,910 1.14
480,000 ?2Pca Transilvania /EUR/ Regd V/R Reg S Emtn 8.88 27/04/2027 524,717 0.88
140,000 GTC Aurora Luxembourg SA 2.25 23/06/2026 96,346 0.16
1,490,000 Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands Il BV 3.75 09/05/2027 1,428,350 2.39
2,735,323 4.57
790,000 Absa Group Ltd(2) (b) 6.38 27/05/2026 718,173 1.20
1,120,000 Access Bank PLC 6.13 21/09/2026 944,406 1.58
1,920,000 Aeropuertos Dominicanos Siglo XXI SA 6.75 30/03/2029 1,858,560 3.10
200,000 Agile Group Holdings Ltd(® (b) 7.88 31/07/2024 7,770 0.01
550,000 Akbank TAS 6.80 06/02/2026 535,150 0.89
200,000 Alam Sutera Realty Tbk PT(¢) 11.00 02/11/2025 166,278 0.28
1,480,000 Alfa Bank AO Via Alfa Bond Issuance PLC 5.95 15/04/2030 0* 0.00
1,110,000 Anadolu Efes Biracilik Ve Malt Sanayii AS 3.38 29/06/2028 907,902 1.52
400,000 52 rCre Cotonbia 545 / Andean Telocon par() 405 2/04/20%6 35,68 0.58
520,000 Axian Telecom 7.38 16/02/2027 464,220 0.77
250,000 B3 SA - Brasil Bolsa Balcao 4.13 20/09/2031 206,670 0.35
200,000 Banco Continental SAECA 2.75 10/12/2025 181,594 0.30
200,000 Banco Davivienda SA(2) (b) 6.65 22/04/2031 134,500 0.22
960,000 Banco de Bogota SA 6.25 12/05/2026 917,280 1.53
1,610,000 Banco do Brasil SA() (b) 6.25 15/04/2024 1,485,869 2.48
380,000 Banco Industrial SA( 4.88 29/01/2026 350,577 0.59
280,000 Banco Industrial SA/Guatemala(® (d) 4.88 29/01/2026 258,320 0.43
370,000 I?g)nco Mercantil del Norte SA/Grand Cayman(2) 588 24/01/2027 315,425 0.53
450,000 BBVA Bancomer SA(®) 5.13 17/01/2028 386,010 0.64
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560,000 Bidvest Group UK PLC/The 3.63 23/09/2026 496,630 0.83
200,000 BRF SA 4.88 24/01/2030 161,250 0.27
360,000 BRF SA 5.75 21/09/2050 238,763 0.40
460,000 CAP SA 3.90 27/04/2031 338,128 0.57
300,000 CAS Capital No 1 Ltd(® () 4.00 12/07/2026 241,002 0.40
310,000 Cemex SAB de Cv(2) (b) (d) 5.13 08/06/2026 288,207 0.48
510,000 Cemex SAB de Cv(2) (b) 5.13 08/06/2026 474,147 0.79
300,000 Cemex SAB de cv(a) (b) 9.13 14/03/2028 311,250 0.52
500,000 ﬁg?g(‘;i'Sﬁmir;g‘i‘?VB‘H’miggSforp / CBC Bottling 5 o5 27/04/2029 449,063 0.75
210,000 China Aoyuan Group Ltd 5.98 18/08/2025 3,150 0.01
180,000 Clean Renewable Power Mauritius Pte Ltd 4.25 25/03/2027 155,763 0.26
1,050,000 Coca-Cola Icecek AS 4.50 20/01/2029 931,633 1.55
210,000 Continuum Energy Aura Pte Ltd 9.50 24/02/2027 208,687 0.35
260,000 Country Garden Holdings Co Ltd 2.70 12/07/2026 16,250 0.03
200,000 Country Garden Holdings Co Ltd 3.88 22/10/2030 12,500 0.02
2,530,000 Credit Bank of Moscow Via CBOM Finance PLC 7.50 05/10/2027 0* 0.00
660,000 Delta Merlin Dunia Tekstil PT 0.00 26/06/2032 39,552 0.07
51,490 DNO ASA(d) 8.38 29/05/2024 51,258 0.09
1,010,000 DNO ASA(®D) 7.88 09/09/2026 911,525 1.52
710,000 Egzﬁ$¥ge& Southern African Trade & Development 4.88 23/05/2024 689,954 1.15
412,637 Easy Tactic Ltd(®) 7.50 11/07/2027 24,758 0.04
350,000 Ecopetrol SA 8.63 19/01/2029 350,385 0.59
190,000 Ecopetrol SA 6.88 29/04/2030 172,710 0.29
880,000 Ecopetrol SA 8.88 13/01/2033 857,318 1.43
1,857,000 Ecopetrol SA 5.88 02/11/2051 1,180,356 1.97
310,000 Endeavour Mining PLC 5.00 14/10/2026 275,106 0.46
929,000 Energuate Trust 5.88 03/05/2027 848,293 1.42
440,000 ENN Clean Energy International Investment Ltd 3.38 12/05/2026 401,496 0.67
230,000 Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd 7.13 11/02/2025 223,799 0.37
200,000 Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd 6.35 10/08/2028 181,878 0.30
230,000 Fantasia Holdings Group Co Ltd 10.88 09/01/2023 9,200 0.02
240,000 Fantasia Holdings Group Co Ltd(e) 10.88 02/03/2024 9,600 0.02
360,000 Ecrst Bank of Nigeria Ltd Via FBN Finance Co 8.63 27/10/2025 334,624 0.56
239,000 First Quantum Minerals Ltd 7.50 01/04/2025 238,073 0.40
496,000 First Quantum Minerals Ltd(d) 7.50 01/04/2025 494,076 0.83
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220,000 First Quantum Minerals Ltd 6.88 0170372026 212,298 0.35
300,000 GENM Capital Labuan Ltd 3.88 19/04/2031 235,527 0.39
430,000 Geopark Ltd 5.50 17/01/2027 366,575 0.61
320,000 Globe Telecom Inc(®) (B) 4.20 02/08/2026 296,803 0.50
220,000 Gohl Capital Ltd 4.25 24/01/2027 202,162 0.34
371,389 Guara Norte Sarl 5.20 15/06/2034 313,824 0.52
200,000 :g?&}‘ggi Eigpi”ess HeH International 13.50 26/06/2026 190,000 0.32
610,000 Hunt Qil Co of Peru LLC Sucursal Del Peru 8.55 18/09/2033 614,514 1.03
370,000 IHS Holding Ltd 5.63 29/11/2026 303,859 0.51
310,000 IHS Holding Ltd 6.25 29/11/2028 234,103 0.39
610,000 IHS Netherlands Holdco BV 8.00 18/09/2027 508,490 0.85
440,000 India Airport Infra 6.25 25/10/2025 428,533 0.72
330,000 India Green Power Holdings 4.00 22/02/2027 288,516 0.48
1,029,699 International Airport Finance SA 12.00 15/03/2033 985,936 1.65
420,000 Ipoteka-Bank ATIB 5.50 19/11/2025 381,482 0.64
394,721 IRSA Inversiones y Representaciones SA 8.75 22/06/2028 382,820 0.64
330,000 JsW Infrastructure Ltd 4.95 21/01/2029 288,509 0.48
380,000 Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd 10.88 23/07/2023 20,900 0.03
310,000 Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd(2) (b) 10.88 30/10/2023 15,370 0.03
300,000 Kosmos Energy Ltd(d) 7.13 04/04/2026 281,766 0.47
920,000 Kosmos Energy Ltd 7.13 04/04/2026 864,082 1.44
200,000 Li & Fung Ltd 5.00 18/08/2025 183,822 0.31
399,286 %;Tg';méz'l‘f:‘gfrzg Uluslararasi Liman 9.50 10/07/2036 357,812 0.60
200,000 Logan Group Co Ltd(e) 4.85 14/12/2026 14,000 0.02
220,000 Medco Bell Pte Ltd 6.38 30/01/2027 206,653 0.35
200,000 Melco Resorts Finance Ltd 5.63 17/07/2027 178,328 0.30
1,210,000 Melco Resorts Finance Ltd 5.75 21/07/2028 1,049,312 1.75
780,000 Mersin Uluslararasi Liman Isletmeciligi AS 5.38 15/11/2024 761,670 1.27
460,000 Metinvest BV 8.50 23/04/2026 324,300 0.54
420,000 Mexico City Airport Trust 5.50 31/07/2047 319,469 0.53
300,000 MGM China Holdings Ltd 5.25 18/06/2025 286,722 0.48
400,000 MGM China Holdings Ltd 5.88 15/05/2026 379,032 0.63
480,000 MHP SE 7.75 10/05/2024 396,000 0.66
304,229 Modern Land China Co Ltd(c) 8.00 30/12/2024 6,084 0.01
318,658 Modern Land China CO Ltd(c) 9.00 30/12/2027 7,638 0.01
218,341 Modern Land China CO Ltd(c) 9.00 30/12/2026 4,367 0.01
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469,841 Modernland Overseas Pte Ltd(c) 4.00 30/04/2027 18,794 0.03
19,563 Modernland Overseas Pte Ltd 11(¢) 3.00 30/04/2027 6,725 0.01
410,000 Mong Duong Finance Holdings BV 5.13 07/05/2029 370,988 0.62
134,000 Mongolian Mining Corp/Energy Resources LLC 12.50 13/09/2026 130,032 0.22
200,000 MTN Mauritius Investments Ltd 6.50 13/10/2026 195,332 0.33
571,601 Mv24 Capital BV 6.75 01/06/2034 502,294 0.84
300,000 NWD Finance BVI Ltd(® (b) 4.13 10/03/2028 148,767 0.25
900,000 OCP SA 5.13 23/06/2051 593,667 0.99
460,000 Oleoducto Central SA 4.00 14/07/2027 409,860 0.68
670,000 OTP Bank Nyrt(2) 8.75 15/05/2033 662,798 1.11
160,000 Petrobras Global Finance BV 6.00 27/01/2028 157,974 0.26
540,000 Petrobras Global Finance BV 6.50 03/07/2033 513,648 0.86
15,510,000 Petroleos de Venezuela SA(e) 6.00 28/10/2022 697,950 1.17
240,000 Rede D"or Finance Sarl 4.50 22/01/2030 202,020 0.34
240,000 Redsun Properties Group Ltd(®) 7.30 13/01/2025 8,400 0.01
200,000 Tﬁiorts World Las Vegas LLC / RWLV Capital 4.63 16/04/2029 160,500 0.27
400,000 Tﬁiorts World Las Vegas LLC / RWLV Capital 845 97/07/2030 388,000 0.65
200,000 Sagicor Financial Co Ltd 5.30 13/05/2028 186,250 0.31
560,000 fgﬂiﬂiggg:iégdgit”as Pet SA / NG PET R&P 3.50 02/08/2028 467,068 0.78
200,000 Sands China Ltd 4.30 08/01/2026 186,774 0.31
1,400,000 Sands China Ltd 2.55 08/03/2027 1,210,636 2.02
780,000 Sands China Ltd 5.65 08/08/2028 731,738 1.22
220,000 Sasol Financing USA LLC 5.88 27/03/2024 216,867 0.36
1,680,000 Sasol Financing USA LLC 4.38 18/09/2026 1,483,994 2.48
1,180,000 SEPLAT Energy PLC 7.75 01/04/2026 1,004,345 1.68
406,992 ShaMaran Petroleum Corp(d) 12.00 30/07/2025 369,515 0.62
200,000 Shimao Group Holdings Ltd(e) 3.45 11/01/2031 8,000 0.01
390,000 Sitios Latinoamerica SAB de CV 5.38 04/04/2032 334,084 0.56
360,000 SMC Global Power Holdings Corp(@ (b) 7.00 21/10/2025 286,985 0.48
330,000 Sri Rejeki Isman Tbk PT 7.25 16/01/2025 9,072 0.02
162,160 Star Energy Geothermal Wayang Windu Ltd 6.75 24/04/2033 155,468 0.26
200,000 Stillwater Mining Co 4.00 16/11/2026 173,264 0.29
250,000 Studio City Co Ltd 7.00 15/02/2027 235,520 0.39
570,000 Studio City Finance Ltd 6.00 15/07/2025 538,194 0.90
200,000 Studio City Finance Ltd 6.50 15/01/2028 167,910 0.28
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530,000 Sunac China Holdings Ltd(e) 5.95 26/04/2024 72,875 0.12
200,000 Sunac China Holdings Ltd 7.00 09/07/2025 27,500 0.05
710,000 Cable Onda SA 4.50 30/01/2030 575,100 0.96
960,000 gsva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands 111 4.75 09/05/2027 880,321 1.47
240,000 Transnet SOC Ltd 8.25 06/02/2028 229,337 0.38
200,000 Tullow Oil PLC 7.00 01/03/2025 152,250 0.25
360,000 Tupy Overseas SA(d) 4.50 16/02/2031 288,248 0.48
410,000 Turkiye Vakiflar Bankasi TAO 6.50 08/01/2026 395,256 0.66
280,000 Uzbek Industrial and Construction Bank ATB 5.75 02/12/2024 266,879 0.45
440,000 Virtusa Corp 7.13 15/12/2028 355,373 0.59
350,000 Vivo Energy Investments BV 5.13 24/09/2027 318,997 0.53
1,190,000 Wynn Macau Ltd 5.50 15/01/2026 1,103,654 1.85
910,000 Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi AS(2) (b) 13.88 15/01/2024 923,404 1.54
370,000 Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi AS 9.25 16/10/2028 371,850 0.62
1,000,000 YPF SA 6.95 21/07/2027 797,380 1.33
70,000 YPF SA 8.50 27/06/2029 55,949 0.09
410,000 YPF SA 7.00 15/12/2047 260,350 0.44
420,000 Yuzhou Group Holdings Co Ltd(®)(e) 5.38 29/03/2024 6,300 0.01
270,000 Yuzhou Group Holdings Co Ltd(e) 7.38 13/01/2026 16,200 0.03
200,000 Zhenro Properties Group Ltd(e) 7.10 10/09/2024 2,000 0.00
54,031,277 90.26
510,000 Colombia Government International Bond 4.13 15/05/2051 283,050 0.47
200,000 National Bank of Uzbekistan 4.85 21/10/2025 184,330 0.31
200,000 ohuplie OF South Africa Government 5.65 27/09/2047 133,074 0.22
600,454 1.00
57,500,632 96.06
88 88 0.00

88 0.00
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State Street Bank & Trust

06/12/2023  EUR 82,953  USD 87,619 or 460 0.00
12/10/2023  USD 139,876 CNH 992,887 Royal Bank of Canada 3,566 0.01
06/12/2023  USD 2,955,649 EUR 2,763,877 ﬁgate Street Bank & Trust 20,980 0.03

25,006 0.04
06/12/2023 EUR 69,008 usb 73,422 \Westpac Banking Corp (150) (0.00)

(150)  (0.00)

21/11/2023  AUD 5,876  USD 3,795 Natwest Markets PLC 4 0.00
21/11/2023  AUD 4,688,368 USD 3,011,348 Citibank NA 19,784 0.03
03/10/2023  USD 64,984  BRL 322,930 g;?te Street Bank & Trust 465 0.00
03/10/2023  USD 6,531,826 BRL 32,166,302 Citibank NA 105,249 0.18
09/11/2023  USD 99,540 MXN 1,737,524 Barclays Bank PLC 195 0.00
09/11/2023 usb 145,090 MXN 2,512,114 JPMorgan Chase & Co 1,456 0.00
09/11/2023  USD 470,926 W 8,220,117 orve Street Bank & Trust 413 0.00
22/11/2023  USD 4,108 JPY 506,505 Natwest Markets PLC 77 0.00
22/11/2023 usb 13,687  JPY 1,962,753 Royal Bank of Canada 423 0.00

128,066 0.21
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03/10/2023  BRL 48,117  USD 9,757 Citibank NA (144)  (0.00)
03/10/2023  BRL 16,220,558  USD 3,304,821 JPMorgan Chase & Co (64,080)  (0.11)
03/10/2023  BRL 16,220,558  USD 3,305,522 Deutsche Bank AG (64,780)  (0.11)
03/11/2023  BRL 32,166,302 USD 6,502,927 Citibank NA (105,371)  (0.17)
22/11/2023  JPY 1,629,506  USD 11,393 HSBC Bank PLC (380)  (0.00)
22/11/2023  JPY 76,039,683  USD 520,622 Morgan Stanley & Co (15,751)  (0.03)
22/11/2023  JPY 76,039,683  USD 520,549 Natwest Markets PLC (15,678)  (0.03)
09/11/2023  NXN 4,058,074  USD 235,039 BNP Paribas SA (3,012)  (0.00)
09/11/2023  MXN 24,222,818  USD 1,398,081 ﬁg‘i‘te Street Bank & Trust (13,107)  (0.02)
09/11/2023 MXN 116,445,620  USD 6,690,563 Morgan Stanley & Co (32,616)  (0.05)
09/11/2023 WXN 116,445,620  USD 6,680,451 HSBC Bank PLC (22,503)  (0.04)
21/11/2023  USD 13,326 AUD 20,718 Australia and New Zealand (69)  (0.00)

Banking Group Ltd

(337,491)  (0.56)

2023 30 7,313
/
(11) UltraBond December 2023 78,143 0.13
(7) US5 Year Note December 2023 1,868 0.00
80,011 0.13
/
12 US 10 Year Note December 2023 (9,841) (0.02)
20 US 2 Year Note December 2023 (8,873) (0.01)
6 USUltra 10 Year Note December 2023 (19,781) (0.03)

(38,495)  (0.06)
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2023 30 410,586
( ) ( )
300,000 Fixed, 3.25%  Floating (EUR 6 Month LIBOR) EUR 20/12/2026 717 0.00
1,880,000 Fixed, 3.25%  Floating (EUR 6 Month LIBOR) EUR 20/12/2027 7,872 0.01
170,000 Fixed, 3.25%  Floating (EUR 6 Month LIBOR) EUR 20/12/2030 1,904 0.01
10,493 0.02
( ) ( )
Markit CDX Emerging
2,720,000 Elo oo sold 1.00 USD 20/12/2027 72,183 0.12
1,430,000 colombia Government ., ... . 1.00 usD 20/12/2028 8,031 0.01
International
80,214 0.13
90,707 0.15
( ) ( )
60,000 F1oating (EUR 6 Month ;. 0y 3 oo EUR 20/12/2043 (2,071)  (0.00)

LIBOR)
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57,500,632 96.06

88 (0.00)
25,006 0.04
(150)  (0.00)
128,066 0.21
(337,491)  (0.56)
80,011 0.13
(38,495)  (0.06)
80,214 0.13
10,493 0.02
(2,071)  (0.00)
2,413,700 4.03

59,860,003 100.00

@ 2023 30

)
© Payment in kind
(@ 1933 144

©
* 2023 30

*k

AUD
BRL
CNH
EUR
GBP
HKD
JPY
MXN
usD
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund

Statements of Financial Position

As at 30 September 2024

Assets
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Interest receivable
Due from brokers:

Margin amounts

Collateral amourts
Recenvable for investments sold
Cther assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Due to brokers:
Collateral amounts
Payable for investments purchased
Upfront premiums received on swap contracts
Irvestment management fees payable
Distribution fees payable
Audit fees payable
Manager fees payable
Administration and transfer agent fees payable
Custodian senvice fees payable
Agent company fees payable
Trustee fees payable
Legal fees payable
Miscellaneous fees payable

Total Liabilities (excluding Net Assets Attributable to

Heolders of Redeemable Participating Units)
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units

Thie sccompanying notas form an integral part of the finsncal siEmants.

Notes

3(c). 4
3B

3 e
3 (e

3 (d), 12

3(c), 4
3 (e)

7la)
7 (d)

7B
7<)
T (M

7ig)
7le)

192/351

30-5 30-5

usob usD
63,536,555 57,653,782
1,035,552 1,048 659
56,640 451,975
720,000 =
204,438 1,446 858
-_ 885
895176 1,630,458
66,448,402 62,232,741
312,883 337,641
- 20,000
617,419 1,275,325
6,364 —
121,886 433215
104,718 13,312
60,437 52,655
16,827 19,774
14,161 14,117
13,985 13,453
4,904 4658
2277 2,166
187 69,343
15,110 17,038
1,281,168 2,372,738
65,157,233 58,860,003
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

Notes 30-Sep-2024 30-Sep-2023

usD usp
Income
Interest income (b 71,834 70 752
Interest from firancial assets at fair value through proft or loss 3 () 4,955 874 4,980,915
Dividend income 3 (b 55181 £1,390
Met realized gainf{loss) on financial asselts and financial
liabilties at fair value through profit or loss on:

Irvestments (4,997 505) (4,671,513

Futures contracts BY 228 (500,018)

Fareign currency (861,843) 3,927 824

Swaps contracts 84 260 80,190
Met change in unrealized gainf{loss) on financial assets and

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss onc

Imvestments 10,995 %54 7779212

Futures contracts {42 530) 386 343

Fareign currency 146,230 617,019

Swaps contracts (57 .151) 256 935
Met Income 10,387,652 12,818,051
Operating Expenses
Imvestment management fees 7 {a) 519,282 515,782
Digtribution fees 7 {d) 519,282 515,782
Custodian service fees 7{f 89 275 72852
Administration and transfer agent fees 7 ey 84 880 80,535
Legal fees 69,203 99,116
Audit fees 67,798 52 694
Manager fees 7 31,480 41,791
Agent company fees T 19,473 19,342
Trustee fees 7 {e) 12,5582 10,504
Miscellaneous expense 18610 49 357
Total Operating Expenses 1,432,265 1,458,155
Met Income from Operations 8,965,287 11,480,896
Finance Costs:
Digtributions to participating Unitholders 3{h), 10 4037.033 4805 734
Profit after distributions and before Withholding Tax 4928254 6,655,162
Withholdirg Tax & - -_
Change in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units from Operations 4,828,254 6,655,162

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments.

193/351

22



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Statermments of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

Motes 30-Sep-2024 30-Sep-2023
usD usp

Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Farticipating

Units at Beginnming of Year 59,860, 003 68,952 0558
Total Proceeds from redeemable participating Units issued B 11,074 705 4 166 812
Total Payments for redeemable paricipating Units redeemed g (10,705,729) (19,914.023)
Change in net assets attnbutable to holders of redeemabie

participating Linits from operations 4928 254 6,655 162
Met Assats Attributable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units at Year End 65,157,233 58,860,003
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smlements. 23
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

MNotes 30-Sep-2024 30-Sep-2023
usD usp

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable

paricipating Units from operations 4 928 254 6,655 162
Adjustment for:
Exchange gains/{losses) on cash (4,101) (3,369)
Distributions to participating Unithalders 3(h), 10 4,037 033 4,805,734
Interest income (71,834) (70,752)
Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (4,955 874) {4,990 915)
Dividend income 55,181 {61.380)
Total 3,878,297 6,334,470
Met (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets:
Diue from beokers:

Margin amounts 3(e) 385,335 1,440 417

Collateral amourts 3 (&) {720,000 160,000
Receivable for investments sold 1,242 4159 (539, 769)
Cther assets 589 6,352
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (5,882 763) 7,180 204
Met Increasel{Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Due to brakers:

Caollateral amourts 3e) {20,000 (390,000)
Upfront premiums received on swap contracts G, 354 —
Payable for investments purchased (657 ,908) 14315
Audit fees payable 7,742 {1)
Custodian senvice fees payable Tif 532 (20, 166)
Agent compary fees payable 7 g 246 (315)
Trustee fees payable 7 1M (2,700
Administration and transfer agent fees payable 7ic) 44 (11,2209
Mizcellaneous fees payable (1,929) (9,697
Manager fees payable 7 (b} (2,947) 8008
Distribution fees payable 7(d) (8,593) (38,574)
Legal fees payable (69, 156) 58 542
Imvestment management fees payable 7 (=) (311,329) (232,205)
Financial liabilites at fair value thraugh profit or loss (24,748) (902,873)
Cash Provided by/{Used in) Operating Activities (2,167,282) 12,835,208
Interest received 5,040, 775 5,274 884
Dividend received 55,181 B5.845
Net Cash Provided byf{Used in) Operating Activities 2,928,664 18,296,057
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds received from redeemable participating Uinits issued 11,074,705 4 166,812
Payments for redeemable paricipating Units redeemed (10,705,729) (20,305,813)
Distributions to participating Unitholders (4,037 .033) {4,805.734)
Met Cash Provided by'{Used in) Financing Activities (3,668,057) (20,844, 737)
Exchange gains/{lossas) on cash 4101 3,359
Met increase/{decrease) in cash (735,282) (2,645,331)
Cash and cash equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,630 468 4 275 799
Cash and cash equivalents at End of Year 895,176 1,630,468
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. 24
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 20 September 2024

Organization

G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund (the "Sub-Trust’) is a sub-trust of the MUGC G5 Cayman Fund {the
“Trust™). The Trust is an open-ended exempted umbrella unit trust established by a trust deed under the Trusts Act
2011 {Revision) of the Cayman Islands dated 10 February 2010 (as supplemented or amended from time to time, the
Trust Deed”) executed by Brown Brothers Harnman Trust Company (Cayrman) Lirmted (Be “Trustee”) and Mitsubeshi
UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) 5. A (the “Manager”). The Trust is regulated under the Mutual Funds
Act [Revised),

Goldman Sachs Asset Management Intemational ("GSAMIT), a related party to the Sub-Trust, serves as Investment
Manager pursuant 1o an investment management agreement [Management Agreement’) with the Sub-Trust
The Imvestment Manager is responsible for overseeing and monitoring the day.-fo-day operations of the Sub-Trust's
affairs regarding their investments.

The Investment Manager apponted Goldman Sachs Asset Management, LP (GSAMT) and Goldman Sachs
Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Lid. ("GS Singapore’), each a related party of the Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
{"Goldman Sachs’) as Imvestment Advisors pursuant 1o a Master Intercompany Sub-Advisory Agreement and a Master
Intercompany Sub-Advisory and Participating Affiliate Services Agreement, respectively {collectively, the “Investment
Advisory Agreemenis”). Under the Investment Advisory Agreements, GSAM and GS Singapone provide the Sub-Trust
with continuous professional investment advice, and effects and manages all transactions on behalf of the Sub-Trust
As compensation for services rendered under the Investment Advisory Agreements, GSAM and G5 Singapore receive
afee

The Sub-Trust commenced operations and launched Uinit classes on the following dates:

. Class of Units Commencemant Dates
Clags AUD T June 2013
Class BRL T June 2013
Class JFY T June 2073
Class MEN T June 2013
Class RUE" T June 2013
Class LS T June 2013
Class LSO I 25 March 2024

* Effective 29 March 2024, Class RUB was re-designated as Class USD |l concurrently with the remeval of RUB cunmency exposung
in respect of that Class,

The Sub-Trust will be terminated on 29 September 2023, unless the Manager extends the duration of the Sub-Trust at
its discretion on consultation with the Trustee and the Investment Manager

The financial statements are presented in USD ("Unied States Dollar®), the Sub-Trust's functional and presentation
currency. The Investment Manager considers that this currency most accurately represents the ecanomic effects of the
undeslying fransactions, events and conditions of the Sub-Trust

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Sub-Trust is 1o acheve long-term capital appredation and income through imvesting,
under normal circumstances, in a8 diversified portfolic consisting primardy of LS. Dallar denominated non-investment
grade debt securties of emenging markets corporations, of corporatons that have Saanificant exposure to ané of mode
emerging markets countrias or are expected to benefit fromthe economic growth of emerging markets countries and LS.
Dollar denomenated non-investment grade debt securities ssued by governments, their agencies and instrumentalities
in emerging market countries. as determined by the Investment Manager, in its sole discretion (collactvely, “Non-
investrent grade emerging market-refated foced income securites”)

25
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G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

3. Summary of Material Accounting Policies
{a) Financial Statements
Basis of Preparafion of Financial Sfalements

The preparation of the financial staterments is m accordance wiath International Financial Reporing Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IFRS Accounting Standards”), The financial staternents have
bean prepared under the histoncal cost convention as modified by the revaluation of financial assels and liabilities
(ncluding dervative instruments) al fair value through profd or loss. The preparation of the financal staternents
requires managemsent to make certain estimates and assurnptions that may affect the amounts repodted in the financial
staternents and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

I Hew standards, amendments and interpretations effective for annual perieds beginning en or after 1
January 2024 and were effective or applicable to the Sub-Trust

The Sub-Trust adopted Cisclosure of Accountng Policies (Amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Satement 2] from
January 1, 2024. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the accounting policies thermseles, they
impacted the accountng policy mformation disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of “material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting poficies. The amendments
also provide guidance on the apphcation of materslity to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities to provide
usaful, entity-specilic accounting policy information that users need to understand other infarmation in the linancial
statements.

Thene are no other standards, amendments or interpretations to existng standards that are effectve for the financial
year beginning January 1, 2024 that would be expected to have matenal impact on the financial staterments of the Sub-
Trusgt

ii. Mew standards, amendments and interpretations issued but are not yet effective and have not been
garly adopted by the Sub-Trust

There ate no new standards, amendments and interprefations to existing standards that have been adopled by the
Sub-Trust.

(b} Investment Transactions, Related Investment Income and Operating Expenses

The Sub-Trust records its investment transactions on a trade date basis Realeed gains and losses are based on
the First In First Qut ("FIFQ") method, Doidend income and dividend expense ane recorded on the ex-dividend date
and intenest and interest expense are accrued over the Ife of the investment Owerdraft ex penses which ane accrued
as incurred, if any, are mncluded in interest expense, Interest from financial assets at fair valee through profit or loss
includes accretion of market descount, onginal issue discounts and amortization of premsums and s recorded into
income over the life of the underlying imvestment. Imterest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and dividend income are recognized and presented on a gross basis before withholding tax, f any, in the Staternents
of Comprehensive Income. Interest income includes interest from cash and cash eguivalents, Reimbursement of
expenses s represented in the Staterments of Comprehensive Income, if any.

Operating expenses are recognized on an accrual basis

Transaction costs, when incurred, are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

26
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G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

Summary of Material Accounting Policies [continued)
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
i Cilassificalion

The Sub-Trust classifies its investments based on both the Sub-Trust's business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cash fiow charactenstics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assetls is managed
and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Sub-Trust is primarily focused on fair value information and
wses that information 1o assess the assets' performance and to make decisions. The Sub-Trust has not taken the option
to irrevocably designate any equity securties as fair value through other comprehensive income. The contractual cash
flows of the Sub-Trust's debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are neither held
for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for coecting contractual cash flows and for sale.
The colecton of contractual cash flows is anly incidental 1o achieving the Sub-Trust's busmess model's abjective,
Consaguently, all investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss,

f Recognian and Derscogmbion

The Sub-Trust recognizes financal assets and fmancial liabilties on the date it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the investment. Purchases and sales of financial assets and financial kabilties are recognized using trade
date accounting, From trade date, any gains and |osses ansing from changes in far value of the financial assets or
financial liabdities are recorded i the Statements of Comprehansive Income.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the nvestments have expired or the Sulb-
Trust has transferned substantally all rsks and rewands of ownership

[} Fair Value Measurement Frinciples

Under IFRS 9, classification and measurement of debt assets will be driven by the entity's business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. A debtinstrument is measured
at amortized cost if the ohjective of the business maded is to hold the financials asset for the collection of the contractual
cash flows and the contractual cash flows under the instrument solely represents payments of prancipal and interest
["SPFI7.

A debt instrument is measured at fair value through comprehensive income if the objective of the business model is
to hold the financial asset both to collect contractual cash flows fram SPPI and to sell. All other debt instruments must
b recognized at fair valve through profit of loss. An enlity may however, at initial recognition, irevecably designate
a fimancial asset as measured at fair value through proft or loss f doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurament or recagnition inconsistency.

Damvative and equity instruments are rmeasured at fair value through profit or loss unless, for equity instruments not
held for trading, an irmevocable option i taken to measure at fair value throwgh other comprehensive income.

Uncier IFRS 9 the Sub-Trust's investment portiolio continues ta be inmally recarded at therr transaction price and then
measured at fair value subsequent to initial recognstion. Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fair value of the
financial assets or financeal hatilities at far value through proft or loss category are presented n the Statements of
Comgrehensive Income in the period in which they anse.

Financial assets classified as recewvables are camed at amorhized cost, if any. Financal habdties, other than those
at fair vabue through profit or loss, are measured at amortized cost Financial liabilites arising from redeemable Units
issued by the Sub-Trust are camied at the redemplion amount representing the Unitholders’ night to a residual amcunt
of the Sub-Trust's Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeermnable Participating Units ("Net Assets™).

The fair wvalue of all securities and demvatives is determinad according to the following policies.

{Hif) Dbl Securities
Dett securnibes, comprising cofporate debt and government debl, are valued on the basis of deater supplied quotatons
or by using a third party pricing service. When a debt security has been identified as being in default, the interest accrual

on the defaulted security may be stopped and, upon confirmation from refevant parties, the amount receivable may be
written off,

27
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G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

Summary of Material Accounting Policies [continued)

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {continued)
i Fair Value Measurement Principles (condinued)

(W) Exchange Listed Assels and Liabiilies

The fair value of exchange traded financi@l imvestments, comprising common stock and short-term investments, is
based upon guoted market prices at the year end date without any deduction for estimated future transaction costs,

{ni3) Money Markel Invesimenis

Money market investrents are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

{hid) Shares i Collective Investmen! Schames

The fair value of investments in open-ended investment funds, including collectve investment schemes, is based
upon the official published Met Asset Value ["NAV") per share as suppbed by the administrative agent of the funds in
accordance with valuaton paley of applicable furds as cutlined in the respectve Offenng Memarandurn,

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that vating or similar nghts are not the domenant factor n
deciding who contrals the entity, such as when any voting nghts relate to administrative tasks only and the refevant
activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements. A structured entity often has some or all of the following
featudes or attributes; (a) restricted activities, (B) a narfow and well-defingd objective, such as to provide investment
opponunities for investors by passing on risks and rewards associated with the assets of the structured entity to
imvestors, [c) nsufficient equity to permit the structured entity to finance its activities without subordenated financial
suipport and (d) inancing in the ferm of multiple contractualy linked instruments 1o imvestors that create concentratons
of credit or other risks (ranches).

(i) Derivalives

A derivative is an instrument whose fair value is derived from an underlying instrurent, index reference rate or a
combination of these factors. Derivative instruments may be privately negotiated contracts which are often referred to
a% over the counter (OTCT) dervatives ar they may be listed and traded on an exchange. Dervative confracts may
imvolve future commitments to purchase or sell financial mstruments or commaodities at specified terms on a specified
date, or to exchange intenest payment streams o currencies based on a notional or contractual amaunt

Dienivative contracts ane stated at fair value and recognized as financial assets and financial liabilities on the Staternents
of Financial Poston, Gains and losses resulting from the change = the fair value ane reflected on the Statements of
Comgrehensive Income as a component of change in unrealized gainf{loss), Realized gains or losses ane recorded on
terminaton or from penodic cash flow payments.

(iSa) Forward Foreign Currency Confracls

In a ferward forelgn currency contract, the Sub-Trust agrees to receive of deliver a fixed quantity of ene currency for
another, at a pre-determined price at a future date. Purchases and sales of farward foreign currency contracts having
the same noticnal value, settliement date, counterparty and right to settle net are generally offset (which result in a net
foreign currency position of zero with the counterparty) and any realized gains or losses are recognized on trade date.

Forward foreign currency contracts are valued at mid by third party pricing service providers,

(W5h)  Fulures Conlracts

Futures contracts are contracts to buy or sell a specified commodity, securnty, or index and are valved based on
exchange settlementilast sale prices, last bid or ask process on the exchange or mdependent market quotes. Initial
margin deposits, in either cash or securities, are reguired to trade in the futures market Unrealized gains or losses
on fulures confracts are recognized to reflect the fair value of the contracts and are included as companent of the net
change in unrealized gains or losses on the Sub-Trust's Statements of Comprehensive Income, Vanation margin is
recened or pad, depending on whether unrealized gains or losses are incumed. When the conlract is terminated, the
Sub-Trust will recognize a realzed gain of loss equal to the difference between the value of the contract at the time it
weas entered into and the trme it was closed.

28
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 20 September 2024

3. Summary of Material Accounting Policies {continued)

{c) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {continuad)
i Fair Value Measuremen! Principles {confnwed)
s Derivalives jconlinued)
{(m5c)  Swap Confracts

Swap contracts, including interest rate swaps and cradit defaul swaps, can be linked to any number of underlying
investrnents and indices, and terms can vary greatly. Cash flows are exchanged based an the underiying investment or
index. Upfront payments, which represent a risk premsum, are not amortized. Swap contradis are camed at fair value
and the value of the swap contract is based on a counterparty provided prce, third party pricing service of valuation
modal. The model considers variows inputs including the fair value of the underlying investment or index, the msks
associated with the underlying and the specilic terms of the contract. In connection with these agreements, securities
of cash may be identified as collateral or margin in accordance with the terms of the respedlive swap agreements
to provide assets of value and recourse in the event of default or bankruptoyfinsclvency. This collateral or margin is
primarily denaminated in fund curmency, and is paid from the custody acoount to the counter party broker.

Bilateral swap contracts are agreements in which the Sub-Trust and a counterparty agree o exchange perodic
paymeants on a specified notional amount or a net payment upon termination. Bilateral swap transactions are privately
negotiated i the OTC market and payments are setifed through dwect payments between the Sub-Trust and the
counterparty. By contrast certain swap transactions can be executed by being submitbed through a derivatives clearing
member ("DOM), asting in an agency capacity, 1o a cantral countesparty ("CCPY) (“eeantrally cleased swaps”), in which
case all payments are settied with the CCP through the DCM. Swaps are marked-to-market daily using pricing vendar
quotations, counterparty or cleannghouse prices or moadel prices, and the change n value, if any, is recorded as
an unrealized gain or loss. Upon entering into 8 swap contract, the Sub-Trust is required to satisfy an initial margin
requirement by delivenng cash or securibies to the counterparty (o in some cases, segregated in a tripary account
on behalf of the counterparty), which can be adjusted by any mark-to-market gains or losses pursuant to bilateral ar
centrally clearad arrangements. For centrally cleared swap contracts the dady change in valuation, if any, s recorded
a3 fair value through profit or loss

(i) Al Securibies and Derfvalives

If & quaoted market price is not available from a third party pricing senvice or a dealer, or a quotation s believed
to be materally inaccurate, the fair value of the investment is determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation
technigues include the use of recent market transactions, reference to the current fair value of another investment that
1% substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses or any ather techniques that provides a reliable estimate aof
prices obtained in actual market transactons.

Such securities and dervatves shall be valued at their probable realzation value as determined by a Values, The Valuer
during the years ended 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023 was Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC and the valuaticn
function was pedormed by Goldman Sachs Asset Management Division Contiollers (CAMD ControBers”)

The irvestments have been valued in accordance wath generally accepied accounting principles that require the use
of certain estimates and assumptions. Although these estimates and assumptions are based on the best available
inforrration, actual results could be matenally different from these estimates.

The Valuer was used to determne faw value on the following secunbes during the year ended 30 Sepltember 2024

Fair Valum % of et

Security Daseription UsD Agsule
1,480,000 of Alfa Bank AC Via Alfa Bond Issuance PLC, 5.85%, due 15042030 [ 0.00%

2.530,000 of Credit Bank of Moscow Via CBEOM Finance PLC, T.50%, due
S11v20aT o 0. 00%:
28
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 20 September 2024

3. Summary of Material Accounting Policies {continued)

{c) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {continuad)
i Fair Value Measuremen! Principles {confnwed)
(R Al Securiles and Dernvalives  (coniimued)

The Yaluer was usad to determine fawr value on the following security during the year ended 30 Saptember 2023,

Fair Value % of Not

Security Descriptian usD Asssls
1,480,000 of Alte Bank AD Via Alfa Bond Issuance PLC, 5.85%, dus 150472030 [i] 0.00%
2.530,000 of Credit Bank of Moscow Via CEOM Finance PLC, 7.50%, due

1 0v0e? o 0.007%
w Transfers bofween lovels of the fawr value hisrarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy, if any, are deemed to have occured at the beginning of the
reporting year.

id) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents (short term, highly iquid investments that are readily conventible to knewn amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignilicant risk of changes in value), including time deposits, commercial paper and
certificates of depost, are valued at amortized cost. which approxmmates fair value.

Cerificates of deposit and tme depasats are reclassfied from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to cash
and cash eguivalents as they are short term, highly liquid, readily convertible to Known ameunts of cash and subject to
an msignificant risk of changes in value

Total Cash
Cash and Cash
Cash  Equivalents Eguivaloms

usD UsSD uso
30-Sep-2024 3665 591510 935,176
30-Sep-2023 8726 1,63 742 1,630 468

() Due framito Brokers

De fromito brokers consists primariy of cash collateral (for dervative contracts) and margin amounts receivable from!
payable to the Sub-Trust's clearing brokers and varicus counterparties. Collateral amounts due fromito broker balances
are valued at cost. The amounts receivable from and payable to beokers represents cash settied in the Sub-Trest's
braker accounts, These balances are related to cagh held as collateral or margin on swaps and futures with clearing
counterparties, futures marngin cash receivable/payable to the Sub-Trust's futures clearing merchants, and centrally
cleared swaps margin cash recevable/payable to the Sub-Trust's centrally cleared swaps clearing merchants

Thesa amounts are recognized initially at fair value and subseguently measured at amontzed cost. The Sub-Trust's
duse from Brokers balances are subject to the expected credit l0ss model within IFRS 9. No balances are considerad
impaired and no amounts have been written off in the pericd

Collateral amounts and margin amounts included in due fromfto brokers are disclosed i the Statements of Financial
Posataon as at 30 September 2024 and 30 Septernber 2023, respectively,

i Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at the date of the
transaction Assats and liabikties of the Sub-Trust denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the Sub-Trust at the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at the period end date.

an
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For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

3. Summary of Material Accounting Policies [continued)
{f) Fereign Currency Translation (continued)

Foreign cumrency exchange diferences arsing on translation and realized gains and losses on disposals or setferments
of agsets and liabahibes are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income, Foreign currenty exchange gaing
of losses relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss and all ather foreign currency exchange gains or
loases relating to monetary items, incleding cash, are reflected in the net realized gain/loss) on investments or net
change in unrealzed gainf{loss) on investments in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

ta) Redeemable Units

All receemable participating Units issved by the Sub-Trust provides the Unithoklers with the right to redeem for cash at
the value proportionate to the Unithoider's share in the Sub-Trust's net assets on the redemption date. In accordance
with 1AS 32 "Financial Instruments: Presentation”, such Units have been classified as a financial liabilsty at the value of
the redemption amount in the Statements of Financial Position. The Sub-Trust is contractually cbliged to redeerm Units
in acoordance with the Offering Memarandum

{h) Distributions Payable to Holders of Redeemable Units

Distnbutions/Dividends payable on the redeemable participating Units are recognized in the Staterments of
Comgrehensive Income as Fnance Casts.

a, Financial Assets and Financial Liabllities at Fair Value through Frofit or Loss

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the amendment to IFRS 12 “Fair Value Measurement” are described
bl

Level 1 = Unadjusted gquoted prices in active markets that ane accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or kabilties;

Lewvel 2 - Quoted prces in markets that are not active of inancial instruments for which signdicant mputs are abservable
{including but not limited to quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilty and credit
spreads), ather directly or indirectly. This may include the Valuer's assumptions in determining fair value measurement;

Level 3 - Prices or valuations that require significant uncbservable inputs (including the Valuer's assumpbions in
determining fair valuwe measuremant).

The bevel in the fair value heerarchy within which the fair value measurement & categonzed in s entirety shall be
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in #s entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair
value measurement uses oheervable inputs that require significant adjustrmant based on unobsarvable inputs, that
mieasurement i a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the ssgndicance of a parteular mput 1o the fair value measurement
in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

As at 30 September 2023, the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss contain investments in underlying
funds that have been fair valuad in accordance with the policies set out above, The shares of the underlying funds ane
not pubscly traded; redemptions can only be made by the Sub-Trust on the redemption dates and are subject to the
required notice pericds specified in the Offering Memorandum, As a result, the camrying value of underlying funds may
nat be indicative of the value ultimately realized on redemglion.

The fair value of the investments in the underlying funds i primanly based on the lates! available redemption price
as reported by the administrator of the underlying funds. The Sub-Trust may make adjustments to the value based on
conselerations such as; iquidity of the Sub-Trust's hokling in the underlying funds o their underying investments, the
value date of the NAY provided and any restrictions on redemptions.

B3

202/351



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

The following tables show financial assets and financial liabdties recognized at fair value, analyzed between the three

levels descnbed previoushy

Cash of USD 30,031 and ISD 41,185 has been pledged as margn for open futures contracts and open cenfrally

cleared swaps contracts, respectively, as at 30 September 2024

Financial Assels measured at fair value

30-Sop-2024
Fair walue rieasunermen at 30-Sep-2024
Lewel 1 USD Level 2 USD Lewel 3 USD Taotal LSD
Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss
Corporate Bonds — 63,046 935 — 63,046 936
Government Bonds -_ 196,680 -_ 196,680
Commeon Stocks 23,964 - - 23,964
Forward Foreign Cumency Contracls — 268,875 — 268,875
Fulures Contracts 1,471 - - 1471
Swap Conlracts — 265 — 265
Tedal 25435 BIETIEEE — 53,558 261
Financial Liabilitles measured at falr value
I0-Sep-2024
Fair walue measurenmen at 30-Sep-2024
_ _ _ Lewsl 1 USD Level 2 USD Level 3 USD Total USDH
Financial liabilties at Tair value through proft of loss
Foraand Forsign Cumancy Conlracls —_— 311,562 —_— 31,382
Futures Contracts 2,485 — — 2,485
Swap Conlracls — 8,780 — &, 7Te0
Todal JABS 330473 — _ 333 EST

* Represents securties valsed a8 nil Amount represents vakasBons of Russian imvestrents for which the valuer Bas detesmined include significant

uncbsercable inputs as of 30 Sepfember 2024,

Cash of USD 7,313 and USD 410,585 has been pledged as margin for open futures contracts and open centrally

cleared swaps contracts, respectively. as at 30 September 2023,

Financial Assels measured at fair value
3-Sep-2023

Fair value measurerment at 30-Sep-2023

Lawel 1 USD

Financial assels al fair valee through profit or loss

Lawel 2 USD

Lewel 3 USDH Total USD

Ceorporate Bonds — 56,900,178 — 56,500,178
Government Bonds - 00,454 - B0, 454
Inwestment Fund - - - 2a
Foraard Foreign Cumancy Contracls — 153,072 — 153,072
Fulures Conlracts 50,011 —_ —_ B0,011
Swap Coniracls — 80,707 _— 80,707
Tedal 80,058 57744 411 — 5T B34 510
* Reprienty securitios valued of mi, Amnount b8 viliml of Russien rolsimeety for which the valsel has debernined inciude significant

unibearsabie inpuls ms of 30 Sepheenber 2023 'I'nhlnldmtlnl the same positions wens kel 8 of B Fund's peior fiscal year and, 30 Seplember 2022,

they widen clasadibd i sdthar Loved 1 o Ll 2.

Financial Liabilitles measured at falr value
30-Sep-2023

Fair value measuneman at 30-Sep-2023

Financial liabildies at Tair value through proft of loss

bl I US0 | _ LeveiZUSO  _ Level JUSD Total USD

Feratard Fereign Cumency Cenlracls — 137,641 — 137,641
Fulures Contracts 358,485 — — 38485
Swap Conlracts — 2,071 — 2,071
Todal 38,485 335712 - 378 207

At 30 Septerber 2024 and 30 September 2023 there were bwo securities, valued at nil, classified as Level 3
a2
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Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss {continued)

Dwring the year ended 20 September 2024, there were no transfers bebween Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair
value merarchy for financial assets and financial liabdites which wene reconded at fair value. Durmg the year ended 30
Seapternber 2023 thare were no transfers babeeen Level 1 and Level 2 and secuntes with a fair value of LISD 253,000
transderred from Level 2 1o Level 3. These securities were transferred to Leved 3 as a result of unobservable inputs on
a discount applied due to sanchions that impact the securities.

The followang table presents the transfers bebtween hierarchy leveis for the year ended 30 Seplember 2023

Laved 1 Lowvel 2 Loved 3

usD UsD uso

Transters from Leved 2 to Lewel 3 - {253 0005 253,000
Total 2 {253, 0004 253,000

Transfers batwean levels of the fair value hierarchy, for the purpose of prepaning above table, are deemed to have
cecured at the beginning of the financial year

The hofings which transferred from Level 2 to Level 3 redate to Corporate Bonds: Alfa Bank AQ Via Alfa Bond Issuance
PLC and Credit Bank of Moscow Via CBOM Finance PLC

Fimancial Assets and Financial Liabilities not carried at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed

Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdraft, if any, are classified as Level 1, All other assets and liabilties mot
measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Refer to the Staterments of Financial
Position for a breakdewn of assets and liabilities and to Note 3{c) for a description of the valuation techniques

The puttable vafue of redeemable participating Units classified as a financial liability is calculated based on the net
difference between total assets and all other liabilibes of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the Sub-Trust's Offering
Memorandum, These Units are not traded on an active market. A dermand feature i attached to these Units, as they
ame redeemable at the holders’ option and can be put back to the Sub-Trust at any dealing date for cash equal to
proportionate Units of the Sub-Trust's NAV attributable to the Units class. The fair value is basad on the amount payable
on dermand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid. The impact of discounting
in this instance is not material As such, Level 2 is deemed o be the most appropriate categorization for Met Assets
Aftributable to Holders of Redeamable Participating Units.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Derivatives

In order to bettar define its contractual rights and to sacure rights that wall help the Sub-Trust mitegate its counterparty
sk, the Sub-Trust may enter inte an International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. Master Agreement ("ISDA
Master Agreement’) or similar agreements with #5 dervatve cantract counterparties. An ISDA Master Agreement
i% a bilateral agreement between the Sub-Trust and a counterparty that governs OTC dervatives, including foreign
exchange contracts, and typically contains, among other things, coliateral posting terms and netting provisions in the
event of a default andfor termination event. The provisions of the ISDA Master Agreement typically permit a single
net payment in the event of a defaull (close-aut netting) or similar event, including the bankruptey o insalency of the
counterparty.

Coliateral and margin requirements differ between exchange traded dermatives and OTC derivatives Margin
requirements are established by the broker or cleanng house for exchange-fraded and centrally cleared derwatives
{financial fulures contracts, opbons and centrally cleared swaps) pursuant to the governing agreements for those
instrument types, Brokers can ask for margin in excess of the minimum in certain circumstances. Collateral terms are
contract-specific for OTC dervatives (foreign currency exchange contracts, options and certain swaps). For dervatives
traded under an ISDA Master Agreemeant, the collateral requiremeants. are typically calculated by netting the mark-to-
market amount for each transacton under such agreement and comparing that amount te the value of any collateral
currently pledged by the Sub-Trust and the counterparty. Additionally, the Sub-Trust may be required to post additional
collateral to the osunterparty o the form of inbal margin, the terms of which would be outlingd n the confirmation af
the OTC transaction.
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Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities {coentinued)
Derivatives (continued)

For financial reporting purposes, cash collateral that has been pledged to cover obligations of the Sub-Trust and cash
coltateral recerved from the counterparty, o any, 1S reported separately on the Statements of Financml Position as dueg
fromidue to broker. Non-cash collateral pledged by the Sub-Trust, if any, is noted in the Schedules of Investments.
Generally, the amount of collateral due from or 1o a counterparty must excesd a minimum transfer amount threshold
before atransfer is required to be made. To the extent amounts due to the Sub-Trust from its counterparties are not fully
coltateralized, contractually o otherwise, the Sub-Trust bears the nisk of loss from counterparty nonperformance, The
Sub-Trust attemnpts to mitigate counterparty risk by only entering into agreements with counterparties that & believes to
b of good standing and by manitaring the fmancial stability of thase counterparties.

Additionally, the netting of assels and liabilities and the offsetting of collateral pledged or received are based on
confraciual netling/sel-off provisions in the |SDA Master Agreement or samilar agreements. However, in the event of a
default or insahvency of a counterparty, a court could determine that such rights are net enforceable due to restrictions
or prohibitions against the right of setoff that may be imposed due to a particular junsdiction’s bankmuptcy or insohency
laws.

The Sub-Trust's net exposure to denvative instruments was immaterial a5 it was balow 1% as at 30 September 2024
and 30 September 2023,

Taxation

There are at presant no corporation, income, capital gains, profiés or other taxes in the Cayman Islands which would
apply to the prafits in respect of the Sub-Trust Nor are there gift, estate or inhentance taxes in the Cayman [sands,
The Trustee has applied for and has received from the Governor-in-Cabinet of the Cayman Islands an undertaking in
accordance with Section 81 of the Trusts Act (a5 amended) that for a penod of S0 vears fram the date of the créaton
of the Master Trust no law which is thereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any taxes or duty to be levied
on income of on capital assels, gans or apprecmabion of any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax shall
apply to the property comgrised in of any income ansing under the Sub-Trust or to the Trustee or Unitholders theseof
in respect of any such property or income; provided that a Unitholder who is at any time resident or domiciled in the
Cayman Islands (other than any object of a chantable trust or power or an exempted or ordinary non-resident company
incorparated in the Cayman |stands) shall be liable in and in respect of such time ta all and any tax and duty as & such
undertaking had never been given and nothing in the relevant section of the Trusts Law shall be construed as exempting
any such person resident or domiciled in the Iskands from any law imposing any tax or duty refemmed to in the Trusts Act.

The Sub-Trust currently incurs withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains,
Such income ar gan is recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statements of Comprehensive Income. Withhalding
taxes are shown as a separate item in the Statements of Comprehensive ncome:

For the years ended 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, there were no withholding taxes.

The Sub-Trust invests in securiies issued by entities which are domaciled in countries other than the Cayman Islands.
Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non residents,
such as the Sub-Trust. Typically, these capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a sef assessment basis
and, therefore. such taxes may not be deducted by the Sub-Trust's brokers on a “withholding” bass.

In accordance with 1AS 12 - Income Taxes, the Sub-Trust is required to recognize a tax liability when it is probable that
the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Sub-Trust's capial gains sourced from
such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowiedge of all the facts and circumstances.

The tax |@bility is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authories using the tax
laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reponting year. There & sometimes
uncertainty about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment funds. This creates uncerainty about
whether or not a tax Eability will ultimately be paid by the Sub-Trust Therefore when measuring any uncertain tax
labilities management considers all of the: relevant facts and circumstances available at the tme which could influence
the likelihood of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities,
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B, Taxation (continued)

For the years ended 30 Septemnber 2024 and 30 September 2023, the Sub-Trust has measured vncertain tax liabilities
and related interest and penalties with respect to foreign capital gains taces at nil. While this represents management's
best estimate there rermains a nsk that foreign tax authorities wall atternpt o collect taxes on capital gains earned by the
Sub-Trust. This could happen without giving any pror warming, pessibly on 3 retrospectve baws, and could result in a
substantial loss to the Sub-Trust

T. Significant Agreements and Related Parties
{a) Investment Management and Advisors Fee

Under the terms of the Management Agreement, the Invesirment Manager receves. from the assets of the Sub-Trust,
a guarterly fee accruing daily and calculated and paid on a guarterly basis in armears equal to 0.80% of the Sub-Trust's
average tAY determined as of the last business day of the appecable quarter end, adjusted to reflect any subscriptions,
redemphions and distnbutions during the applicable calendar quaner, Subject to the consent of the Investrment Manager
of Trustes, the Investiment Manager or Trustes resenve the right io waive 1ees, of mpose greater of lesser lees on, orto
rebate all or a portion of any of the investment management fees to any Unithclder, including affiliates of the Investment
Manages, as may be agreed 1o by the Investment Manager, Trustee and the applicable Unholder. The investment
managemsant fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September 2024
and 30 September 2023, respectively

{b) Manager Fee

Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) A, ("MIBL" or “the Manager’) serves as the Manager of
the Sub-Trust

MIBL has bean authorized a8 a commencial bank and |2 regulated in the Grand Duchy of Luxembeurg by the Commmission
de Survedlance du Secteur Financier ("CSSF7). it was incorporated in Luxembourg as a société anonyme on 11 Apri
1974 as a majonty=owned subsidiary of The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd

The Manager receives, from the assets of the Sub-Trust, a fee accruing daily and paid cn a quarterly basis in arrears
equal to 0.05% of the Sub-Trust's average MAY. The manager fees for the years ended 30 September 2024 and 30
Septernber 2023 are disclosad in the Staterments of Comprehensive Income, respectively.

ic) administration and Transfer Agent Fea

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. ("BEH) is the Sub-Trust's Administrator and Transfer Agent. The Admavistrator and
Transter Agent pertorm certain daydo-day administrative tasks on behalf of the Sub-Trust, including maintenance of the
Sub-Trust's books and records, calculation of the MAV and payments of the Sub-Trust's axpeanses

EBH Is pald solely out of the assets of the Sub-Trust including asset-based, salekeeping, transaction, servicing and
other fees as may be agreed upon from time to time with the Investment Manager. Additionally, at month end, the
securties held by the Sub-Trust ane segregated based on the transaction type and a fee rate is applied. The Sub-Trust
will pay such fees monthly in amrears

Annual administration and transfer agent charges on the value of month end average net assets will be assessed at the
Sub-Trust level, based on the following schedule;

Assels up lo USD 500 mlion S0bps
Assets between USD 500 milkon - USD 1 bilon 4.0bps
Assets above USD 1 billion 3.0bps

The administration and transfer agent fees are disciosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years
ended 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, respectively

{d) Distribution Fee

The Manager may, from time 1 time, appaint one or mare enbibes as distrbutor (the “Japanese Distnbutars™ or the
"Districutors”) of the Sub-Trust in Japan

L]
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T. Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)
{d} Distribution Fee [continued)

The Japanese Distnbutors or Destributors recernve a fee, acouing daily and paid on a quarterly basis in arears, equal

1o 0.50% of the Sub-Trust's arerage NAY, adjusted to reflect any subscriptons, redemphions or distibutions dunng the
applicable calendar quarter,

The distribution fees are disciosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Incoms for the years ended 30 September
2024 and 20 September 2023, respectively.

(e} Trustes Fee

Brown Brothers Harmman Trust Campany (Cayman) Limited acts as the Trestee for the Sub-Trust The Triustes
responsible for the overall supervision of the Sub-Trust's assets, pursuant to the terms of the Declaration of Trust The
Sub-Trust will pay such fees, monthly in armears, to the Trustee egual to 0.02% of the average NAY subject to an annual
i of LSO 10,000

The trustes fees are disclosed in the Staterments of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September 2024
and 30 September 2023, respectively

if) Custodian Fee

The Trustee has delegated the responsibility for custody of the Sub-Trest's assets to BBH. The custedian carries out the
usual dubles regarding custody, cash and securfies deposts, without any restriction. Fees are charged on safekeeping
of securties on a monthly basis. At month end, the securities held by the Sub-Trust are segregated based on the
country of origin. The USD equivalent fair value is derrvad for each securily and a fee rate is applied based on country
of origin,

The custedian fees are disclosed in the Staterments of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September 2024
and 30 Septernber 2023, respectively

[[:1] Agent Company Fee
Goldman Sachs Asset Management Co.. Lid. acts as the Agent Company in Japan of the Sub-Trust The Agent

Company receives a fee, accruing daily and pasd on a quarterly basis in arrears, equal to 0.03% of the Sub-Trust's
average MNAV.

The agent company fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September
2024 and 30 September 2023, respectively.

8. Redeemable Participating Units

Classas |5 saie Price Mlinimuem [nitial Bl.lh'!-bl’ﬂn
AD AUD 10 AUID 100

BRL usD 10 UsD 100

Y JFY 10,000 JEY 10,000

XN UsD 10 USD 100

RUE® UsD 10 UsD 100

usD usD 10 USD 100

USD i USD 10 USD 100

* Effective 24 March 2024 Class RUB was corvered to Class USD 1

Units wall be cffered for sale on each business day at the NAV per Unit of the applicable class.
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10.

Redeemable Participating Units (continued)

Units are redeemable at the option of the Unithalder wpon notice given in accordance with the terms of the Cffering
Memaorandum, Linits will be redeamed at the MAY per Linit of the applicable Class prevailing a5 of close of business on
the applicable Redemption Date, provided that the Investment Manager may, in its sole discretion, reduce such amount
by any expenses incurred in cannection with such redemplion,

As of 30 Septerber 2024 and 30 September 2023 there are tvo Unitholders, one of which is a related party to the
Manager.

The tollowsng surmmarizes the activity in the Sub-Trust's Units:

Mumber of Units
Class AUD Class BRL Class Y Class MEXN Class RUB" Class UWED Class UBD I
Bealance 30 Geplember 206 [ FAE] J166,499 CFEEE] FAENLT 11,848,877 2,050,087 -
Subreriptiont of mdssmable
pampating Linit 12347 85,161 5836 335,560 13.230 198,341 =
Redenptions of ndeemable
participating Uinits (280, 119} {545, &0} (23568 {B4B.5TH} [4ETA B0 {111.960) =
Balance 30 Bey W0E B0, 463 2,503,230 24,307 3,636,368 7, 3E5, 206 2,147,358 -
Subscriptions of mdssmable
participating Lnits 125,374 51,354 1642 104,555 2 668 1,306,925 1,382
Reedieripliong of bbby
participating Lnits BON4E) (0,038, T4 (nabe {682 087} {52171} {258, Bai) 85,108
Transfers of redeemable
particpating st = = = - 6 B85 554} = 6. 0955 S
Balance 30 Beplember 2024 0 488 1,630,874 16,388 2088, 060 = 3, 15, M o,

* Effective 26 March 2024 Class RUB was convered lo Class USD 1.

HAY per Unit

The congideration recarved of paid for redeermable particspating Units ssued o re-purchased respectively is based on
the value of the Sub-Trust's net assets value per redeemable participating Units at the date of the transacton.

The NAY and MAVY per Uinit for each Unit class outstanding for the Sub-Trust are as foliows

30-Sep-2023
Unit Class Nat Assat Valun HAV Por Unit Nat Assat Valun HAV Par Unit
Class ALD U0 3765256  AUD  7.369596 USD 3016528 AUD 6755047
Class BAL U0 3562781 USD 2425833 USD EAI04E8  USD 2470158
Class JPY uso TIATHD  JPY GIT2ISTS USD 1017338 JPY 6119852291
Elass MXH usE MAT4IE7  USD  S348873 USD 14067165 USD 5346787
Class RUB® uso - =D - UsD 18,733,130 S0 2671615
Clags LD uso 25,635 4598 =D 80232 USD 15,565,278 s 7248560
Class USD I USD 19889531 USD 2937085 USD - usp -

* Effective 20 March 2024 Class RUB was convered 1o Clags USD I

Distributions

Distributions are made at the election of the Investment Manager and the amounts deciared and paid during the years
ended 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023 are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income when
net assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units are classified as a financial Eability. Distributions
to Unitholders reduce the Sub-Trust's BAY per Unit without any correspondmg change in the number of Units per
Unitholder. This results in a Unithelder’s overall investment in the Sub-Trust being reduced. In addition, any distributions
paid during a year which are in excess of the Sub-Trust's accumulated net incomef(loss) from operations results in a
portion of the distributions being a return of capital
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks

The Sub-Trust's investing activities ex pose it to vanous types of risks that are associated with the financial investments
and markets in which it and its underlying Sub-Trust invest. Thess may be both dervative and non-dervative financial
imvestments. The Sub-Trust's investment portfolic i comprised of debt and derivative investments at the penod end.
The Trustes has appointed the [nvestment Advisors 1o manage the rsks of the Sub-Trugt The sgnificant types of
financial risks which the Sub-Trust is exposed to are market risk, Bguidity risk and credit sk Events such as war,
mildary conflict, acts of temonsm, social unrest, natural disasters, recessions, inflation, rapid nterest rate changes,
supply chain disruptions, sanctions, the spread of infectious #iness or public health threats could also significantly
imgact the Sub-Trust and its investments. The Offering Memorandum provides details of these and ather types of risk
some of which are additional to that information provided in these financial staternents.

Asset allocation is determined by the Sub-Trust's Investment Advisors who manage the allocation of assets to achieve
the investrment objectve as defaded in Note 2 Achievement of the investment obiective involves taking risks. The
Investment Advisors exercise judgment based on analysis, research and risk management techniques when making
investment decisions, Divergence from the benchmark andior the target asset allocation and the composition of the
portfolo is monitored in accordance with the Sub-Trust's risk management policy.

The existence of multiphe investment vehscles investng in the same underlying fund, presents ceram unigue nsks to
investors. The Sub-Trust may be materially affected by the actions of another antity investing in the sarme underlying
fund. For exarnple, it another Unithokder of the underlying fund redeems some or all of its interests, the Sub-Trust,
may expenance higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing kower retums. Similarly, the underlying fund
may become less diverse due o redempbons from its other Uintholders, resulting in increased porthobo nsk. The
undesrtying fund may restrict its investment activiies or be precluded from investing in certain instruments due to
regulatory restrictions on certain of 8% direct or indirect investars or otherwse, which may have an adverse effect on the
performance of the underlying fund, and, in turn, the Sub-Trust.

The risk management policies employed in relation to the Sub-Trust are detailed below:

{a) Market Risk

The patential for changes in the fairvabue of the Sub-Trust's investrment portfolio s referred to as market risk. Commonly
used categories of market risk include currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk

. Lurrency resk may result from exposures to changes in spot prices, fonvard prices and volatifies of cunrency
rates.

. |nterest rate risk may result from exposures to changes in the level, slope and curvature of the varicus yield
curves, the volatiity of interest rates, mortgage prepayment speeds and credd spreads.

* Other price sk is the risk that the value of an mvestment will lluctuate as a result of changes in marke! prices
cther than those ansing from currency risk or interest rate rssk and may result from exposures to changes in
the prices and volatities of individual equities, equity baskets, equity indices, and commeodities

The market rigk strategy is driven by the Sub-Trust's inwvestment risk and return objectives,

Market risk is managed through the application of risk budgeting principles. The Investment Advisor determines an
appropriate risk target, commonly referred to as Tracking Emor, employing a sk budgeting framework

A Market Risk Analysis Group at Goldman Sachs (IMD MRA'} is responsible for independently mon#oring, analyzing
and reporting the market nsks taken by the Investrment Advisors, IMD MRA uses a number of risk metrcs to monitor the
market risks including monitoring sensitivities, and Tracking Error,

Dietails of the Sub-Trust's investment portfclio at the reporting date are disclosed in the Schedules of Investments. All
individual debt, collective investment schemes and dernivative investrments are disclosed separately,
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11 Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
fa) Market Risk [continued)
{i) Currancy Risk

Each currency class of the Sub-Trust will seek to hedge agamst each relevant currency. This i referred 10 as Class
Hedging. The pedormance of the BRL Class and MXN Class may diverge matenally from the performance of the
imrestmeants, because flucheations in the exchange rate between U.S. Dolars and the respective class currencies will
affect the performance of the BRL Class and MXN Class Units. Moreover, where a Unitholder invests in Units of a
Hedged Class that are hedged into a class currency other than the home cumency of the Unitholder's own jurisdiction,
such Unitholder will be exposed to the significant risk that the class currency will depreciate against such home currency.
As at 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, the proportion of assets hedged in the BRL and MXN classes was
approximately 100% of the net assets hedd in the respectve classes. As at 30 September 2023, and for the penod
ended 28 March 2024 when it was converted to Class USD I, 0% of the RUB class were hedged back to the RUB.

Hedging with the relevant class currency is not necessanly complete and each cumency class may be subject to
currency exchange fluctuation of the currency in which the Units have been issued,

As the denomination currency of the BRL Class and MXN Class are USD, the NAV per Un#t of those classes s also
subject to the USDIBRL and USDIMXN rate, respectively.

In principle, each class of the Sub-Trust is hedged to the currency of that class. Hedging gains and losses, with respect
to hedgng activity undedaken by the Sub-Trust on behalf of a currency class, are allocated solely 1o that respective
currency class.

The Sub-Trust may invest in financial investments and enter into transactions denoménated in cumencies other than
its functional currency. Consaquently, the Sub-Trust may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its functional
curfency relatve to other fareign currencies may change in a mannes that has an adverse effect an the value of that
portion of the Sub-Trust's assets or liabilites denominated in currencies ather than its functional currency. Pleassa refer
to the Schedules of Investments of the Sub-Trust which details investments in cumencies other than its functional
curfency, At 30 Seplember 2024 and 30 Septermber 2023, substantially all matersal non-USD nvestments were hedged
to the USD.

When an investor invests into a Unit class which is in a different currency 1o the bagse currency of the Sub-Trust in which
itinvests, the currency risk of the imvestor will be different to the currency nisk of the Sub-Trust

The followang table sets forth a sensitvity analysis showing gains and losses that would be assocated with changes in
the currency markets. This sensitivity analysis is based on a change in the base currency of the Sub-Trust versus all
other curmencies. Each ling shows the contnbution of each currency 1o the resulting total fund Net Incoms, that also has
an impact on the NAV per Unitin each relevant curmency. The currency nsk sensitivity analysis includes monetary and
non-monetary items while also considering the hedging effect resulting from the wse of dervatves.

Impact on MAY for 20% Currency Impact on NAY for 20% Currency
Approciation/Depsec atlon Appreciation/Depseciation
M-Sep-2024 30-Sep-2024 A0-Sep-2023 I-Sep-2023
Currency Appraciation Dopeeciation Appreciation Depreciation
BRL* (1.2%:) 1.2% {2.1%) 2.1%
MXH* (3A4%) 3A4% {4.5%) 4 5%
Impact on Het Assols (4.6%) 4.6% {6.7%} B6.T%

* These sensitivity figures show the impact on the Sub-Trust's cverall NAY and net income. However, the BRL and
MXN impact is wholly attabutable to the BRL and MXN Classes, respectvely. The BRL and MXN Classes are each
dencminated in USD and implerment a cumency overlay strategy (the BRL Class implements a BRL currency overlay
and the MXN class implaments & MXMN currency overlay), Themsfore, a 20% appreclation/depreciation in the respective
currency will impact the net assets of the respectve BRL and MXM Classes by +/-20% and will not have any impact on
the other classes at 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, From 1 October, 2023, through to 29 March 2024,
thete was no hedging of the RUB class and therefore no impact to the net assets of the class.
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.

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

i) Currency Risk [continued)

The above analysis ilustrates the impact associated with changes in the currency market that are reasonably possible

over a one year penod, and these da not include stress scenarnos when market moves and changes in correlations and
liquidity may result in larger overall gains or losses.

The Sub-Trust had the following curency concentrations, ncluding hedging. greater than /5% of NAV as at 30
Saptember 2024 and 30 September 2023

Currency Currency
concantration concentration

Cumeney 30-Sop-2024__30-Sap-2023
AUD 5.78% 5.08%
ERL B01% 10.65%
MM 17 .06%: 23.75%
(it} Interest Rate Risk

The Sub-Trust may invest in fived income securities, mterest rate swap contracts and futures. Any change to the
relevant interest rates for particular secunties may result in the Investment Advisors being unable to secure similar
returns on the expiry of the contracts or the sale of secunties. In addition, changes to prevailing infterest rates or
changes in expectations of future rates may result in an increase or decrease in the value of the secuntes held, In
genaral, if interest rates rise, the value of the fored incorme securities will decling. A decling in interest rates will in
general have the opposite effect.

Thie Sub-Trust may invest in instruments in desired currencies at fived, floating and zerc rates of interest.

The following table sets forth the interest rate exposures for various currencies in the Sub-Trust and the impact that
s associated with changes in the interest rates. This sensitivity analysis &= based on a change in the interest rates
applicable to one currency while holding all other interast rates constant, except for the Total Portfolio, which assumes
all interest rates mowve simultanecusly by the same number of basis points. A parallel shift of 75bps means that all
interest rates along a curve will change by either a 75bps increase of decrease (L0., a 0.75% increase or decrease),

At 30 Septernber 2024 and 30 September 2023, a positve/negatve parallel shift for interest rates represents a +is
TSbps parallel shift i the yvield curve for all markeds’ interest rates. Developed markets are the group of the Eurozons
countries, Australia, Canada, Switzerland, Denmark, the United Kingdom, Japan, Moreay, Mew Zealand, Sweden and
the United States of Amenca.

Impact on NAV for parallel shift

30-Bep-2024 30-Sep-2024 30-Sep-2023 30-Sep-2023
Lurrency Positive Hogative Positlve Hogative
UsD 12.3%) 23% 12.3%) 2.3%
Othier® (0.0%:) 0.0% {0.0%) 0.0%
Total Portiolio 12.3%) 2.3% {2.3%) 2.0%

& The Sub-Tresd Pua iven sl snisl sxpeauns o G efesnced ciemency. The emounis see less than 0 00% of K.

The above analysis illustrates the impact associated with changes in the interest rate market that are reasanably
passible and exclude changes in the siope of both interest and credit cunves. These scenarios also do notinclude stress
scenarnios when market moves and changes in cotrelations and liquidity may result in larger overall gains or losses,
In addion, given the maturity profile of the mvestments as disclosed in the Schedules of Investments, changes in the
credit curve could have a signiicant impact on the NAY of the Sub-Trust
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk [continued)
(i) Interest Rate Risk {continued)

The interest rate profile of the financial assets and liabilties of the Sub-Trust was as follows:

Al W0-Sep-2024
Hon Interest
Up to 1 year 1- Syeaws  Over § years Baearing Total
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 891,510 - - 3566 BASATE
Financial assets held for trading andior

hedging 1,738,161 41,432,150 20,072.305 22 509 63,536 555
Due from brokers:

Margin amounts (1.014) 6, 246) (768 64,669 56,640
Receivable for nvestments soid - - - 204 439 204 435
Oiher asseis - - - 1,755,542 1,755,552
Total Assets 2,620,857 41,425,904 20,071,536 2,311,305 66,448,402
Liabllitles
Financial Babilties held for rading andfor

P dipag 1,501 - - 311,292 312,853
Payable fior investments purchased - - - 817 419 BI7 419
Ciher linbilties = = = 50 857 380,457
Tolal Liabilities excluding Net Assels

Attribastable to Holders of Redeamable

Parlicipaling Units 1,501 - - 1,289,668 1,201,169
Al W0-Sep-2023

Hon Interest
Uptofyear  1- Syears  Owver s years Bearing Total
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 1,621,742 = = BT 1,630,468
Financial assets held for traging andior

edhng 3,966,072 35,411 900 17,266 935 §78, 885 57,653,752
Due from brokers:

Margin amounts 41,516 an.7r2 7854 321,823 451,975
Receivable Tor mvestmenly soid - - - 1,446 858 1.445 858
Oifver assels - - - 1,040,548 1.045 848
Total Assets 5,628,130 15,492,672 AT, 304,798 3,805,940 62,232,741
Liabilities
Financial kabilties held for rading andfor

hedgag - - - 337 B4 337 841
Payable for investments purchased = - = 1,275,525 1.275.325
Cther linbilties - - - 188,772 T8aTT2

Total Liabilities excluding Mot Assels
Attribatable 1o Holders of Redearmabl e
Participating Units - - - 2,372,738 2,372,738

{iij  Other Price Risk
Other price risk s the risk that the value of a financial mvestment will fluctuate as a result of changes n markel prices,

other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk whether caused by factors specific to an individual
imvestment, s issuer or any factor affecting financial investments traded in the market

As the Sub-Trust's financial investrments are carried at fair valee with fair value changes recognized in the Staterments
of Comprehensive Incoma, all changes in market conditions will directly affect Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redesmable Participating Units,
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk [continued)
{iii} Other Price Risk {continwed)

The Sub-Trust's investments in collective mvestment schemesimutual funds are based upon the MAY as suppled
by the underlying funds, in atcordance with the valuation policy of the applicable fund as outlingd in its Offering
Memorandum. While it is expected that the assets of the mutual funds will generally be valued by an indepandent third
party administrator o other service provider, there may be circumstances in which certain securties or other assets of
a mutual fund may not have a readily ascertainable market price. In such circumstances, the manager of the relevant
mutua fund may be required to value such securities or instruments

The Sub-Trust is not exposed to any matesal other price risk.

{iv)  Limitations of Sensitivity Analysis

Sorme of the imitations of the sensitivity analysis Tables above include:

the analysis is based on histoncal data and cannat take account of the fact that future market price movemants,
correlations bebween markets and levels of market liquidity may bear no relation to historical patterns;

. the analysis is a relative estimate of rsk rather than a precse and accurate number;

. the analyses represents a hypothetcal outcome and is not intended to be predictive, and

. future market conditions could vary significantly from thoge experienced in the past

(b} Liquidity Risk

Liguidity nisk is the nsk that the Sub-Trust will encounter difficulty in meeting cbligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset Among cther things Bquadity could be impaired by
an nabilty to access secured andfor unsacured sources of linancing, an inabity to sell assets or unforeseen outflows
of cash of collateral or violatons of counterparty of pame broker terms of covenants. Thig situation may arse dus
to circumstances outside of the Sub-Trust's contral, such as a general market disruption or an operational problem
affecting the Sub-Trust or third parties. Also, the ability to sell assets may be impaired if other market participants are
seakng o sell gifnilar assets al the same time

The Sub-Trust's financial assets and financial liabilities include investments in dervative contracts traded over the
counter, which are net traded in an organized public market and which may be illiquid and in investments which may
represent a significant percentage of issue size. As a result, the Sub-Trust may nct be able to liquidate guickly some
of these investments at an amount close to fair value in order to meet requirements, of to respond to specific events
such as detenoration in the creditworthiness of any particular isswer, The forced liquidation of investrent positions may
cause financial losses

The Sub-Trusts investments include collective investment schemes, which may impose greater resirictions on
redamptions than those imposed by the Sub-Trust This may include offerings less frequent redempbon dates than are
offered by the Sub-Trust to its Unitholders.

The Sub-Trust provides for the subscription and redemption of Units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk
associated with Uinitholler redemptions in accondance with the tems in the Offering Memorandum. The Sub-Trust's
Offering Memarandum provides for the daily subscription and redemption of Units.

The Sub-Trust is managed to include iquid investments sufficient te meet normal liquidity needs athough substantial
redemplions of Units in the Sub-Trust could require the Sub-Trust to uidate its investments mare rapidly than
ctherwise desirable in order to rase cash for the redemptions. These factors could adversely affect the value of the
Units redeemed and the valuaton of the Units that remain cutstanding and the liquidity of the Sub-Trust's remaining
assels if more liqued assets have been sold o meet redempbions

The Trustes may il of suspend redermptions in certain crcumstances, includng, But not limited 1o, when the
determination of MAV has been suspended; where the disposal of part or all of the Sub-Trust's assats to meet
such redemplion requests would, in the reascnable opinion of the Trustee, be prejudicial to Unithalders, or under
extracedinary circumstances beyond the control of the Trustee. With respect to any redemplion, having consulted with
the Investrment Manager, the Trustee may reserve amounts from the redemption proceeds for any expenses, liabilites
of contingencies, even if such reserves are not required by IFRS.
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
(b} Liquidity Risk [continued)

As at 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, all liakility amounts are due within three months, excluding swap
contracts held with maturty dates greater than 3 months,

As at 30 September 2024, gross inflows and gross outflows for foreard fofreign cumency confracts were
USD 30,619,535 and USD 30,861,052, respectively. As at 30 September 2023, gross inflows and grass outliows for
forward foreign currency contracts were LISD 42 945 674 and UISD 43,130,242, respectively.

Forward foreign currency contracts anre generally settled net
Finann‘ng arrangements include derw atve transachons and reverse réepurchase agreements.

Expiration of termination of available financing for leveraged positions, and the reguirements to post collateral in respect
of changes in the fair value of leveraged exposures of changes in advance rates or other terms and conditions of the
Sub-Trust's financing arrangements, can result in adverse effects to the Sub-Trust's access to liguidity and ability to
maintain leveraged positions, and may cause the Sub-Trust to incur material losses. The Sub-Trust may bormow or
utilze other forms of leverage (on a secured and unsecured basis) for any purpose including, increasing investment
capacity, and coverng aperating expenses of for the setiement of ransactons. However, there is no guarantes that
any such arrangements for obtaming leverage will be available, or, f available, wil be available on terms and conditions
accaptable to the Sub-Trust Unfavorable economic condiions also could increase funding costs, limit access 1o the
capital markets or result in & decision by kenders not to extend credit to the Sub-Trust

The use of leverage also increases risk as it magnifies the effect of any volatiity in fair values on the Sub-Trust's MNet
Assels Attributable 1o Holders of Redeemable Paticipating Units.

A decline in the market value of the Sub-Trust's assets may have particular adverse consequences in instances where
they have bormgwed money on the market value of those assets. A decrease in the market value of those assets may
result in the lender (ncluding derivative counterparties) requinng the Sub-Trust to post addiional collateral or othensise
sell assets atd U when it oy not be s the Sub-Trust's best interest to do so

{c) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one pay 1o a inancial mvestment will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an chligation.

The Investment Advisors have adopted procedures to reduce credit risk related to s dealings with counterparties
of issuers in the Sub-Trust Before transacting, the Imvestment Advisors or their related parties evaluate both credit-
worthiness and reputation by conducting a credit analysis of the party, thesr business and reputation. The eredit risk
of approved counterparbes or issuers is then monitared on an angoing basis, including periodic reviews of financial
staternents and interim fmancial reports as needed

In crder to reduce exposure to credit losses, some over-the-counter dervative agreements entared into by the Sub-Trust
permit netting of transactions ansing under such agreements, excluding those with counterparties executing only spot
foreign exchange contracts, While such netting rights do not result in an offset of reported assets and labiities, they
da provide for the reducton of creda rsk on favorable over-the-counter transactions with a single counterparty to the
extent of the value of unfavorable over-the-counter transactions wath the same counterpamty upon the occurrence of an
event of default or terménation event as all over-the-counter transactions with the counterparty under such agreement
are termanated and amounts owed from and amounis payable to the counterparty are settied on a net basis

Debt securities are subject to the risk of issuer's of a guarantors inabiity to meet principal and interest payments on
its obligatons and are subject to price volatilty due to factors such as interest rate sensitivity, market perception of the
crediteworthiness of the isswer, and general market liguedity.

43

214/351



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

",

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

Credit Risk [continued)

The Sub-Trust is subject lo a number of rsks relating fo the insolvency, administration, liquidation or other formal
pratection from crediters Cinsolvensy”) of the Custodian of any sub-custodian f Trustee, These nsks mclude without
limatation:

i The logs of all cash held with the Custedian of sub-custodian / Trustee which 5 nat being treated as chent
money both at the level of the Custodian and any sub-custodians [/ Trustee (client money™).

i The loss of all cash which the Custedian or sub-custodian ! Trustee has failed to treat as clent money n
accondance with procedures (f any) agreed with the Sub-Trust.
. The loss of some or all of any securities held on Sub-Trust which have not been properly segregated and so

identified both at the level of the Custodian and any sub-custodians / Trustee ("Trust Assets™) or client money
held by or with the Custodian or sub-custodian § Trustee.

[ The loss of some or all assets due to the incomect eperation of accounts by the Custodian or sub-custodian
I Trustee or due to the process of dentifying and transfeming the relevant Trust Assets andior client money
including any deduction to meet the administrative costs of an inschiency,

v Lessas caused by prolonged delays in receiving transfers of balances and regaining contral cver the relevant
assets

An insohency could cause severe disruption tothe Sub-Trust's investment activity, In some circumstances, this could
cause the Investment Manager to temporanly suspend the calculation of the MAY and dealing in Units.

The clearing and depository operations for the Sub-Trusts' security transactions are mainly concentrated with the
Custodian. At 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, substantially all cash and cash eguivalents, balances due
from broker and investments are placed in custody with the Custodian (with the exception of the Time Deposits which
may be held with a third party custodian) or with the underiying broker.

At 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023, the following financial assels wene exposed to credit risk: investments
i debt investments, derivative financial assets, cash and cash equivalents and other recenables. The carrying amounts
of nancial assets best reflect the maximum counterparty credit risk exposure at the reporting date.

The maximum exposure to creda rsk (excluding notional values on forward foreign currency contracts, credit default
swaps and interest rate swaps) as at the reporting date can be analyzed as follows Amounts in the table below are
based on the market value,

30-Sep-2024 20-Sep-2023

Instrurment Type usD UsD
Cash and cash equivalents 885176 1,630 468
Irvestmens® 63,243,616 57,500,632
Irterest recerable 1,035,592 1,048 59
Duwe from brokers:
Margin amounls 56,640 451,575
Collateral amounls 720,000 -
Forward foreign cumrency conbracts 268 875 153,072
Receivable for invesiments sold 204 438 1,445,853
Other assels - 559
Total 6,424,438 62,232,653
* Open snded P and wlock are ral i thisk [abls gince By S0 not sapete B Sub- Tnas! be divect credit Aek
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",

(d}

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Credit Risk [continued)
The Sub-Trust had the folicwing exposure to issuer credit risk

Security ratings, if any, ane cbtained from S&PMoody's/Fitch Investor Service.

Rating 30-Sep-2024 30-Sep-2023
) 0,20 -
eee 10,16 877
L] 5479 46.42
B 2622 28,50
oCC 458 837
cc 0.14 059
< ooz AL
Mot Rated bt ] W]
Total 10e0.00% 100.00%

The table above indicates the credit guality of the Sub-Trust's imvesiments, Counterparties or issuers are rated either
imvestment grade in thewr cwn right or if not rated then an entity in the corporate family tree has such a rating and the
Credit Risk Management and Advisory department of the Investrment Manager believes there is strong implicit support
from the rated entity to the counterparty or issuer. The Investment Advisors have a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis

A credit default swap is an agreement that involves one party making a stream of payments to another party in exchange
for the nght to receve pratection on a reference security or obligation. A5 a seller of pratection, the Sub-Trust genarally
receives a payment stream throughout the term of swap, provided that there is no credit event. In additon, if the Sub-
Trust sells protection through a cradit defau® swap, the Sub-Trust could suffer a loss because the value of the reference
chligation may be less than the premium payments received. Upon the occurrence of a specific credit event, the Sulb-
Trust, as a seller of credit protection, may be required to take possession of the defaulted reference obSgation and
pay the buyer an amount equal to the notional amount of the Swap in a physical settied trade, The Sub-Trust may alsa
pay a net setlermant amount in the form of cash or securities equal to the notional amount of the swap reduced by the
recovery value of the reference obligation in a cash settied trade. Recovery values are at imes established through
the credit event auction process in which market parlicipants are ensured that a transparent price has been set for the
defaulted security or obligation. In addition, the Sub-Trust is entitled to a return of any assets. which have been pledged
as collateral to the counterparty. The notional amount of the Sub-Trust's credit defawlt swaps, if any, is disclosed in the
Schedules of Investments.

The Sub-Trust had ne individual counterparty or isswer credit risk greater than 5% of the net assels attributable to
Hobders of Redeemable Participating Units as at 30 September 2024 and 30 September 2023,

The Sub-Trust measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probabilgy of defaul, exposure at default and
loss given default. Management consider both historical analysis and foreard looking information in determining any
expected eredit loss. Managerment consider the probabdity of default to be close to Derd a3 the countedparties have a
strong capacity to meet their contractual obbgations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognized
based on 12-month expected credit ibases as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Sub-Trust

Additional Risks

Additional nsks include, but are not limited to the following;

M Captal Risk Management

The capital of the Sub-Trust is represented by the Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
The amount af the Met Assets Afiributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units can change significantly on a
daily basis as the Sub-Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of Unitholder. The Sub-
Trust's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Sub-Trust's abiity to conlinue as a going concern in order

to provide returns for Unitholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a sirong capstal base to suppert the
development of the investment activities of the Sub-Trust.
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For the Year Ended 30 September 2024

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{d} Additional Risks (continued )
() Concentration Risk

The Sub-Trust may invest in a limited number of investments and investment themes. A consequence of a Emited
number of nwvestments is that performance may be more favorably or unfavorably affected by the pedformance of an
individual investmant

{ii} Operational Risk

Cperational risk is the potential for loss caused by a deficiency in information, communications, transaction processing
and settlement, and accounting systems. The Sub-Trust's service providers, as shown in Mote 7, maintain controls and
procedures for the purpose of helping to manage operational risk. Reviews of the service levels of senvice providers
are performed on a regular basis by the Investment Advisors. Mo assurance is given that these measures will be 1008
effective.

i) Legal. Tax and Regulatory Risks

Legal tax and regulatory changes could oceur duning the duraion of the Sub-Trust which ray adversely affect the
Sub-Trust.

With respect to tax, the Sub-Trust may be subject to taxation on capfal gaing, interest and dividends in certan
jurisdictons where the Sub-Trust invests,

The interpretabon and applicabdity of the tax law and regulatons by tax authorties at imes may not be clear or
consstent Tax obligations where probable and estmable are recorded as liabilities, However, some tax cbligations
afe subject to uncertainly and may result in additional tax Babildies mterest and penakies based on future actions,
imarpretations or judgments of these authonties covering current and past tax positions. Accounting standards may
also change, creating or removing an obligation for the Sub-Trust to accrue for a potential tax habiity Consequentty, it
i% possible that certain potential tax oblgations which currently are nat probable may become 5o which may result m
additional tax labdities for the Sub-Trust in the futere and these additional liakilities may be matenal. Because of the
foregoing uncertainties, the NAV may not reflect the tax liabifties ultimately borme by the Sub-Trust, including at the
time of any subscriptions, redemptions or exchanges of interests in the Sub-Trust, which could have an adverse impact
on investons at that time,

{w) Emerging Market Risk

The Sub-Trust invests in securlies of emerging markets. Investing in the securities of such govemments involves
certain considerations not usually associated with investing in securities of developed market companies or countries,
including, without Emitation, less bquidity, greater price and foreign currency volatility and greater legal, tax and
regulatory risks.

Additicnal details of sk not disclosed in thesefinancial staternents can befound in the Sub-Trust's Offering Memarandum.

46

217/351



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )

GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
POt L0 00 Rnor ol Sepnemuer Swes

12.

13,

14.
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Credit Institutions.

As at 30 September 2024 and 30 Septernber 2023, all cash and cash equivalents, amounts due fromfio brokers and
due ta bank were held by the following credit instrtutons with a credit rating of A of higher. Credit institution ratings are

chbtained from S&F's / Moody's Investors Service [ Fitch Ratings and are unaudited

| Assats 30-5¢p-2029 3D-5ep-2
% oof Net % of Nal
Countarpanty uspD Aszots usD Asswls
Erown Brothers Harmiman & Co™' 3668 .01 8,728 [}
Ausiralia & New Zealand Banking Greup™ 18,960 .03 17,140 0.03
BHP Paribas 1585 0.0 10616 0.0z |
HSBC Bank PLCT 2,11 0.0z 10,580 0.02
NG Bank® 6.7 0.01 - -
Swandindvisks Enskilda Banken AR H42 BI85 128 = =
Sumitorno Mitsui Banking Comporation® = - 1,583 408 264
Tota cash and cash equivalents 893176 1.7 1,630.468 FNF]
Dug frarm Brokers:
Margin amounts:
Sank of Amenca NA 27623 0.0% 444 562 Q.78
Soldman Sachs 28017 0.04 1,313 0.0
Collateral amounts:™
Barclays Bank PLC 350.000 0.58 - -
Sale Street Bank & Trust o 340, 000 0.53 = =
Total dus from brokers 76,640 1.20 451,974 0.76
T Frarittne i=d — CL ol Caih aocourl
E=-Tirrsr Diapoovss
¥ h e oriky canh ool pheral for corfralhy Gasred pwag oorbacE Rdures confrads
P e = N Sl Ao i Y PO CLITENy CORETEO
Liabliities 30-Se 30-Sep-2023
W% of Net % of Nat
Counterpary uso Aszels usD Assels
Dui 0 Bfeskmes:
Collateral amounts ™
M SEAn ey = = 20,00 0.03 |
Tolal due lo brokers = - 20,000 0.03 |

R ntied = corahi ol Bor Bl BOPEeRN CLITSy CONTBES

Exchange Rates

The following exchange rates (against USD) were used to comen the investments and other assets and labilities

denocminated in currencies other than LISO:

0-Spp-7024 M-Sop-2023
Ausirakian Doltar (ALUD) 1441442 1.543427
Canadan Dollar (CAD) 1.350850 -
Chinese Renminbi (CHH) = T.285750
Eura {EUR) 0.8BE017 0.244510
British Pound (GBF) 0.745518 0818203
Hong Keng Dollar (HED) T.TETS00 -
Japanese Yen (JPY) 143 04 0000 148, 225000
Meican Peso (MXN) 19.502000 1T 378500
Singapone Dollar (5G0) 1. 282000 1. 364500

Soft Commissions

The Sub-Trust may pay commissions for execution anly andfor for execution and investment research. The Sub-Trust
did not otherwise enter into any third party soft commission arrangements for the years ended 30 September 2024 and

30 September 2023.
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15,

16.

17.

18.

Ceontingent Liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as at 30 September 2024 and 30 Septernber 2023,

Subsequent Events

Mo events occurred subssquent b 30 Seplember 2024 that would requine adjustment to, of disclosure inthese inancial
statermnents

Indemmnifications
Thie Sub-Trust may enter into contracts that contain a variety of indemnifications. The Sub-Trusl's maximum exposure

undes these arrangements = unknown, However, the Sub-Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these
contracts.

Approval of the Financial Statements

Management has approved the financial statements an 19 December 2024 and the financial staternents may not be
amended after issuance.
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2024

Holdings Coupon % of
in Local Rata Maturity Fair Value Net
Currency  Description % Date USD  Assets
Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Euro
680000  Altice Financing SA 425 1500872029 610,925 0594
480000  Banca Transilvania SA'™ 588 27042026 567,178 0a7
1,070,000  Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Metherlands I BY a37s O90sr2027 1,183 283 1.81

2,361,384 362

United States Dollar

70000  Absa Group Lidi» = 638 2702026 778, 644 1.20
1,120,000  Access Bank PLC 613 2110873026 1,063,485 1.63
348,574 Acu Petroleo Luxembourg Sarl 7.50 130172032 349,923 054
240000  Adani Ports & Special Economic Zone Ltd 420 04/M8r2027 230,925 035
172500  Adam Renewable Energy RJ LtdHodangal Salar 463 182038 146G, 548 023
Parks Pvt LtdiWardha Sclar Maharash
230000  Adani Transmession Lid 4,00 03082026 283172 0.34
3504 Add Hero Holdings Ltd™™ 8.50 SN0 2020 1,654 0.00
27063 Add Hero Haldings Ltd'© 9.00 3OS A030 B77 0.00
35,452  Add Hero Holdings Ltd'™ 9.80 SON0Er2031 L] 000
200000  Aeropuerto Intemacional de Tecumen S8 513 110872061 158,812 024
880000  Aeropuertos Dominicanos Siglo XX SA 7.00 SNDEr2034 918,962 141
S88730  AES Panama Generation Holdings SRL 438 3102030 930,575 o
200000  Agile Group Holdings Ltd™ 15.12 1211172024 5,000 oo
40000  Akbank TAS T.50 200472030 474,950 073
1,480,000  AKa Bank AQ Via Alfa Bond Issuance PLC 595 150472030 o 000
710000  Anadolu Efes Bracilik Ve Malt Sanayi AS 338 2eW0er2028 630,125 0.7
200000  ATP Tower Holdings LLC f Andean Tower Parners 4,05 270412026 193,638 0.30
Colombia SAS f Andean Telecom Par
400000  ATP Tower Holdings LLC [ Andean Tower Partners 405 272026 387,878 eX:]
Colombia SAS ! Andean Telecom Par'®
S20000  Axian Telesom 738 16022027 521,950 0.80
600000  Banco Davivienda SA™# 665 20472031 511,500 0.7a
S00000  Banco de Bogota SA 625 12062026 502,320 077
230000  Banco del Estado de Chile™ @ 785 022029 247,020 038
410000  Banco do Brasil Sam™ 8753 150472025 416,150 064
380000  Banco Indusirial SA 488 2900172026 370,698 057
280,000  Banco Industrial SA/Guatemala’™ '™ 4 B3 20001 r2026 273148 042
370000  Banco Mercantil del Morte SA/Grand Cayman! 568 2400472027 362,748 056
§30,000  Bancolombia SA 683 2410852029 670,320 1.03
450000 BEVA Bancomer SATexas™ 513 17072028 425,835 0B85
760000  Badvest Group UK PLCIThe 363 2H0 026 37,200 113
200000  Braskem Metherlands Finance BV 550 241 V025 200,438 0.3
270000  Braskem MNetherlands Finance BY 4,50 172030 240,758 0.37
200000  Braskem Metherlands Finance BY 125 130252033 198,140 0.30
320000 Braskem Metherlands Finance BY 588 31072050 248,600 035
200000 BRF SA 458 2410172030 193,152 0.30
IE0000 BRF SA 575 2110952050 311,544 048
§10,000 CAMagnum Holdings 538 WM 2026 601,293 o2
200000 CAPSA 390 2702031 163,500 025
500000 CAS Capital Mo 1 Lid ™ 4,00 AH0TI2026 479 550 074
310000  Cemex SAB de CV# 513 03062026 304,575 047
310000 Cemex SAB de Cyel 513 Q02026 304,575 0.47
300000  Cemex SAB de Gy 913 14002028 327,030 .50
S00000  Central Amencan Bottling Conp / CBC Bottling 525 2702029 484,750 074
Heldeo 5L/ Beliv Holdeo SL
310000 Chamgion Path Holdings Ltd 450 2702026 302,056 045
200000 Chamgion Path Holdings Ltd 485 27072028 186,938 029
4,576  China Aoyuan Group Ltd 0.00 Sv0ar2028 &1 0.00
19626  China Acyuan Group Lid= 550 SO0Er2031 =2} 000
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. G
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2024

Holdings Coupon % of
in Local Rata Maturity Fair Value Net
Currency  Description % Date USD  Assets
Bonds [continued)
Corporate Bonds (continued)
United States Dollar (continued)

51,207  China Acyuan Group Ltd™ 0.00 IN0A2173 256 000
200000  China il & Gas Group Ltd 470 SN0Er2026 164,188 028
GE0000 CIBAMCO SA Institucion de Banca Multiple Trust 438 22072031 549,800 084

ClBr3as2
400000  Cikarang Listnndo Thk PT 485 1410852026 303,400 080
167,500  Clean Renewable Power Mauritius Phe Ltd 42% 230027 159,805 025
210000  Continuum Energy Aura Phe Lid 950 2400202027 220,360 0.34
340000 Continuum Green Energy India Pyt § Co-lssuers T7.50 280652033 357,530 055
200000  Country Garden Holdings Co Lid™® 388 221 0F2030 14,500 ooz
2,530,000 Credit Bank of Moscow Via CBOM Finance PLC 7.50 051 0r2027 o 000
460000  CT Trust 513 O0r2032 41 682 0.65
660000  Delta Merlin Dunia Tekstil PT 0.00 2640672032 40,354 0.08
450,000 DNO ASAS T.88 Oev0ar2026 461,748 o.M
200000 DNOASA 825 0amear2029 206,700 032
210235 Easy Tactic Ltd™ 850 10027 8,307 oo
950000  Ecopetral SA 563 1O 2028 1,021,487 1.57
190000  Ecopetral SA 653 20472030 189,548 029
110000  Ecopetrol SA 463 021172031 04,237 014
680,000 Ecopetrol SA 5.88 130172032 728,416 112
1,057,000  Ecopetrol S& 588 0211172051 T64,581 117
300000 Emgpresas Publicas de Medellin ESP 425 1072028 272175 042
310000 Endeavour Mining PLC 500 1411072026 300,545 048
424000 Energuate Trust 588 030SF2027 915,353 1.40
210000  EnfraGen Energia Sur SAS EnfraGen Spain SA S 538 3001 272030 180,788 028
Prime Energia Spa
230000  Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd 713 110252025 230,185 035
200000  Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd 535 1082028 203,000 03
230000  Fantasia Holdings Group Co Ltd™® 10.88 Ol r2023 3,450 0.01
240000  Fantasia Holdings Group Co Ltd'™® 10.88 02032024 3,800 oo
200000  Far East Horizan Ltd 663 160472027 201,558 o3
200,000 FIEMEX Energia - Banco Actinver 54 Insttucion T.25 302041 207,750 03z
de Banca Multiple
360000  First Bank of Migeria Ltd Via FBM Finance Co BY 583 27N 2025 359,887 055
650000  First Quantum Minerals Lid 588 1511 r2027 538,380 058
470000  First Quantum Minerals Lid 938 010372029 458,200 07E
550000  First Cuantum Minerals Lid B63 01/06r2031 560,700 086
200000  PWD Group Heldings Ltd 7.64 Q2072031 217,112 033
300000 GENM Capital Labuan Ltd 388 150472031 272718 042
430000  Geopark Lid 5.50 1TIAr2027 409,102 063
347,823 Guara Morte Sarl 520 1062034 330,184 0.5
207628  Huachen Energy Co Ltd™ 485 26001 X026 113,488 R
510000  Hunt Qil Co of Peru LLS Sucursal Del Peru 855 180872033 684,115 1.0&
370000  |HS Holding Ltd 563 28111720268 383,717 056
310000  IHS Holing Lid 625 281152028 288, 463 044
510000  |HS Netherlands Holdoo BY 5.00 18082027 511,144 054
340000  Indika Energy Tek PT 875 O7I0SI2028 347 850 053
B06,520  International Airport Finance S4 12.00 1503720332 B55 572 1.3
B20000  |poteka-Bank ATIB 550 181172025 802 829 1.23
200000  IRE Infrastructure Developers Lid T 102032 208,250 baz
334,400  JESW Hydro Energy Ltd 413 10S2031 305,349 047
3300000  JSW Infrastructure Lid 4495 2100172020 320,925 0.49
380000  Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd™ 10.88 23072023 16,910 003
310000  Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd®! 10.88 301102024 6,200 oo
400000  KazMunayGas Mational Co JSC 575 1042047 369,124 057
400000  Kingston Airport Revenue Finance Lid 675 151 2r2036 412 600 083
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. T
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2024

Heldings Coupan % of
in Local Rata Maturity Fair Value Net
Currency  Description % Date USD  Assets
Bonds [continued)
Corporate Bonds (continued)
United States Dollar (continued)
800000  Kosmos Energy Lid B.75 1M 2031 780,000 1.3
200000 LG Chem Lid 1.60 180772030 191,300 028
830056  Limak Iskenderun Uluslararasi Liman Isletmeciligi 8.50 107 r2036 T76,185 1.18
AS
498854  LLPL Capital Pte Ltd 6.88 04/02r2039 215,888 o7g
187,159 MO Brazil Downstreamn Trading SARL 725 30v0er2031 160,358 0.25
220000 Medoo Bell Pe Ltd 633 BV0F2027 219,430 034
200000 Melco Resorts Finance Ltd 563 1707 r2027 184,588 0.30
1010000  Melco Resorts Finance Ltd 575 2110712028 975,913 1.80
B30,000  Mersin Uluslararasi Liman Isletmeciligi AS B.25 151172028 BEE, 053 1.33
660,000  Metinvest BY 8,50 230ar2026 514,800 078
420000  Mexico City Awport Trust 550 31072047 360,280 0.55
330000  MGM China Holdings Ltd 475 0102r2027 3N 0.49
335412  Modermn Land China Co Ltd™ 10.00 3001 22024 470 0.00
243018  Modern Land China Co Ltd™ 11.00 B0V 22026 1,215 .00
354674  Modern Land China Co Ltd 800  S0n2027 456 Q.00
34354 Modemnland Overseas Pre Ltd™ 500 S0N0402027 3,435 oo
288,841  Modernland Overseas Pte Lid™ 5.00 SOVOur2027 B84 014
685445  Mong Duong Finance Holdings BV 513 O7/0sr2029 857,000 1.32
47,191  Mongolian Mining Corp™ 11.00 01Mor2024 47,380 0.7
258000  Mongaolian Mining CorplEnergy Resources LLC 12.50 1HON 2026 279,720 0.43
200000  MTH Mauwritius Imeestments Lid .50 131002028 202,510 o3
538044 MV24 Capital BY 875 O1/0672034 524 326 0.81
S00000  MNBK Ter 1 Financing Ltd'™ ™ 363 241082026 477,187 073
260000 OCPSA 875 02052034 278,647 043
1,280000 QCPSA 513 ZHOE205 1,040,384 1.60
430000  Oleoducto Central SA 400 1400712027 438 580 068
670000 OTP Bank Myrt™ BT75 150252028 711,875 1.08
30,000 Pefroleos Mexicanos §.50 130372027 29,385 004
40,000  Pefroleos Mexicanos 535 12/02r2028 37,380 0os
70,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.50 2302029 G, 068 010
60,000 Petroleos Mexicanos BT5 02062020 60,840 noa
40,000  Petroleos Mexicanos 638 230112045 27 832 0.04
90000  Petroleos Mexicanos 675 211002047 64,350 010
50000  Petroleos Mexicanos 6.35 1HOXA048 3460 005
80000  Petroleos Mexicanos 695 280172060 64,404 010
240000 Rede D'or Finance Sarl 4.50 2HMr2030 230,040 0.3s
240000 Redsun Propertes Group Lid® 130 130172025 1,200 0.oo
253,744  Samarco Mineracao S 8.00 SOVDEr2031 215,813 o7e
360000  San Miguel Global Power Holdings Corp™'™ T.00 21M0r2025 358,877 0.55
200000  San Miguel Global Power Holdings Corg® 570 20172028 185,250 0.30
500000  San Miguel Global Power Holdings Corg™ B.TS 120612020 512,500 o.7a
560000  SAM Miguel Industrias Pet SA f NG PET R&P Latin ~ 3.50 020812028 511,874 o7e
America SA
630000  Sasol Financing USALLC 438 18/08r2026 833125 1.28
530000 Sasol Financing USALLC 875 030552029 348,130 054
980000 SEPLAT Energy PLC .75 0110452026 980,306 1.50
141824  ShaMaran Petroleum Corp™ 12.00 BWNOTI2027 142137 022
200000  Sisecam UK PLC B.25 02052028 206,320 0.32
400000  Sisecam UK PLC B.63 020552032 411,000 063
360000 Sitios Latinoamerca SAB de CV 538 040452032 374,400 057
330000  Sn Repki lsman Thk PT 125 1E02025 7,920 0.
156600  Star Energy Geothermal Wayang Windu Lid 675 2410452033 158,683 0.25
200000  Stilbeater Mining Co 4.00 161172028 191,000 028
230000  Studio City Co Lid 7.00 150252027 252 344 038
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. ]
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2024

Holdings Coupon % of
in Local Rata Maturity Fair Value Net
Currgncy  Desecription % Date USD  Assels
Bonds [continued)
Corporate Bonds [continued)
United States Dollar (continued)
320000  Studio City Finance Ltd 6.00 150712025 319,880 049
200000  Studio City Finance Ltd 650 150172028 196,125 030
B4, 117 Sunac China Holdngs Lid™ T7.00 SVOar2029 6,519 o
67,500 Sunac China Holdngs Lid™ 725  30v09r2030 473 oM
80461  Sunac China Holdings Lid™ 100 3v0Sr2032 7778 0.
310000  Telecomunicaciones Digitales SA 450 3002030 283,541 0.43
380000 Tenguchevrol France Co Intemational Lid 4.00 150812026 351,720 0.54
960000  Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Metherands Il BY 475 OW0Sr2027 946,085 1.45
240000 Transnet SOC Lid 825 06022028 248,074 033
710000  Tullow Oil PLC 7.00 01/03r2025 672,358 1.03
201,000  Tullow Qi PLC 10.25 15052026 183,727 028
380000 Tupy Overseas SA 450 18022031 320,982 049
450000  Twrkiye Garanti Bankass A5~ B.38 28022029 482 787 o7
200000 UPL Corp Ltd 463 160672030 170,312 028
380000 Uzbek Industrial and Construction Bank ATB B85 2410712029 381,682 058
200000 Vedanta Resources Finance Il PLC 825 230412026 198,376 030
108,100  Vedanta Resources Finance Il PLC 13.88 210072027 108,132 0a7
218400 Vedanta Resources Finance Il PLC 1388 0o 2r2028 218,151 034
188000  Vedanta Resources Lid 1388 0922028 191,695 0.30
440000  Virdusa Corp 713 151 2r2028 417,078 084
350,000  Vivo Energy Investments BY 213 24/08r2027 338,720 052
270000 VTR Comunicaciones Sph 513 150172028 247,304 038
890,000  Wynn Macau Ltd 550 150112026 882 884 1.51
250000 Wynn Macau Ltd 550 o202y 245,000 038
370000  Yapive Kredi Bankasi AS 825 161 02028 405,728 o2
740000  Yapive Kred Bankas ASY 925 172029 789,025 1.3
2000000  Yapive Kredi Bankagi ASHE 974 04/0uar 2020 208,730 0.32
TTO000  YPF 2A 695 2100712027 746, 800 1145
200000 YPF 3A 9.50 1712031 210,750 D32
410000 YPF 54A 7.00 151212047 338 885 052
420000  Yuzhou Group Holdings Co Lid™« 5.38 202025 & 400 oo
200000  Fhenro Properties Group Ltd'™ 710 1VDar2024 230 0.00
60,665 552 g3.14

Government Bond
United States Dollar

200000  National Bank of Uzbekistan 4 B5 212025 156, 880 0.30
196,680 0.30
Total Bonds 63,243 616 A7.06
% of
Fair Value Het
Holdings  Description USD  Assels
Commaon Stock
Heng Keng Dallar
82001 Sunac Services Holings Ltd 23 954 004
Total Common Stock 23,564 0.04
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. ]
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2024

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging Purposes

Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty USD  Assets
24102024 EUR 418,080 usD 462 134 ENP Paribas 2 658 0.00
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purposes 2,658 0.00
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amaount Amount Loss Net
Date Currency Bought  Curréncy Sold Counterparty UsD Assals
241072024 s 2,774,418 EUR 2,543 587 Bank of America MA (&7 160) (0.1
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Fareign Currency Contracts held for Pertfolio Hedging
Purposes {67 160) (0.10)
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty USD  Asgets
15M02024 ALID 13,4681 usD 8,181 UBS AG 158 000
15102024 AUD 55,762 UsD 37,818 HSEC Bank PLC B78 000
151072024 AUD 58,458 UsD 39,035 Royal Bank of Canada 2223 000
15102024 AUD 103,167 UsD 66,862 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 4,705 o
151002024 AUD 5,317,257 UsD 3562 078 Westpac Banking Conp 127,574 018
02102024 BRL 235,823 uUsD 43 364 State Street Bank & Trust Co. a74 000
02102024 BRL 10,614,179 UsD 1,820,729 Barclays Bank PLC 28,329 0os
021002024 BRL 10,614,179 ush 1,921,880 Deutsche Bank AG raTe 0.04
Oar11/2024 ERL 21,396,489 ush 3,899,985 Standard Chartered Bank 13,431 n.02
171002024 JPY 106,367,837 usD 684,119 Natwest Markets PLC 61,168 010
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Cumrency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 266,317 0.4
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty USD  Assets
021002024 BRL 22873 usD 42,332 JPMergan Chase & Co. 1) (0.00)
1702024 JPY 1,183,560 ush 8,371 HSBC Bank PLC (&) (0.00)
191272024 WX 4,915,461 usD 250,325 Citibank MA (2,529) (0L}
191272024 MMM 215,680,748 usD 11,088 6368 Morgan Stanley & Co (220,712) (0.34)
Q21052024 s 54,802 BRL 31,567 State Street Bank & Trust Co. (274) (0.0
0211002024 ush 3,813,753 BRL 21,285 489 Standard Chartered Bank {15,238) (0.02)
Australia and Mew Zealand
15102024 ush 17,781 ALD 26,614 Banking Group Lid 566) (0.00)
151002024 ush 80813 ALD 134,106 State Street Bank & Trust Co, (2,223) (0.0}
1702024 usD 8,076 JPY 1,252, 74% JPMorgan Chase & Co. {102) (0.0
17102024 uso 18,844 JFY 2,885,099 Barclays Bank PLC (341) (000}
Tetal Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes (244 232) (0.38)
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. 10
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2024

Futures Contracts
Cash of USD 20,031 has been pledged as margin for open futures contracts as at 30 September 2024

Unrealized %% of

Humber af Lang! Gain Net
Contracts _ Description Shart USD __ Assets
(8) Ura Bond December 2024 Short 1,461 0.00

{1}  US Long Bond December 2024 Short 10 0.00

Total Unrealized Gain on Futures Contracts 1,471 0.00

Unrealized % of

Humber of Longl! Loss Net
Contracits  Description Shaort USD  Assels
4 US 2 Year Nobe Decermber 2024 Lang (1,063) (D.00)

10 US S Year Mote December 2024 Lang (1,422) {0,000}

Tatal Unrealized Loss on Futures Contracts {2,485) (0.00)

Over the Counter Swap Contracts
Unrealized Loss on Swap Contracts

Credit Dafault Swap Contracts

Lecal Coupon Unrealized % of
Hotional Rate Maturity Loss Net
Amount  Description Cradit Protection % Currency Diate USD Assets

140,000  Pakistan Sald 1.00 uso 2000352025 (1,501} (0.00)
Government
Internatasnal
Unrealized Loss on Over the Counter Credit Default Swap Contracts {1.501) ([0.00)
Total Unrealized Loss on Swap Contracts (1.504)  (0.00)

Centrally Cleared Swap Contracts
Cash of USD 41,185 has been pledged as margin for open centrally cleared swap contracts as at 30 September 2024,

Unrealized Gain on Swap Contracts

Interest Rate Swap Contracts
Local Unrealized % of
Hotianal Maturity Gain Net
Amount  Fay Recaive Cumency Date USD Assets
60000 Floating (EUR & Fixed, 2.50% EUR 18122044 265 [iTii]

Manth EURIEOR)

Unrealized Gain on Centrally Cleared Interest Rate Swap Contracts 265 0.00
Total Unrealized Gain on Swap Contracts 265 0.00
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. bk
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2024

Centrally Cleared Swap Gontracts [continued)

Unrealized Loss on Swap Contracts

Credit Default Swap Contracts

Local Caoupan Unrealized % of
Hotional Rate Maturity Loss Met
Amount _ Description Credit Protection % Currency Diate USD Assets

150,000 Colombia Purchased 1.00 usD 20/08/2029 (425) (0.00)
Gavarnment
Intermational
Unrealized Loss on Centrally Cleared Credit Default Swap Contracts (425)  (0.00)
Interest Rate Swap Contracts

Lzcal Unrealized % of
Hotignal Maturity Loss Met
Amount _ Pay _ Receive Currency Date USD Assets

220,000 Fixed, 2.50% Floating (EUR & Mocnth ELRIBOR) EUR 18M 252027 (1,018)  (0.00)

BTO,000  Fixed, 2.50% Floating (EUR & Month EURIBOR) EUR 181272028 (4,802) (0u01)

160,000  Fixed, 2.50% Flaating (EUR & Month ELRIBOR) EUR 181272031 (1,033} (0000}

Unrealized Loss on Centrally Cleared Interest Rate Swap Contracts (6.854) [(0.04)

Taotal Unrealized Loss on Swap Confracts T27S 0.04

% of

Fair Value Net

Total Investments UsD Assets

Total Bonds 63,243 816 a7 .06

Total Comman Stock 23,564 004
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging

Purposes 2,658 0.00
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging

Furposes (67,180) (0.10)

Total Unrealized Gain on Foreard Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging

Purposes 26637 041
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging

Purposes 44, I37) (o
Total Unrealized Gain on Futures Contracts {E 1,471 B?%
Total Unrealized Loss on Futures Contracts (2,485) {0.00)
Total Unrealized Loss on Over the Counter Credit Default Swap Contracts {1.501) (G.I%
Total Unrealized Gain on Centrally Cleared Interest Rate Swap Contracts 285 0
Total Unrealized Loss on Centrally Cleared Credit Default Swap Contracts (425) ({0.00)
Total Unrealized Loss on Centrally Cleared Interest Rate Swap Contracts (6, 854) (00}
Other Assets and Liabilities 1.941.599 258
Met Asgets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units £5,157,233 100.00

1 Indicates a variable rate secunty, the interest rate shown reflects the rate in effect at 30 Seplember 2024, Maturity date
represents next call date.

¥ Indicates a perpetual bond. Maturity date represents next call dabe, if any.
5 Payment i kind,

% Security was purchased pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933 and may not be resold subject to that rule
except to qualfied institutional buyers

= In default
* Security valued at mil a5 of 973002024

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. 12
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GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 20 September 2024

Currency Abbreviations:

ALID Australian Daollar
ERL Brazilian Real

EUR Eura

JPY Japanese Yen

MAN  Mexican Peso

USD  United States Dollar

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. 13
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G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2023

Holdings Coupon % of
in Local Rate Maturity Fair Value Net
Currency  Description % Date USD  Assets
Bends
Corporate Bonds
China Yuan
1,000,000  Far East Horizon Ltd 4.70 CRD22024 133578 0.23
133,578 0.23
Eura
780,000  AMica Financing SA 425 15108/2029 B85 210 1.14
480,000  Banca Transibvania /EURS Regd VIR Reg S 283 27042027 S24,717 088
Emtn'*!
140,000 GTC Aurcra Luxembourg Sa 225 23062026 05 3468 018
1,490,000 Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Methedands |1 BY ars 0amaR202T 1,428 350 2.38
2,735,323 487
United States Dollar
790,000  Absa Group Ltd== 638 2TI0SI2026 718,173 1.20
1,120,000  Access Bank PLC 613 2110012026 244 406 158
178,000  Adan Renewable Energy RJ Lid/Kedangal Solar 463 15102069 129,783 022
Parks Pvt LidA\ardha Salar Maharash
1,920,000  Aercpuertos Dominicancs Siglo XX SA BT7S I0M032029 1,858 560 310
200,000  Agile Group Holdings Lidi® 7.85 30T2024 TITD oo
50,000  Akbank TAS G.a0 DAMOX2026 535 150 088
200,000  Alarm Sutera Realty Thk PT 11.00 02M1/2025 166 278 0.28
1,480,000  Ala Bank AD Via Afa Bond Issuance PLC 555 150412030 o 0.00
1,110,000 Anadolu Efes Biracilik Ve Malt Sanayi AS 338 F0a02s 207 902 1.52
200,000 ATP Tower Holdings LLC £ Andean Tower 405 FT042026 172,524 029
Parners Colombia SAS § Andean Telecom Par
400,000  ATP Tower Holdings LLG [ Andean Tower 405 2710412026 345 648 058
Parners Colombia SAS § Andean Telacom
Parlﬂl
520,000  Axian Telecom 738 160212027 464 220 o7
250,000 B3 SA - Brasil Bolsa Balcao 413 20M08I2021 205 670 035
200,000  Banco Continental SAECH 275 101212025 151,504 030
200,000  Banco Davivienda Sai B85 2210412021 134,200 022
960,000 Banco de Bogota SA 6.25 1200512025 917 280 153
1,610,000 Banco do Brasil SAME 625 150412024 1,485 869 248
380,000 Banco Industrial SA® 488 2000112026 380 577 054
280,000  Banco Industnal SA/Guaternala’™ 483 202028 258,320 043
370,000  Banco Mercantil ded More SA/Grand Cayman! o 588 012007 315,425 053
450,000  BEVA Bancomer SAM 513 170112025 385,010 D64
560,000  Bidvest Group UK PLCIThe 183 23092026 495 B30 0.as
200,000 BRF 54 483 2410112020 161,250 027
380,000 BERF SA 575 21092050 258 TE3 0.40
460,000 CAPSA 350 2710412031 338128 057
300,000 CAS Capital Me 1 Lid=® 4.00 1200712026 241,002 0.40
310,000 Cemex SAB de Cywieis 513 DBIDGI2026 288,207 0.48
510,000 Cemex SAB de VI 513 OE062026 474147 079
300,000 Cemex SAB de SVl 8.13 14032025 311,250 D52
500,000  Central Amencan Botthing Carp/ CBC Bottling 525  FT042029 449,063 075
Haldee SL / Beliv Holdeo SL
210,000  China Aoyuan Growp Ltd 598 18082025 3150 o
180,000  Clean Renewable Power Mauritius Pte Lid 4235 25032027 185,763 0.26
1,050,000 Coca-Cola lcecek AS 4.50 20/01/2028 231 833 155
210,000 Continuum Energy Aura Pe Lid 550 2400212027 208 687 0.35
260,000 Country Garden Holdings Co Ltd 270 120072028 16,250 0.03
200,000 Country Garden Holdings Ca Litd 188 22102030 12,500 0.02
2530000 Credit Bank of Moscow Via CBOM Finance PLC 7.50 OSMQr20eT o 0.00
650,000  De®a Merlin Dunia Tekst| PT 000 2810612032 0,552 o.o7
51,480 DMNO ASH™ 233 281052024 51,258 n.og
1.010,000 DMO ASA!S 788 DaN0aI2026 911,525 152
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal sisments. 14
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G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2023

Haldings Coupen % of
in Local Rate Maturity Fair Value Net
Currency  Description % Date USD  Assets
Bends (continued)
Corporate Bonds (continued)
United States Dollar (continued)
710,000 Eastern & Southemn African Trade & 4.88 ZI052024 B89 854 1.15
Cevelopment BankiThe
12,637  Easy Tactic Ltd™ 750  1MOTR202T 24,758 0.04
350,000 Ecopetrol SA 863 19012020 350,385 058
190,000  Ecopetral 54 583 ZE4A2030 172,710 Q.28
880,000 Ecopetrol SA 385 13012033 857,318 143
1,857,000 Ecopetral SA 585 02112031 1,180,356 1.97
310,000 Endeavour Mining PLC 500 1411002026 275,108 0.46
929,000 Energuate Trust 588 Oc3nDar2027 B48 283 1.42
440,000  ENN Clean Energy International Investment Litd 338 1200512026 401, 498 087
230,000  Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd TA3 1022025 223,799 037
200,000 Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd 635  10/082028 151,878 030
230,000 Fantasia Holdings Group Co Ltd 1088 0201/2023 9,200 0.02
240,000  Fantasia Holdings Group Co Lud™ 1088 02032024 2,600 0.02
360,000  First Bank of Migena Ltd Via FEM Finance Co BY 383 XTHO2025 334624 0.5
238,000 First Quantum Minerals Ltd TS0 004025 238073 0.40
495,000 First Quantum Minerals Ld® 750 004025 494 076 083
220,000 First Quantum Minerals Litd B.83 01032026 212,288 0.35
300,000 GEMM Capital Labuan Ltd 188 1800412031 235,527 039
430,000 Geopark Ltd 550 17012027 386,575 081
320,000  Globe Telecom Inc™™ 420  ORAOB2026 295,803 0.50
20,000 Gohl Cap#tal Ltd 425 2400112027 202162 0.34
371,388  Guara Morte Sarl 520 15062034 313,824 0.52
200,000  Health & Happiness HEH International Holdings 1350 26062026 190,000 032
Ltd
610,000  Hunt Oil Co of Peru LLC Sucuwrsal Del Peru 855 18002033 514,514 1.03
370,000  IHS Holding Ltd 583 2901112026 33,859 051
310,000  IHS Holding Ltd 6235 2OM12028 234,103 038
610,000  IHS Metherlands Holdco BY .00 18002027 508 400 0.85
440,000  India Airport Infra 625 25102025 428 533 072
330,000  India Green Power Holdings 4.00 Z20X202T 2B8 516 0.48
1,029,699  Intermatonal Airport Finance SA 1200 15032033 985,936 165
420,000  Ipoteka-Bank ATIE 550 19412025 351,482 D84
3721 IRSAInversiones v Representaciones SA a75  Z2062026 352,820 064
330,000  JSW Infrastructure Ltd 495 2100112028 2B8 509 0.48
380,000  Kaisa Group Holdings Lid 1088 ZROTIR2023 20,900 0.0
30,000  Kaisa Group Holdings Lid'™ ™ 10.85 30102023 15,370 0.03
300,000 Kosmos Energy Ltd™ 713 00412026 281,766 0.47
520,000 Hosmos Energy Lid 713 DDA 2026 BG4 082 1.44
200,000 Li& Fung Ltd 500 18082025 183,822 0.3
386,286  Limak Iskenderun Uluslararasi Liran |sletmeciligi 8950 10072028 357812 080
AS
200,000 Logan Group Co Lid*® 485 141 212026 14,000 ooz
220,000 Medco Eell Pte Ltd 5.338 om0 2027 2005 G653 0.35
200,000 Melco Resorts Finance Lid 583 1TRTI202T 178,328 0.20
1,210,000 Melko Resors Finance Ltd 575 2100712028 1,048 312 1.75
780,000  Mersin Uluslararasi Liman Isletmeciligi AS 538 1501112024 TE1,6T0 1.27
480,000  Metinvest BY 850 ZR0412026 324,300 0.54
420,000  Mexico City Alrpedt Trust 550 31072047 319 469 053
300,000 MGM China Holdings Ltd 535 18062025 286,722 0.45
400,000 MGM China Holdings Ltd 588 15052026 3ra,032 063
480,000 MHP SE Fi-1 100052024 96,000 0.86
304,229 Medem Land China Co Ltd® 8.00 301212024 6,084 oo
318,658 Medem Land China CO Lid® 9.00 oM 2027 7,638 oo
218,341  Modem Land China CO Lid'™ 5.00 3011212026 4 367 0.01
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal sisments. 15
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G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2023

Holdings Coupon % of
in Local Rate Maturity Fair Value Net
Currency  Description % Date USD  Assets
Bends (continued)
Corporate Bonds (continued)
United States Dollar (continued)
455 841  Medemland Overseas Pte Lid™ 4.00 I0m042027 18,784 003
158,563 Mecdemland Overseas Pte Lid 19 300 I0m4ar2027 6725 oo
410,000  Mong Duong Finance Holdings BY 513 07052028 370,268 o8z
134,000  Mongolian Mining CorpEnergy Resources LLC 1250 130002006 130,032 022
200,000 MTHN Mauritius Investrents Lid 6.50 1302025 185,332 033
57,801 MV24 Capital BV 6.75 0110612034 502284 0.24
300,000  NWD Fnance BV Lig™ = 413 10320258 148,767 025
900,000  OCP SA 213 23062051 S9E6a7 0.99
460,000  Cleoducto Central SA 4.00 14072027 408,860 068
670,000 OTP Bank Myrt*! a7s 150512033 652, 708 111
160,000  Petrobras Global Finance BY B.00 2710112028 157,974 026
540,000  Petrobras Global Finance BV B.50 D3M07I2023 513,648 0.as
15,510,000  Petroleos de Venezuela S 5.00 ZBM02022 BT 950 117
240,000 Rede D'or Finance Sarl 4.50 2200112020 202,020 034
240,000 Redsun Properties Group Lid™ 7.30 13/01/2025 8,400 0o
200,000 Resorts World Las Vegas LLC / RWLY Capital 463 160412020 160,500 027
Ine
400,000  Resorts World Las Vegas LLC F RWLY Capital B8.45 ZTHOTI2030 5 000 0.65
Inc
200,000 Sagicor Financial Co Lid 530 120062028 185,250 0.3
580,000  SAN Miguel Industrias Pet SA f NG PET R&P 3.50 O20812028 467 068 078
Latin America SA
200,000 Sands China Lid 4.30 08012026 186 774 0.3
1,400,000  Sands China Ltd 255 DBD3202T 1,210,636 202
780,000  Sands China Lid 585 DBDBI2028 731,738 1.22
220,000  Sasol Financing USALLC 5.88 27032024 216,867 038
1,680,000 Sasol Financing USA LLC 438 180012026 1,453 904 245
1,180,000 SEPLAT Energy PLC T.75 0042026 1,004 345 1.68
406,992  ShaMaran Petroleum Conp™ 1200 30072025 368,515 g2
200,000 Shimas Group Haldings Lid™ 345 11012021 5,000 0o
390,000 Sios Latnoamenca SAB de CV 5.33 Q410482032 33,084 058
360,000  SMC Giobal Power Haoldings Corp/t® 70O  ANA02025 286 985 0.48
330,000  Sri Regeki Isman Thk PT 7.2 1610112025 a.072 ooz
162,160  Star Energy Geathermal Wayang Windu Ltd BTS 2410412023 155,468 026
200,000  Stillwater Mining Co 4.00 181112026 173,264 028
250,000  Studio City Co Ltd T.00 15022027 235,520 0.38
570,000  Stuedio City Finance Ltd G.00 15072025 538194 0,20
200,000  Stedio City Finance Litd B.50 1510112028 167 910 028
530,000  Sunac China Holdings Ltd™ 285 26042024 T2875 012
200,000 Sunac China Holdings Ltd 70O ORNOT2025 27,500 0.05
TI0,000  Cable Onda SA 450 3012030 575,100 (o=
980,000  Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Metherands Il BV 475 OBnDa2027 BE0,321 1.47
240,000  Transnet S0C Lid 825 DEMD22028 220,337 038
200,000 Tullow Ol PLC .00 0032025 152,250 0.25
350,000 Tupy Cverseas SA'™ 450 16022021 258 248 045
410,000  Turkiye Vakiflar Bankasi TAD B.50 DBAD1I2026 305 256 068
280,000  Uzbek Industrial and Construction Bank ATE 575 0222024 266 879 0.45
440,000  Virusa Corp 713 15M 22028 385373 [eR=]
350,000 Vwo Energy Investrments BY 213 240002027 315,907 053
1,120,000 Wynn Macau Lid 5.50 12012026 1,103,654 185
10,000  Yapive Kredi Bankagl ASHE 1388 15012024 023,404 1.54
370,000  Yapive Kredi Bankasi A5 825 16102028 371,850 nG2
1,000,000  YPF SA 895 21m0roeT 747,380 1.33
70,000  YPF SA 2850 27062029 55,948 008
410,000  YPF SA 7.00 15122047 260 350 044
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal sisments. 16
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G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2023

Haldings Coupon % of
in Local Rate Maturity Fair Value Net
Currency  Description % Date UsSD  Assets
Beonds {(continued)
Corporate Bonds (continued)
United States Dollar (continued)
420,000  Yuzhou Group Holdings Co Lid™® 538 281032024 6,300 oo
270,000  Yuzhou Group Heldings Cao Ltd! 738 130112026 16,200 003
200,000 Zhenro Properties Group Ltd™ 710 100082024 2000 0.00

54031277 90.26

Government Bonds
United States Dollar

510,000 Colombia Government International Bond 413 15052051 2E3,050 047
200,000  Mational Bank of Uzbekistan 4.85 21102025 154,330 03
200,000 Republic of South Africa Government 565 2T0ar2047 133,074 0.22
International Band
500 454 1.00
Total Bonds 57,500,632 96.06
% of
Haldings/ Fair value Met
Units _ Description USD  Assets
Investment Fund**
United States Dollar
88  Goldman Sachs PLC - USS Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund 88 0.00
Total Investment Fund B8 0.00
Forward Foreign Currency Gontracts held for Portfolio Hedging Purposes
Unraalized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sald Counterparty UsD Assets
DEM22023 EUR 82,953 usD BT 619 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 450 000
12102023 LISD 138,876 CHH HH2 887 Royal Bank of Canada 3,566 o
DEM22023 sD 2,955 849 EUR 2,763 877 Gtate Street Bank & Trust Co. 20 880 003
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Gurmency Contracts held for Pertfelie Hedging
Purposes 25 006 0.04
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Wet
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty USD  Ascets
DEM22023 EUR 65,008 usD 73,422 Westpac Banking Corp (150) (000
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Curmency Contracts held for Portfolio Hadging
Purposes {150} {0.0d)
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. 17
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G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2023

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging Purposes

Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterpanty UsSD  Assels
2112023 ALD 5.878 usD 3,785 Matwest Markets PLC 4 000
2112023 ALD 4,683 368 usD 3.011,348 Citibank MA 18,784 0oa
CEMO20Z3 sD 64,984 BRL 322,930 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 465 00
0302023 st 6,531,826 ERL 32,166,302 Citibank MNA 105,249 018
Q12023 ush 93,540 MM 1,737 524 Barclays Bank PLC 105 oo
CRM12023 sD 145,080 KM 2512114 JPMorgan Chase & Co 1,458 ili]
R a202s ust 470,925 MXMN 2,229,117 State Street Bank & Trust Co, 413 000
22023 uso 4108 JPY 595,505 Matwest Markets PLC I 000
222 ust 13,687 JEY 1,962,753 Royal Bank of Canada 423 .00
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Curmency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 128 066 0.H
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Net
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty USD _ Assets
CaMo20z3 BRL 48,117 uUsD 8,757 Citibanmk MA (144) {000
0302023 BRL 16,220,558 us0 3,304 521 JPMorgan Chase & Co (54,080 0.11)
0302023 BRL 16,220,558 us0 3,305,522 Deutsche Bank AG (654,760 0.11)
032023 BRL 32,166,302 usn 8,502,927 Citibank MA {105,371) 017
222023 JPY 1,629,596 uUsD 11,393 HSBC Bank PLC (3B0) (0L00)
Z212023 JPY 76,038,683 usD 520,622 Morgan Stanley & Co {15,751) (0.03)
22 r023 JPY 76,038,883 uUsD 228,549 Matwest Markets PLC {15,678) (0.03)
CRraozs WM 4,038.074 usD 235,035 BNP Paribas SA (3.012) (000
Ca1raoz3 MM 24 222 818 usD 1,288 081 State Street Bank & Trust Co, {13,107) (0u02)
CarM12023 MM 116,445,620 usD 6,690,563 Morgan Stanley & Co (32 618) (0.05)
Car1ranza MM 116,445 820 usD 6,660, 451 HSBC Bank PLC (22 503) (0u0u3)
Australia and New Zealand
22023 sD 13,326 ALUD 20,718 Banking Group Lid (58] (0,00
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes (33T 491) (0.58)
Futures Conbracts

Cash of USD 7,313 has been pledged as margin for open futures cantracts as at 30 September 2023

Unrealized % of

Number of Long! Gain Net
Contracts  Description Short USD  Assets
{11}  Uttra Bond December 2023 Shen 78143 013

(7} US5Year Mote December 2023 Shaort 1,868 0.00

Total Unrealized Gain on Futures Contracts 80,011 0.13

Unrealized % of

Humber of Lang! Loss Net
Contracts  Description Short USD  Assets
12 US 10 Year Note December 2023 Lang (9,841) (0.02)

20 US 2 Year Mote December 2023 Lang (8573 (0.0)

&  USUmra 10 Year Note December 2023 Long (18.781) (0.03)

Total Unrealized Loss on Futures Contracts (38 495) (0.08)

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. 18
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G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2023

Centrally Cleared Swap Contracts
Cash of USD 410,585 has been pledged as margin for open centrally cleared swap contracts as at 30 September 2023

Unrealized Galn on Swap Contracts

Interest Rate Swap Contracts
Lecal Unrealized % of
Notignal Maturity Gain Wet
Amount  Pay Recdive Currency Db USD Assets
300,000  Fixed, 3.25% Floating (EUR & Month LIBOR) EUR 201212026 Iy 000
1,880,000 Fixed, 3.25% Floating (EUR 8 Month LIBOR) EUR 201252027 7872 oo
170,000 Fixed, 3.25% Floating (EUR & Month LIBOR) EUR 20122030 1,604 0.0
Unrealized Gain on Centrally Gleared Interest Rate Swap Contracts 10,453 .02
Credit Default Swap Contracts
Local Coupan Unrealized % of
Hotianal Rate Maturity Gain Net
Amount  Description Credit Protection % Currency Date USD Assets
2 720,000 Markit CDX Sold 1.00 usD 201252027 72,183 012
Ermarging
Seres 38

1,430,000 Colombia Purnchased 1.00 uso 28 503 0.1

Government

International
Unrealized Gain on Credit Default Swap Contracts 80,214 313
Total Unrealized Gain on Swap Contracts S0, 707 015

Unrealized Loss on Swap Contracts

Interest Rate Swap Contracts
Local Unrealized % of
Hotional Maturity Loss Net
Amount  Pay Receive Cumrancy Dt UsD  Assels
60,000 Floating (EUR & Fimed, 3.00% ELUR 20M 22043 (2,071)  (0u00)
Maonth LIBOR)
Unrealized Loss on Centrally Cleared Interest Rate Swap Contracts (2,071)  [0.00)
Total Unrealized Less on Swap Confracts {2071)  (0.00)
The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. 18
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G5 Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2023

% of
Fair Value Net
Tetal Investments UsD Assels
Total Bonds 57,500, 632 2608
Total Irmvestment Fund &5 {0.0C)
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purposes 25,008 00«
Total Unrealized Loss on Foreard Foreign Currency Contracts held for Portfolio Hedging
Purposes (120 ({0.00)
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 128,086 o2
Total Unrealized Loss on Foreard Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes (337,481) ({0.58)
Total Unrealized Gain on Futures Contracts B0011 013
Total Unrealized Loss on Futures Contracts (38, 4595) {0
Total Unrealized Gain on Credit Default Swap Contracts 80,214 01
Total Unrealized Gain on Interest Rate Swap Contracts 10,493 ooz
Total Unrealized Loss on Interest Rate Swap Contracts {2,071) (0000
Other Assets and Liabilities 2,413,700 403
Met Asgets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units 59,860,003 100.00

% Indicates a variable rate secunty, the interest rate shown reflects the rate in effect at 30 Seplember 2023, Maturity date
represents next call date.

¥ Indicates a perpetual bond. Matunity date represents next call date, if any.
5 Payment in kind.

% Security was purchased pursuant to Rule 1444 under the Securties Act of 1933 and may not be resold subgect to that rule
except to qualified institutional buyers.

= In default
Y Security valued at nil s of 23002023
**  Represents affiliated holding.

Currency Abbreviations:

AUD  Australian Dolkar
BRL Brazilian Real

CNH  Chinese Yuan

EUR Eurg

GEF  British Pound

HKD  Hong Kong Dollar
JPY Japanese Yen

] Mexican Pesa

USD  United States Dallar

The accompanying notas form an integral part of the financal smisments. 20
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2025

64,579,518.53 9,973,015,047
11 3,993,811.81 616,764,358
Il 11 3,441,627.33 531,490,509
9,449,355.29 1,459,263,937
25,227,083.36 3,895,818,483
18,637,197.12 2,878,142,351
5,172,761.12 495,912,609

93,519,189

1,556,010.950

1,868,070.981

3,168,684.139

6,385,901.548

708,801.425

15,020.408
11 2.21 341
5.06 781
7.96 1,229
2.92 451
7.30 700

6,226
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2025

187,117,965.90
5,051,655

37.04
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328

23 103

2025 31
154.43
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UFJ S.A.

2023 12 31

2023 2022

32.1,32.3 2,935,193,869 453,281,989  3,825,986,159 590,847,043

3,16,32.1,32.3 3,616,724,062 558,530,697  4,284,596,331 661,670,211

1,603,412,205 247,614,947  2,229,417,660 344,288,969

2,013,311,857 310,915,750  2,055,178,671 317,381,242

32.1,32.3 7,905,238 1,220,806 41,095,998 6,346,455
4,32.1,32.3 2,738 423 2,646 409
5 2,742,761 423,565 2,550,486 393,872

6 690 107 534 82

7,16 75,461,935 11,653,587 56,886,270 8,784,947

8 6,638,031,293  1,025,111,173  8,211,118,424 1,268,043,018
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UFJ S.A.
2023 12 31

2023 2022
16,32.1  2,072,466,179 320,050,952  2,665,200,741 411,586,950
2,072,466,179 320,050,952  2,665,200,741 411,586,950
0 0 0 0
9,16,32.1  3,815,550,822 589,235,513  4,852,402,519 749,356,521
3,815,550,822 589,235,513  4,852,402,519 749,356,521
0 0 0 0
10 1,229,105 189,811 2,511,756 387,890
11,16 58,526,361 9,038,226 127,795,347 19,735,435
39,457,074 6,093,356 10,289,047 1,588,938
12 37,241,146 5,751,150 8,258,300 1,275,329
13 2,215,928 342,206 2,030,747 313,608
14 187,117,966 28,896,627 187,117,966 28,896,627
15 364,038,890 56,218,526 302,480,181 46,712,014
15 1,762,158 272,130 325,518 50,270
97,882,738 15,116,031 62,995,349 9,728,372
17 6,638,031,203  1,025,111,173  8,211,118,424  1,268,043,018
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UFJ S.A.
2023 12 31
2023 2022
18,32.1 88,703 13,698 75,775 11,702
88,703 13,698 75,775 11,702
21 52,561,295,560 8,117,040,873 44,808,157,318 6,919,723,735
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UFJ S.A.
2023 12 31

2023 2022
305,406,272 47,163,891 133,835,051 20,668,147
419,480 64,780 1,609,626 248,575
54,460,452 8,410,328 73,318,828 11,322,627
(207,634,601)  (32,065,011)  (85,089,296)  (13,140,340)
(505, 331) (78,038)  (19,419,339)  (2,998,929)
(4,270,379) (659,475)  (1,835,161) (283,404)
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
22 120,905,992 18,671,512 134,826,564 20,821,266
(33,509,033)  (5,174,800)  (44,141,518)  (6,816,775)
4,397,406 679,001 5,972,209 922,288
23 7,382,356 1,140,057 8,565,956 1,322,841
(60,136,136)  (9,286,823)  (63,758,784)  (9,846,269)
25,26 (25,051,516)  (3,868,706)  (22,559,016)  (3,483,789)
(20,355,899)  (3.143,561)  (17,925,916)  (2,768,299)
(2,584,124) (399,066)  (2,247,688) (347,110)
(1,545,058) (238,603)  (1,360,468) (210,097)
27,31 (35,084,620)  (5,418,118)  (41,199,768)  (6,362,480)
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(1,275,260) (196,938) (1,454,125) (224,561)

24 (2,519,709) (389,119) (2.,730,496) (421,670)
12,28.1  (33,421,187) (5.161,234)  (21,048,460) (3.250,514)
99,596,100 15,380,626 64,977,102 10,034,414

28.2 (1,713,362) (264,594) (1,981,753) (306,042)
97,882,738 15,116,031 62,995,349 9,728,372
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UFJ S.A.

2023 12 31

1.1.
UFJ S.A.
1974 11
1996

2005 10

2006

2007
70 30

2008 28 49,080
1,817,968.52 37,117,968.52
92.25
63.72 28.53
2014
12-13
1993
907648
2016
UFJ S.A.
2017 31 UFJ
S.A. 100

1.2.
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1.3.
2.1.
2.2.
2023 12 31
1.27480000
0.00709320
1.10465000
2.3.
2023
2022

2.4.
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2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

1.25

2.5

1997 12 16

2023 12 31

10
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2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.13.

2023 2022

2,202,093,277 2,947,074,206
1,414,630,785 1,337,522,125
3,616,724,062 4,284,596,331

2,738 2022 2,646
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2023 12 31

3,363,209
960,211

2,402,998

22,234,272
20,288,833

1,945,439

25,597,480

5,749,717,292

2023 12 31

90,062 (25,795)
39,708 0
50,354  (25,795)
1,301,875
1.301.875
0 0
1,391,937  (25,795)
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117,858 3,545,334 3,306,338 238,997
33,649 1,033,568 946,856 86,711
84,209 2,511,766 2,359,480 152,286

710,988 24,247,135 21,743,371 2,503,764

710,988 22,301,696 19,797,932 2,503,764

0 1,945,439 1,945,439 0

828,846 27,792,469 25,049,709 2,742,761

2023 2022
690 534
690 534
2023 2022
30,925,318 16,263,642
17,079,967 14,158,477
691,916 656,139
4,411,547 4,377,532
6,317,669 6,922,186
10,617,073 11,432,600
1,574,684 1,576,343
881,536 195,524
0 0
567,781 834,146
0 0
2,394,444 469,681
75,461,935 56,886,270
4,585,122,868 2022
2022 12 31
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10
2023 2022
971,611 528,787
257,494 1,982,969
1,229,105 2,511,756
11
2023 2022
8,561,263 9,571,741
7,790,425 10,319,486
15,081,748 13,423,755
0 0
15,411 29,171
» 0 26,800,870 87,606,762
276,644 74,489
* 0 6,769,943
58,526,361 127,795,347
Q) 2022 12 31
12
2018 2016
21 L.G.-A60
2023 12 31
13
2023 2022
2,215,928 2,030,747
2,215,928 2,030,747
14
2023 12 31 5,002,575

49,080 187,117,966
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2023 12,597,421 289,882,760 325,518
2022 12 31 0 0 62,995,349
0 0 0
2022 0 13,380,000 (13,380,000)
2017 0 (8,700,000) 8,700,000
0 53,800,000 (53,800,000)
3,078,709 0 (3,078,709)
2023 12 31 15,676,130 348,362,760 1,762,158
10
2023 12 31 58,411,675 2022 53,731,675
2022 28 13,380,000 2023
2017 8,700,000
2023 12 31
2023
2019 9,981,000
2020 10,911,000
2021 11,874,000
2022 12,265,675
2023 13,380,000
2023 12 31 58,411,675
2023 12 31
2023 2022

2,982,750,453 3,349,527,021
18,601,641 15,563,726
3,001,352,094 3,365,090,747
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575 2013
17
2023 12 31
5,614,636,504
18
19
20

2023 2022 12 31

21
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2023 2022
1,942,039,398 2,491,655,095
339,089,048 475,836,557
8,300,550 6,590,039
2,289,428,996 2,974,081,691
2013 26

4,585,122,870 2022

2023 2022
88,703 75,775
2023 2022
703,210 1,698,764
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22
2023 2022
27,782,396 27,477,944
84,167,200 86,642,608
4,634,416 18,149,234
1,060,166 1,059,205
3,261,813 1,497,573
120,905,991 134,826,564
1992 17 69 (2
23
2023 2022
93,745 365
5,410,115 4,308,298
874,597 1,335,997
* 217,437 2,404,067
779,823 513,673
6,639 3,556
7,382,356 8,565,956

™
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24
2023 2022
393,238 701,672
1,691,949 802,718
77,704 7,812
356,818 1,218,294
2,519,709 2,730,496
25
2023 2022
33 34
95 87
45 45
173 166
26
2023 2022
6,789,725 6,267,400
881,875 853,614
5,413,786 5,413,786
2023 2022 12 31
27
2023 2022
517,602 637,273
1,192,339 1,132,763
6,968,897 5,280,881
8,808,345 6,895,172
1,969,623 1,687,297
5,660,765 5,739,620
3,940,649 3,940,850
5,138,430 15,057,271
586,992 525,935
202,482 122,970
98,496 179,736
35,084,620 41,199,768
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28.1.

28.2.

29
2020 12 31

100

8212

100

30

100,000

100,000

107 (1)

2024
179 (1)
0.8
2016
0.8
0.8
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2023 2022
24,363,057 15,407,163
9,058,130 5,641,297
33,421,187 21,048,460
2023 2022
1,641,509 1,905,898
71,853 75,855
1,713,362 1,981,753
33 100-
2014 59
2014 49 2015 12 18
20,000
12
2024
2015
2018
2018 180 (1)
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) 2022 4,115,522
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2023
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5,327,640 (5,716,313
4,241,878
2020

2023 2022
250,097 241,485
74,486 67,237
30,055 26,691
354,638 335,413

12 31 3402
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32
32.1.

2023 12 31

2,935,193,869 0 0 2,935,193,869
2,202,093,277 1,414,630,785 0 3,616,724,062
7,905,238 0 0 7,905,238

0 0 2,738 2,738

0 0 0 0
5,145,192,384  1,414,630,785 2,738  6,559,825,907
2,072,466,179 0 0 2,072,466,179
3,815,550,822 0 0 3,815,550,822
5,888,017,001 0 0 5,888,017,001
88,703 0 0 88,703

88,703 0 0 75,775
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2022 12 31

3,825,986,159 0 0 3,825,986,159
2,947,074,206  1,337,522,125 0 4,284,596,331
41,095,998 0 0 41,095,998

0 0 2,646 2,646

0 0 0 0
6,814,156,363  1,337,522,125 2,646  8,151,681,134
2,665,200,741 0 0 2,665,200,741
4,852,402,519 0 0 4,852,402,519
7,517,603,260 0 0 7,517,603,260
75,775 0 0 75,775

75,775 0 0 75,775
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32.2.
2023 12 31
1,732,460,231 0 0 1,732,460,231 12,817,030
1,589,457,158 0 0 1,589,457,158 3,516,149
3,321,917,389 0 0 3,321,917,389 16,333,179
1,738,235,564 0 0 1,738,235,564 12,798,135
1,253,765,427 0 0 1,253,765,427 27,860,760
2,992,000,991 0 0 2,992,000,991 40,658,895

2023 12 31

259/351
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1,899,365,978 602,914 0 1,899,968,892 58,671,005

276,202,684 0 0 276,202,684 1,460,089

2,175,568,662 602,914 0 2,176,171,576 60,131,094

1,951,149,778 583,601 0 1,951,733,379 58,650,622

3,429,660,974 0 0 3,429,660,974 80,871,843

5,380,810,752 583,601 0 5,381,394,353 139,522,465
2022 12 31 2022 12 31
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32.3.

2023 12 31

2023

2,935,193,869
58,781,214
2,935,193,869

3,616,724,062
335,748,290
53,432,726
3,041,245,689
172,124,952

2022

3,825,986,159
89,447,866
3,825,986,159

4,284,596,331
276,865,118
660,289,269
2,933,839,603
374,268,606

14,172,405 39,333,735
7,905,238 41,095,998
10,844 26,460,119
7,894,383 9,368,347
11 5,267,532

0 0

2,738 2,646
2,738 2,646

690 534

690 534

6,559,826,597

8,151,681,668
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32.4.
2023 12 31
2023 2023
3,386,292 96,936
81,465,147 1,102,919
264,357,581 3,211,972
1,383,251,211 8,405,204
1,589,457,158 3,516,149
3,321,917,389 16,333,179
2022 12 31
2022 2022
46,212,155 253,378
143,248,397 2,129,579
210,566,686 3,156,846
1,499,941,654 53,131,205
276,202,684 1,460,089

2,176,171,576 60,131,094
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34

35

36

2023 12 31
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2023 2022
6,638,031,293 8,211,118,424
97,882,738 62,995,349
1.47 0.77
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMG (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
BALAMCE SHEET
December 31, 2023

{in LU=D)
ASSETS

Motes 2023 2022
Cash, balances with central banks
and post office banks 321,323 293515308569 38255986159
Loans and advances o credit institutions 3,16, 32.1., 323, 3.616.724.082 4.284.596.301
a) repayable on demand 1.603.412.205 2222417660
b} other loans and advances 2013.311.857 205517867
Loans and advances o customers 321, 323 T.905.238 41.095.938
Shares and cther variable-yield securities 4,321, 32.3. 2.738 2,645
Fixed Assets 5 2.742.761 2,550,486
Other assets -] 650 534
Prepaymaents and accrued income T.16 T5.481.935 SE.BEE.2TO
TOTAL ASSETS a8 £.638.031.253 8.211.118.424

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.
=12
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBCURG) S.A.
BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2023
{in USD)
= contmued -

LIABILITIES

Motes 2023 2022
Amounts owed to credit institutions 16, 321, 2072466179 2.665.200.T41
a) repayable on demand 207246868179 2865 200741
b) with agreed maturity dates o 0
Amounts owed to customers 9,16, 32.1, 3.815550.822 4.852.402.519
a) repayable on demand 3815550822 4 852 402 519
b) with agreed maturity dates o 0
Cther liabilities 10 1.229.10% 2.511.756
Accruals and deferred income 11,186 58.526.381 127.795.347
Pravisions 39.457.074 10.289.047
a) provisions for taxation 12 20146 8.258.300
b) other provisions 13 2215828 2.030.747
Subscribed capital 14 187 117,968 187.117.966
Reserves 15 364,038,890 302.480.181
Result brought forward 15 1.7T62.158 325.518
Profit for the financial year 97,882,738 62,995,349
TOTAL LIABILITIES 17 " 6638031293 T B.211.118424

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.

-13.
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MITSLUEBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMG (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
OFF BALAMCE SHEET ITEMS
Decamber 31, 2023

{in LS
Motes 2023 2022
Contingent liabilities 18, 32.1. B8.703 T5.775
of which:
guarantees and assets pledged as
collateral security 83,703 78775
Fiduclary operations 2 52.561.295.560 44.808.157.318

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.

-14.

266/351



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKIMNG (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year ended December 31, 2023
{in LS
Motes 2023 2022
Interest receivable and similar income 305406272 133.835.051
af which:
- Megative interast received on amounts owed
to credit institutions and to customers 419,480 1.609.626
- Interest Gain from foreign currency swap 54 480 452 73.318.825
Interest payable and similar charges (207.634.601) (85.089.296)
af which:
- Megative interest paid on loans and advances
and on balances with credit institutions (505.331) (19.419.33%9)
- Interest Loss fram foreign currency swap (4.270.375) (1.835 161)
Imcome from securities 0 0
Income from shares and other variable yield securities i] 0
Commission receivable x2 120.905.992 134.826.564
Commission payable (33.508.033) [44.141.518)
Met profit on financial operations 4,397.408 5.972.209
Other operating income 23 T.382.256 B.565.956
General administrative expenses (80.135.138) (63.758.784)
a) staff costs 25, 26 {25.051.518) (22.559.018)
of which:
wages and salaries (20,355.805) (17 .925.816)
social security costs [2.584.124) (2.247 588)
of which:
- social securly costs relating to pensions (1.545.058) {1.360.458)
b) other administrative expenses 2T, M (35.084.620) (41.1909.763)
Value adjustments in respect of tanglble [1.275.260) {1.454.125)
and intangible assets
Other aperating charges 24 (2.515.70%) (2.730.496)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 12, 284 (32.421.187) {21.048.480)
Profit on ardinany activities after tax 98,556,100 g4 877 102
Other taxes not shawn under the preceding items 28.2 (1.713.362) (1.981.753)
Praofit for the financial year 97.882.738 62.995.349

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5.A

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023

HOTE 1 - GEMERAL

1.1

Corporate matters

Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) 5 4. (the "Bank”) was incorporated in Luxembourg
on April 11, 1974 as a socidld anomyme.,

Om April 1, 1855, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo, Lid., merged with The Mitsubishi Bank, Limited to form
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Ltd_, and Bank of Tokyo (Luxembourg) S.4. changed its name to Bank of
Taokyo-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) 5.4

On October 1, 2005, the indirect shareholder, Mitsubishi Tokyo Financial Group, Inc. (MTFG) merged with UFJ
Holdings, Inc. (UFJ) and formed a new financial group, Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Graup (MUFG).

On January 1, 2008, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubsshi, Ltd. merged with UFJ Bank Limited to
form The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd,, and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) 5.4 changed its
namea 1o Bank ol Tokya-Mitsubishi UFJ [Luxembourg) S A,

On April 2, 2007, the Bank became a jointly capfalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation by T0% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UF.J Ltd. by 30%, which are under the same holding
company Mitsubishi LUFJ Finangial Group (MUFG), Consequently, Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi LIFJ
{Luxembourg) 5.4 changed its name to MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody S.4. (MUGC).

On April 28, 2008, MITSLEBISHI UFJ Global Custody 5.8, has issued 48,080 new shares and the capital of the
Bank has been increased by USD 1,817 968,52 The total subscribed share capital is currently set at

USD 37.117.965,52. The two major shareholders of the Bank hold 52,25% of the capital, Mitsubishi UFJ Trust
and Banking Corporation by 63,72% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Lid. by 28 53%

Om August 7, 2014, MITSUBISHI UF.) Global Custedy 5. A. has established an external branch located at
Ormmande House, 12-13 lower Lesson Street, Dublin 2, Ireland. Mitsubishi UFJ Global Custody S A, Dublin

Branch is registered as credit institution pursuant to UE Regulation, 1803, under the number 807648,

On May 1, 2016, MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody S 4. has changed its name to MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR
SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A (MIEL).

.18.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

Cn May 31, 2017, Mitsubishi UF.J Trust and Banking Corporation obtained 100% of the voting shares of Mitsubishi
UFJ Investor Services & Banking {(Luxembourg) 5.4

Thie members of the Board of Directors ane Senior Executrves of Mitsubishi LIFJ Trust and Banking Corparation Group
and Independent Directors. The business policy and valuation principles, unless prescribed by the legal requirements
existing in Luxembourg, ane determined and monitared by the Board of Directors n accordance with those appled in
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group.

Matur in

The obgect of the Bank is the undertaking for its own account, as well as for the account of third parties either wathin or
sutside the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg, of any banking or financial eperations, as well as all ather aperations,
whether indusbrial or commercial or in real estate, which directly or indirectly relate to the main object described above.

Maore specifically, the Bank concentrates its activities on investment management services.

A significant volume of the Banks transactions is concluded directly or indirectly with companies of Mitsubishi LIFJ

Financial Group.

Annual accounts

The Bank prepares its annual accounts in US Dollars (USD), the currency in which the capital is expressed. The Bank's
accounting year coincides with the calendar year.

The Bank's Beard of Dinectars has made an assessment of the Bank's abilty to continue as a going concerm and 15
satisfied that the Bank has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future, Furthermore, the Beard of

Directors is not aware of any matenal uncertaintes that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank's abikty to continue
as a going concem. Therefore, the annual accounts continwe to be prepared on the going concern basis.

S 18-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

MNOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21.

2.2

The Bank prepares its annual accounts under the historical cost principle in accondance with the laws and regulations
in force in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg and on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the banking
sector in the Grand-Duchy of Lugembourg.

In ohserving these, the follewing significant acoounting policies are applied,

Assets and l@bilites are stated in the balance sheet on the date the amounts concemed become cleared funds, that is,
cn their date of effective transfer,

Egrei )

The Bank maintains a mult-cumency accounting system which records all transactions in the currency or currencies of
the transaction, on the day on which the contract is concluded

Assets and [Ebilites are converted into USD at the spot exchange rates applicable at the balance sheet date. Both
reaksed and unrealised profits and losses arising on revaluabon aré accounted for in the profit and loss account for the
year, except for those resulting from items specifically covered by a forward foreign exchange contract (swap and
hedging forward foreign exchange contract) which are recorded at historical exchange rates.

Revenues and expenses in foreign cumencies are translated into USD daily at the prevailing exchange rates.

At the year-end, all unsettied forward transactions are translated into ISD at the forward rate prewvailing on the Balance
Sheet date for the remaining maturbies.

Results an unsettied forward transactions linkesd to spot transactions and an swap transactions are accrued at the
balance sheet date. In case of unrealised results on positicn covered by foreign exchange swap, these are neutralized
at year end,

The main foreign cumency exchange rates used as at December 31, 2023 are as follows:
1 US0 = 1,27480000 GBF

1 USD = 0,00708320 JPY
1 USD0 = 1,10465000 EUR
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

Financial instruments dervatves

The Bank's commiments deriving from the dervatives financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, forward rate
agresments, financial futures and options are recordad on the transaction date among the off balance sheet items.

At the year-end, where necessary, a provision is set up in respect of individual unrealised losses resulting from the
revaluation of the Bank's commitments at market value. There is no provision for unrealized losses on forward deals

recorded for the year 2023 (2022 USD 0).

Mo provision is set up in those cases where a financial instrument clearly covers an asset or a liability and economic

unity iz established or where a financial instrurnent i hedged by a reverse transaction o that no cpen pesiion axists,

It is the Bank's policy to establsh specific value adjustments in respect of doubtful and irecoverable debts, as deemed
appropriate by the Board of Directors.

Value adjustrnents, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they relate.

The value adjustments for possible losses on loans and advances, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they
reslate.

islan for i
In accordance with the Luxembourg tax legislation, the Bank can establish a lumg-sum provision for nsk exposures, as
defined in the legislation governing prudential supervision of banks. The purpose of the provision is to take account of
risks which are Bkely to crystalise but which have not vet been identified as at the date of preparation of the annual

accounts.

Pursuant to the Instructions issued by the Direcleur des Confribubions on December 18, 1987, this provision should be
made before taxation and should not exceed 1,25% of the Bank's risk exposures.

The Bank has not constituted any provision as of December 21, 2023 (2022 USD Q)

S
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MITSUEBISHI UFJ INWVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- cantinued -
Transferable securities
Transierable securities are recorded initialty at their purchase price. The average cost methed is used for initial

recogniticn. Value adjustments, calculated as described in note 2.5, or ansing from a diminution of value, ane deducted

from the account balance.

Tangible and intangibl

Tangible and intangible assets are valued at purchase price. The value of tangible and intangible fixed assets with
lirnited useful econemic lves is reduced by value adjustments calculated to write off the value of such assets
systermatically over their useful economic lives as follows:

+ Hardware equipment: 4 years,

«  Software: 4 years and 5 years;

s (ther intangible assets: 5 years,

«  Other tangible assets; 10 years,

*  Goodwll: 5 years.

Taxes

Taxes are accounted for on an accruals basis m the accounts of the year to which they relate. Provision for taxation
cormesponds to the difference between the estimated provisions created by the Bank and the advance payments for the
financial years for which no final tax assessment natices have been receved yet

Prepayment and accrued income

This asset item includes expenditune incurred during the financial year but redating to a subsequent inandial year,

Agcruals and deferred incorme

This liabikty item includes income received during the financial year but relating to a subsequent financial year.

-22-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

Provisions

Provisions are intended to cover losses or debits the nature of which is clearly defined and which, at the date of the
balance sheet are ether ikely to be incurred or certain to be incurred but uncerain as to their amount or as to the date
on which they will arise.

The Bank's main sireams of revenue are comprised of interests and commissions income. The Bank earns fee and
cormmission income from a wide range of services it provides to its customers.

Revenue is generally recognized when the related services are performed or recognized over the period that the
SENICES ane proveded,

MOTE 3 - LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Loans and advances to credit institutions other than those repayable on demand, presented at their nominal value
may be analysed according to their remaining maturity as follows:

2023 2022

usD usp

Mat mare than three months 2202093277 2947 074,206
Maore than three months but less than one year 1.414.630.785 1,337 522125
3.616.724.062 4,284 596.331

MOTE 4 - SHARES AND OTHER VARIABLE YIELD SECURITIES

Transferable secunties shown under the item “Shares and other vanable yield securities” consist entirely of unlsted
securities for IS0 2,738 (2022 USD 2 B48).

-23-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

NOTE & - MOVEMENTS IN FIXED ASSETS

The following movements have occummed in the Bank's fixed assets in the course of the financial year:

FIXED ASSETS:
Gross value at Additions Disposals Exchange Gress value at Cumulative Net value at
the beginning difference the end of the value the end of
of the financial financial year adjustments the financial
year year
uso uso UsD uso usD usD UsD
1. Tangible assets 3363208 50.062 (25.795) 117.858 3.545.334 3.306.338 2365487
a) Hardwane 950,211 38,708 o] 33.649 1.033.568 245 856 56.711
b} Other fiures and fitings,
fiat furniture, equipment and 2402508 50,354 (25.T95) 84,208 2511.766 2,350,480 152,286
vehicles
2. Intangible assets 22,234,272 1.301.875 1] 710,988 24,247 135 21.743.3M 2.503.764
a) Softears 20286833 1.301.875 o 710.588 22,301 895 19.787.932 2503764
b) Goodwill acquired for
valuable
Consideration 1.945.439 0 o o 1.945 439 1.845.439 a
Tatal Fixed Assets 25.597.480 1.391.937 {25.795) 828,848 27.792.469 25.049.709 2.742.761

Goodwll acquired for valuable consideration represents the value of the takecver of part of the client base of ancther insbtution

.24 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2023
- contmued -

HNOTE & - OTHER ASSETS

.35
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2023 2022
uso usD
Cher assets 630 534
620 S34
HOTE 7 - PREPAYMEMNTS AND ACCRUED INCOME

The Bank's prepayments and accrued income may be analysed as follows:
2023 2022
uso uso
Actrued interest income 30925318 16.263.642
Accrued Interest income on swaps 17.079.8967 14.158.477
Commission from the Management Company 681.916 656,139
Commission on fiduciary operations 4.411.547 4377532
Commissicn on global custady 6.317. 669 6922185
Commission on investment funds 10.617.073 11.432600
Ciher accrued ingome 1.574 654 1.576,343
Cther Commissions 881.538 195524
Cther prepayments o 0
Prepard general expenses 567.781 B34.146
Frepaid income takes ] [i]
VAT recoverable 2384 444 458581
75461 835 55.886.270
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HNOTEB - FOREIGH CURRENCY ASSETS

At December 31, 2023, the aggregate amount of the Bank's assets denominated in foreign curmrencies,
rransiated into USD, is USD 4.585 122868 (2022 USD 5.745.717.292).

NOTE 9 - AMOUNTS OWED TO CUSTOMERS

As at December 31, 2023, there is no debits other than those repayvable on demand owed to customers,
{as at December 31, 2022 debts ather than repayable on demand amounted to USD O).

HOTE 10 - OTHER LIABILITIES

The Bank's other liabilhes may be analysed as follows:

2023 2022

UusD UsD

Preferentsal creditors gF.61 528787
Sundry creditors 257 484 1.982 959
1.229.105 2511.758
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- contmued -

HOTE 11 - ACCRUALS AMD DEFERRED INCOME

The Bank's accruals and deferred income may be analysed as follows:

2023 2022
uso uso
Actrued commission £8.561.263 571,741
Accrued general expenses 7.790.425 10.319.485
Accrued interest expenses 15.081.748 13423755
Deferred income related to commission 1) a
Ciher deferred income 15.411 2817
Meutrakzabion of foréign exchange results on postion covered
by foreign exchange swap (note 2.2) 26.800.870 87,606,762
Cther accrued expenses 276644 74.489
Cther suspense receipts (%) o 6,769,943
58.526.381 127,795,347

{*) Other suspense receipts: Transitory account for suspense receipts payable after the December 31, 2022 to
the retated beneficiary.

NOTE 12 - TAXATION - EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE: DEFERRED TAXATION
The Bank prepares its annual accounts in USD, currency in which its statutary capital is denominated.
In September 2018 the Tax Authorities authorized the Bank to use the USD tax functional currency in
accordance with the Circular L.G.-A no 80 dated June 21, 2018

Consequently, the fiscal and commercial balance sheets are established in the same currency the LISD,
As at December 31, 2023, there is no deferred ta.

.97
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

NOTE 13 - OTHER PROVISIONS

The Bank's other pravisions are made of provision for staff remuneration.

223 2022

ush usD

Provigion for staff remuneration 2215928 2030747
2215928 2030747

HOTE 14 - SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2023, the Bank's subscribed and fully paid up capital amounts to USD 187,117 986 for
2.002.5735 shares of Class A and 43,080 shares of Class B.

NOTE 15 - MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES AND RESULT BROUGHT FORWARD

Legal Other Result brought

reserve reserves forward

uso uso uso

Balance at January 1, 2023 12.587 421 289 882 76D 325518

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2022 0 O 62005 340

Appropriation of profit

- Dividends paid to shareholders 1] 1] 0

- Transfer to reserves for Met Worth Tax 2022 0 12,280,000 (13.380,000)
= Transfer from Reserde for Net Warth Tax

2M7 1] (8.700.000) 8.700.000

- Allocation to Free resanve [1] 53.800.000 (53.800.000)

- Allecation to Legal reserve 3.078.700 0 {3.078.708)

Balance at Decernber 31, 2023 15676130 348,362,760 1762158

.28
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

Under Lusembourg law, the Bank must appropriate to a legal reserve an amownt equivalent to at least 5% of the
annual net profit until such reserve is egqual to 10% of the share capital. This appropriation is made in the
following year, Dastribution of the legal reserve & resticted.

Based on the Luxembourg tax law, the Bank has elected to get a tax credit for all or part of the net worth tax due
for that year. This tax credit is however, imited to the amount of the corporate income tax due for the previcus
year before the imputation of any tax credits. In order to profit from this credit, the Bank must commit itself to
post before the end of the subsequent year an ameunt equal to five times the net worth tax eredd to a special
resarve, which has to be maintained for a period of five years.

As of December 31 2023, the special reserve for net worth tax is included in the Bank's ather reserve for a total
amount of LISD 58411 675 (2022 USD 53.731.675).

As resolved in the Annual General Meeting dated March 28, 2022, the Bank has allocated an amaount of
USD 13.380.000 to special reserve for Met Worth Tax 2022 and reversed the available special resenve for Net

Woorth Tax constituted in 2017 which amounted to LISD 8,700,000,

The accumulated balance of special reserve for Net Worth Taxes states as follows as at December 31, 2023,

2023

Reserve for Met

Worth Tax

Years uso
2019 9.981.000
2020 10,811.000
2021 11.8674.000
2022 12,265 675
2003 13.380.000
Balance at December 31, 2023 8.411.675

279/351



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

NOTE 16 - RELATED PARTY BALANCES

As at December 31, 2023, the following balances with related partes are cutstanding

ASSETS

2023 2022
UsD UsD
Loans and advances to credit institutions 2.982.750.453 3348 527.021
Prepayments and acorued income 18.601.641 15.563.726
3,001,352.084 3.365,080.747

LIABILITIES
2023 2022
usD usD
Amounts owed to credit institutions 1.942,039.3838 2.491 555095
Amounts owed 1o customerns 339.080 048 475 836 557
Accruals and deferred income 8,300,550 5,500,030
2,280 428 008 2974081 691

At the request of the Bank, the CSSF has granted a total exemption fior the exposures towards the group
{Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group) in the calculation of large exposure imits, in accordance with the Regulation
{ELJ} Mo 5752013 of June 26, 2013 (Part IV).
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

NOTE 17 - FOREIGN CURRENCY LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2023, the aggregate amount of liabalities dencminated in foreign currencies translated into
USD is USD 4 585 122 870 (2022 5.614 636 504).

NOTE 18 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Bank's contingent liabilities may be analysed as follows:

2023 2022

UsD usD

Counter-guarantess msued 83,703 75775
I ——— I ——————8

As at the year-end, there wera no related party balances,

HOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS

The Bank has entered mta certain commitrments which are not disclosed neither in the Balance Sheet nor in the
Off Balance Sheet ltems, but which are significant for the purposes of assessing the financial situation of the
Bank. Details of such commitments are as follows:

2023 2022
usD UsD

Commitments in respect of fiwed rental payments contracted on
buildings TOE.210 1.688.784

As at the year-end, there are no related party balances

..
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HNOTE 20 - OPERATIONS LINKED TO CURRENCY EXCHAMGE RATES, INTEREST RATES AND OTHER MARKET

RATES

The fellowing types of ferward transactions are outstanding as at Decemiber 31, 2023 and 2023

lin i hange

- Forward exchange transactions (Swaps, outrights)

Operations linked to the foreign currency exchange rates are made to a large extent for the purposes. of
covering the existing positions.

HOTE 21 - INVESTMENT MAMAGEMEMNT SERVICES AND UNDERWRITING FUNCTIONS

Management and agency services provided by the Bank include:

= Custody and administration of transferable securities;
- Fiduciary representations;

- Agency functions;

- Partfolic management and advice.

HOTE 22 - COMMISSIONS RECEIVABLE

2023 2022

usD usD

Fees on Investment Funds 27.782.355 27.477.844
Fees on Global custody from Institutional customers 84167200 56642608
Fees on Fiduciary transactions 4,634 416 18.149.234
Fees on Services to Management Company 1,060,166 1.058.205
Cther fees and commissions 3.261.813 1.497 573
120.905.991 134.828 564

.3,
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

Commissions receivable consist of the following:

Fees on Investment Funds consist of fees and commissions charged to Investment Funds fior custody senvices,
central administration, depositary and cther services. The fees are calculated on the basss of the value of net
assets of the funds under administration.

Fees on Global custody from Institutional customers consist of fees and commassions charged to institutional
custormers for global custody sevices including secunties trade management, seltlerment, corporate actions,
income collection and proxy voling The fees are calculated on the basis of the assets held under custody and
the number of transactions,

Fees on Fiduciary transactions consist of fees and commissions eamed on fiduciary assets including custody
transactians, cash management and fiduciary notes issuance. The fees are calculated on the basis of the

assets hekd under management and the number of transactions,

Fees on Services to Management Company include fees covering functional expenditures and fees for support

sarvices in accordance with the Service Level Agreement

Other fees and commissions include varnous fees such as listing agent fees, guarantee fees, banking services

fees and fund order desk sevices fees,

By application of Article 60(2) of the law of June 17, 1992, on the annual accounts of credit institutions sources
of income have not been analysed by gecgraphical regicn.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5.A

NHOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- contmued -
NOTE 23 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2023 2022
UsD uso
Adjustment of Income taxes regarding previous years 93745 385
Adjustment for cCommISSon previous Years 5410115 4,308 288

Income from the adjustment of general expenses
regarding previous years B74.597 13358897
Sub-Custodian refund (%) 217 437 2.404 087
Adjustment of VAT regarding previcus years 779823 513673
Other operating income G.E38 3.558
7.382 356 B.565 056

{*) Sub-Custodian refund: Migration costs refund from Ctibank relating to change of sub-custodian from Brown
Bother Harriman to Ciibank.

NOTE 24 - OTHER OPERATING CHARGES

2023 2022
uso uso

Charges from the adjustment of general
expenses regarding previous years 383.238 T01.872
Commission on previous years 1.651.949 02718
Interest on previous years Fr.704 7.B12
Cthers operating losses 356.818 1.218.204
2.519.708 2,730 496

NOTE 25 - STAFF NUMBERS
The average number o persons employed during the financial year by the Bank is as follows:

2023 2022

Number Number

Senior management 33 34

Middle management a5 a7

Employees _ 45 45
173 186
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

HNOTE 26 - MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

The Bank has granted emoluments in respect of the financial year to the members of the managerial body of the

Bank by reason of their responsibilities as follows:

2023 2022

UsD UsD

Senwor management G.788.725 B.287. 400
Of which vaniable remuneration 881.875 853,814

O witich fix remuneration S413.786 5413786

Durmg the financzal year, no pension commitments to the members of the Board of Directors and General
Management were made.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Bank did not grant any advances and credits to the members of the
Beard of Directors and General Management.

NOTE 27 - OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2023 2022

usD usD

Cata charges 97602 G3T2T3
Maintemance 1,182,338 1.132. 763
Membership fees 5.968 857 5.280.881
Frofessional fees 5606 345 G.685.172
Rent and related expenses 1,080,623 1,687,207
Sarvice contracts 5.660.TES 5.730.620
Service fee 3,840,648 3.840.850
System cost 5.135.430 15.057.271
Telecommunication expenses 586 052 5259035
Travellng, moving, business tnps 202 482 122970
Other expenses 05 4508 179.736
35,084,620 41.185. 758
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5.A

HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -
HOTE 28 - TAX
281. T n profit on ordi v it
2023 2022
usD UsD
Corporate Income Tax 24,353,057 15.407 163
Municipal Business Tax 5.055.130 5641267
33.421.187 21.048 480
282 her not sh f the pr i
2023 2022
usD usp
VAT 1.641.509 1.905.888
Cther taxes 71,853 75855
1.713.382 1981, 753

NOTE 29 - PARENT UNDERTAKING

Since December 31, 2020, the Bank is a jointly capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi LIFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation by 100 %, which are under the holding company Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG), which is
incarporated under the laws of Japan and whose regestened office 15 in Tokya

The anneal accounts of the Bank are meluded m the consalidated accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation, with Registered Financial Institution number 33 at Kanio Local Finance Bureau Japan and

registened address 4-5, Marunouchi 1-Chorme, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100-8212, Japan

The consaldated accounts of the halding company Mitsubishi LFJ Financial Group (MUFG) may be obtained
from the head office at 7-1, Manunouchi 2-Chome, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100, Japan.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOLURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

NOTE 30 - DEPOSIT GUARANTEE SCHEME

The law related to the resolution, recrganisation and winding-up measures of credit institutions and certain
investment firms and on deposit guarantee and investor compensation schemes (the “Law’), ransposing into
Luxembourgish law the directive 201 4IS3EU establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit
institutions and investment firms and the directive 2014/45/EL related to deposit guarantese and investor
compensation schemes, was passed on December 18, 2015

The depasit guarantee scheme ("Fonds de garantie des dépdds Luxembourg” (FGOL)) and the investor
compensation system ("Sypstéme dindemmnisation das inveshizsews Luxembowrg” (SIIL)) cover eligible
deposits of each depositor up to an amount of ELIR 100.000 and investments up to an amount of EUR 20.000.
The Law also provides that deposits resulting from specific transactions or fulfilling a specific social or other
purpose are covered for an amount above EUR 100000 for a peried of 12 months.

Cradit insttutions contribute on an annual basis to the Luxembaurng banking resoluton fund ("Fands de
resclution Luxembourg” (FRL)), respectively to the FGDL.

The funded amount af the FRL shall reach by the end of 2024 at least 1% of covered deposits, as defined in
article 107(1) of the Law, of all authorized credit institutions in all participating Member States. This amount will
be collected during the years 2015 to 2024,

The target level of funding of the FGDL s set at 0,8% of covered deposits, as defined in article 170(1) of the
Law, of the relevant credit institutions and is to be reached by the end of 2018 through annual contributions.
This amaount will be callected during the vears 2016 to 2018, When the level of 0,8% is reached, the
Luxembourgish credit instituhons are to continue to contribute for 8 addibonal years n order to constitute an
additional safety buffer of 0.8% of covered deposits as defined in aricle 180(1) of the Law:

For the year end December 31, 2023, the Bank's annual contribution for FRL amounted to EUR 5.327 640

(U0 5.716.313), (2022 EUR 4115522 / USD 4,241.878),

.57
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MITSUBISHI UF.J INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2022
- contmued -

NOTE 31 - AUDIT FEES

Within the framework of the EL) audit legislation and the mandatory audit firm rotation, the Bank has appointed

BDO Audit 5.4, starting from the fiscal year 2020,

The fees of the Auditar of the Bank are as follows (excluding VAT)

2023 2022

usD uso

Audit fees 250.097 241,485
Audit related fees 74,485 7. 237
Tax fees 30.055 26.691
554 638 335413

The other audit related fees provided of the Auditor included the following Service:

- |SAE 3402 Report for the period frarm January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023,

The tax fees in relation to the financial year included the following services:

« Preparation of tax returns;

- Preparabion of VAT returns;
- Assessment of CESOP reporting
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decermber 31, 2023- continued -

WOTE 32 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT DISCLOSURES

321, Erimary non-trading financial instrumments
As at December 31, 2023, the analysis of primary non-trading financial instruments [the Bank has no trading portfolio) by dass and residual maturty & the followang:

< 3 months = 3 months =1 year = §years Total
£1 year £ Syears
At carrying amount in USD UsD UsD UsD USD UsD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Balances with the BCL (including BCL reserve) 2535 183,869 0 i i 2535193 869
Loans and advances to credit institutions 2.302.083.277 1414 630,785 4] o IH16. 724062
Loans and advances to customers 7905238 0 0 0 7.805.238
Shares and other vanable yield securities 0 a i} 2738 2738
Other Assets o a Q o o
Total Financial Assats 5,145,192 384 1.414 630,785 [1] 2738 &, 580 8§25 907
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Amounts oweed 1o credit institutions 2072468179 Q Q o 2072486179
Amounts owed to customers, 3815550822 0 i i 3815550822
Total Financial Liabilities 5.888.017.004 [1] [1] [1] 5.888.017.001
Of-balance sheel ilems disclased as contingencias
Guarantees B8, 703 a u] i BA.T703
Total Guarantees BB.703 a 1] 1] B8.703
.85

289/351



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO00DO00o0oO00b0o00DOoOn(ELsL74)
OOooooooooooooooooOo

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE AGCOUNTS
Decernber 31, 2023 continued -

WOTE 32 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT DISCLOSURES

321, Erimary non-trading financial instrurments
As at December 31, 2022, the analysis of primary non-trading fnancial instruments (the Bank has no rading portfolio) by class and residual maturty is the followang:

£ 3 manths >3 months =1 year > § years Total
51 year = Syears
At carrying amount in USD UsD UsD UsD USD UsD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Balances with the BCL (including BCL reserve) 38250986158 0 Qo o 3825 586 159
Loans and advances to credit institutions 2547 074208 1.337 522125 0 o 4 284 506 331
Loans and advances to custormers 41,005 068 0 0 o 41.005.003
Shares and other vanable yield securities 0 0 0 2646 2646
Other Assets o 0 u i
Total Financial Assats 6.814,156.363 1.33T 522 125 [1] 2,646 8.151.681.134
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Amounts oweed o credit insttubions 2.865,.200.741 0 o o 2685200741
Amounts oved to customerns. 4 852 402519 a 4] o 4 852 402515
Total Financial Liabilities T.54T 603,260 [1] [] [1] T.517.603.260
Off-balance shee! items disclosed as contingencies
Guaranteeas 75775 a u i 75775
Total Guarantees T5.775 a [1] 1] 75775
. 40.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decernber 31, 2023 continued -

322 i nontrading fin instrurmen

As at December 31, 2023, the analysis of OTC denvatve non-trading financial instruments (the Bank has no trading portfolio) by class and residual maturity is the following:

£ 3 months > 3 months >1year > 5years Tatal Fair value
£ 1 year £ 5 years

At notional payable amount in USD uso UsD usD uso uso Uso
FIMAMCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Foreign exchange fransachions
Foreards 1.732.480.231 0 4] 4] 1.732.480.231 12.817.030
Swaps. 1.588 457 158 0 1] 4] 1.588 457 158 516148
Total 3.321.917.389 0 o o 3.371.917.389 16.333.179
FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Foreign exchange ransaclions
Foremards 1.738.235.564 o a o 1.738.235.564 12.798.135
Swaps 1.253.785.427 o Q o 1.253.765 427 27.860.780
Total 2.992,000.991 ] o o 2.992.000.991 40.658.895

These amaunts include OTC dervative non-trading financial nstruments with a trade date before December 31, 2023 and a value date after December 37, 2023

T
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decernber 31, 2023 continued -

As at Decernber 31, 2022, the analysis of OTC denvative non-trading financial instrurents (the Bank has no frading portfolio) by class and residual raturty i the following

£ 3 months = 3 menths =1 year = 5 years Tatal Fair value
£ 1 year £ 5§ years

At notional payable amount in USD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Foreign exchange fransachions
Foreards 1.856.365.978 B02.914 a 4] 1.850. 566 802 5B6.671.005
Swaps. 276202 BB 0 Q 0 276, 202684 1.4600089
Total 2.175.568.662 B02.914 o 0 2.1TE1T1.576 60.131.084
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Foreign exchange transachions
Forwards 1.951.148.778 583.601 a ] 1.951.733.379 58,650,622
Swaps. 3420 880574 o 4] [1] 3420680874 B0.871.843
Total 5.380.810.752 583,601 0 o 5.361.354.353 135.522.468

These amounts include OTC dersative nonstrading financial instruments with a trade date before December 31, 2022 and a value date after December 31, 2022

.42.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

323 Infiormation on credit risk on primary non-trading financial instruments

As at December 31, 2023 the Bank is exposed to the following credit risk on primary non-trading financial

Instruments:
2023 2022
Carrying amount Carrying amount
inUsD In USD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Cash, balances with the BCL 2.935.1593.869 3825586 159
Of which BCL minimium réserve SB.TELN4 B9 447 866
EU meamber countries 2835103 869 3825986 159
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3.616.724.062 4,284 596.331
EU member couniries 335 748 200 276865 118
MNarth & Ceniral America 53432726 650 260 269
Asia 3041 245 689 2.933.830.603
Eurape, non-EU member counltries 172124 852 374.268.608
Ausgtralia and New Zealand 14172 405 39333735
Loans and advances to customers T.905.238 41,055,998
EU mevnber countries 10.844 26460119
Maorth & Ceniral America 7894383 9.368.347
Asra 11 5267 532
Eurape, non-EU member countries a a
Shares and other variable yield securities 2.738 2646
EU mwrber couniries 2738 2646
Other Assets 6530 534
EU mgmber couniries 690 534
Total 6.559.826.597 B8.151.681.668

-43-
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A,

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continuad -
324, |Inf ion rivative non-trading financial i

As at December 31, 2023, the Bank is exposed to the follewding credit risk on dervatives non-trading financial
instruments:

2023 2023
Metienalipayable Risk equivakent
amount amount
inUsD in UsSD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EU mamber couniries 3.386.202 06,936
Amevica §1.465.147 1.102.918
Asgia 264 357 581 3211972
Europe, non-EU mamber counines 1.383.251.211 8.405.204
Swaps
Europe, non-EU member coundries 1.580 457 158 3516 149
Total 3.321.917.389 16.333.1739

_44.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Decernber 31, 2023

- continuad -

As at December 31, 2022, the Bank is exposed to the follewing credit risk on derivatives non-trading financial

instruments:

FIMANCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location

Foreign exchange transactions

Forwards
EU mermber counines
America
Asia
Europe. non-ELf member counlries

Swaps
EU member counires

Total

MOTE 33 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

2022

Netienalipayatile

2176.171.576

Amount
inUsD

46212155
1432248397
210.566.686

1.490.941.654

276,202 684

2022
Risk equivalent
amount

inUsD

253 378
2129578
3.156.846

53.131.205

1.460.089

60,131,094

The Bank is not awane of any adjusting or non-adjusting event that would have occurred bebween

Decemiber 31, 2023 and the date when the present annual accounts were authonsed for issue.

MOTE 34 - CONTINGENCIES

As it may ocour in the normal course of business, the Bank is cccasionally subject to certain claims. The outcome

of Iitigations is mtrinsically uncertain. The likelirood of any material claim being found in favour of a claimant for the

Itigation currently in process is viewed as remote by the Management, accardingly, ne related provisions are made

in these annual accounts, Should a reliable evaluation of a past event be possible, the respective provision will be

rmarde.

L 45.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2023
- continued -

MOTE 35 - PFILLAR TWO
Pillar Two legislation has been enacted or substantively enacted in jurisdictions the Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group
{“thie Group”) operates, inclueding Luxembaurg, The Group B in scope of the enacted legislation. However, the
legislation was enacted close to the reporting date. Therefare, the Group, and the Company, are still in the process
of assessing the potential impact and exposures ta Pillar Two income taxes.
The Company 5 subject to the general tax regulations applicable to commercial companies in Luxembourg.

MOTE 36 - RETURMN OM ASSETS ("ROA™)
The Bank's return on assets is as follows:

2023 2022
usD usD
Total assets G.838.031.283 B211.118.424
Profit of the financial year 97 882738 62005340
Return on Assets 1.47% 0,77%
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UFJ S.A.
2024 30
010 4,478,297,929.37 691,583,549
020
030 2,851,039,967.06 440,286,102
040 1,627,257,962.31 251,297,447
050 42,284,567.44 6,530,006
060 42,284,567.44 6,530,006
070
080
090
096
097
098
099
100
120
130
141 2,656.80 410
142 2,656.80 410
143
144
181 2,148,527,982.75 331,797,176
182
183 2,148,527,982.75 331,797,176
240
250
260
270 444,289.56 68,612
280 444,289.56 68,612
290
300 2,701,880.07 417,251
310
320 2,701,880.07 417,251
330 153,721.56 23,739
340 14,721.56 2,273
350 139,000.00 21,466
360 25,100,198.81 3,876,224
370
380 6,697,513,226.36 1,034,296,968
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UFJ S.A.

2024 30

010 34,588,124.08 5,341,444

020 34,588,124.08 5,341,444

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

100

110 5,898,065,702.33 910,838,286

120 5,897,996,468.51 910,827,595

130

140 69,233.82 10,692

150

160

170

180

190

200

210

220

230

240 36,008,463.59 5,560,787

250 36,008,463.59 5,560,787

260

270

280 23,782,497.92 3,672,731

290

300 5,992,444,787.92 925,413,249
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UFJ S.A.

2024 30

010 187,117,965.90 28,896,627

020 187,117,965.90 28,896,627

030

040

050

060

070

080

090 0.00 0

095

100

110

120

122

124

320

330

340

350

360

128

130

140

150

155

165

170

180

190 645,381.57 99,666

200

210 463,212,940.12 71,533,974

220

230 463,212,940.12 71,533,974

240

250 54,092,150.85 8,353,451
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260

270

280

290

300 705,068,438.44 108,883,719

310 6,697,513,226.36 1,034,296,968
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UFJ S.A.

2024 30

010 162,081,876.28 25,030,304

020 18,337,025.24 2,831,787

025

030

041

051 134,203,758.00 20,725,086

070

080 9,357,344.72 1,445,055

085 183,748.32 28,376

090 104,491,741.72 16,136,660

100 1,933,620.73 298,609

110

120 102,396,749.51 15,813,130

130

140 18,361.33 2,836

145 143,010.15 22,085

150

160

170

175

191

192

200 59,886,669.57 9,248,298

210 17,141,913.35 2,647,226

220

231

241

260

270

280 1,006,164.82 155,382

287

290

300

310

320

330

340 3,323,301.92 513,218
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350 3,109,692.45 480,230

355 101,554,665.07 15,683,087

360 28,044,490.20 4,330,911

370 12,952,665.99 2,000,280

380 15,091,824.21 2,330,630

385 ( ) 2,679.38 414

390 1,110,206.72 171,449

400 541,318.33 83,596

410

420 568,888.39 87,853

425

426

427

430

435 (

440

450

460 16,994.62 2,624

481

491 16,994.62 2,624

510

520

530

540

550

560

570

580

590

600

610 72,380,294.15 11,177,689

620 18,288,143.30 2,824,238

630 54,092,150.85 8,353,451

640

650

660

670 54,092,150.85 8,353,451

680

690 54,092,150.85 8,353,451
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UFJ S.A.

2024 30

0010 54,092,150.85 8,353,451

0020
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0085

0086

0090

0100

0110

0120
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0140
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0160
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0180
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0200

0210
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0320
0330
0340 54,092,150.85 8,353,451
0350
0360 54,092,150.85 8,353,451
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@ Brown
Brothers Harriman Trust Company Cayman Limited

(

2024 12 200 886
(

1985

(2 MUFG S.A. MUFG Lux Management Company S.A.
(

2025 7,375,000 11 8,266

2025 31
160.36
(
MUFG
S.A.
2011 2011 61

€] Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(

2024 12 10 6,000 1,636 9,580
(
(4 Goldman Sachs Asset

Management International

(

2023 12 100 154 4,300
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@ Goldman Sachs Asset
Management L.P.

(

2023 12 151 233 1,893
(

1940
(6
Goldman Sachs Asset Management (Singapore) Pte.Ltd.

(

2023 12 14 21 6,202
(
¢ Goldman Sachs Asset Management

Co., Ltd.

(

2024 12 9,000
(

1996 23
2002 18
29 2007 30
2008 28

(8
(

2025 405
(
€
(

2024 13,195
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@

(2 MUFG S.A. MUFG Lux Management Company S.A.

G

4

@ Goldman Sachs Asset Management
L.P.

(6
Goldman Sachs Asset Management (Singapore) Pte.Ltd.

7

C

@

MUFG S.A. 100
UFJ S.A. MUFG S.A.

309/351



1.1 1993
1.2
1.3
(a 1993
(b 2020
1.4
1.5 2022 12
1.6
2.1

2.2

12,995 3,224

310/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1960

2020

2020
2020



2.3

2.4

(a

(o

(a

¢

(c

2.5 2020

2.6

3.1

3.2

15

311/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

3.3 ®3)
©)
a M »
( 100,000 80,000
'
3.4
2020
(©)
€))
15
€))
80,000 100,000
4.1
21
4.2

(a

312/351



4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

o

(c

(]
(e

3.2

2006 12 27

21

313/351

EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )

48

Ooooooooooooooooooad

10



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

5.5

(o

(c

(¢
(e ) )

5.6
5.7
5.8 24,390
30,488
8,536 36,585

42,682
8,536

6.1
(a

(b

(c

314/351



6.2

(d

(f
(g

(h
(i

(K

a

(m

(n

(a

(o

(c

«

30

315/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1925



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(f

(g 50

(h 150
G

6.3
(a

(o

1907

(c

«

(e

(f

316/351



6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

(9

(h

(K

(a

(b

(c

¢

(e

50

2016

50

317/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

500

7.3

7.4 7.3 10

7.5 7.3

10
7.6

7.7 7.9

(a
(b

(c

«

(e
(f

7.8 7.7

(a
(b
(c
(!

7.9 7.7
(a M ®) ®
* ()

(b
(c

«
(e

318/351



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7.10 7.9

7.11

7.12  7.9(d) 7.9(e)

7.13  7.9(e)

7.14 7.13
7.15 7.9(d) 7.9(e)
(a

(b

(c

7.16  7.9(d) 7.9(e) 7.15

7.17 7.15

(a
(b 94(4)

(c

«

(e 7.9(d) 7.9(e)

7.18 7.17
7.9

7.19 7.9(a)

7.20 7.17(c)

7.21

M) ©))
* (@

319/351



8.9

(a
(b

¢

(c

«

(e

(f
(9

(h

(a

8.3

8.3

8.8

8.1

500

10

320/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

8.10



(b
(c

(d
8.10

(a
(b

«
(e
8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

8.15

(a

'

(c
8.16

(a

(b

8.17

(a
(b

(c

8.8

8.10

8.10(d)

8.10(e)

8.13

8.10(d)

(b)

8.10(d)
8.15

8.10(e)

8.10(e)

8.10(e)

8.15

8.10(d) 8.10(e)

321/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

94(4)



8.18

8.19

8.20

8.21

9.5

(a

(b

(a
(b
(c
(d

(e

8.10

9.1(a)

8.16

9.1(d)

9.1(a)

322/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

9.1(d)



9.6

10

10.1

11

11.1

11.2

11.3

(a
(b
(c
(a

(b
(c

(¢

(f

(g

(h
(i

20

323/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(a 14(1)

14(2)

o

11.4
(a

(b

«

(e

11.5

(a

¢

11.6

12

12.1 257

12.2 247 248

324/351



13

13.

13.

13.

13.

13.

14

14.

o

(c

10

6.4(e)

7.17(d)

2003 11 17

2008

7.17(b)

325/351

EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

8.17(b)

6.1(1)

7.17(c)

6-2(9)

D@

6.3(i)



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6 20

14.7
(a 13.1

¢

(c

326/351



(d

14.8

(a

o

(c

«

14.9
(a

(b

21

327/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@@



(¢

(e

(f

(g

(A

(B

15

10

(

)

(

)

21 (6)

50

328/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

21 (4)
12
50
21 (5)
21 (4) 21 (5)



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(h

14.10
(a

(o

(c 26

14.11

(a

¢

(c

(¢

14.12
(a €)) ©)

o 37

x ) (x ) xx )

329/351



XX

XX

XX

XX

(A

¢

(A

¢
(

330/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 29 11
2024 28 12

331/351



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30

12 24

332/351



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

1992

333/351



(®

334/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UFJ S.A.

21



(

)

(

)

(1)1933

(

()

)

501(a)

4.7

()

)

335/351

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)
)

CH»

)



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)
GDIGD)

() ) (

183 ( (

(b (

336/351



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 2023 30

2024 2023 30

337/351



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

guarantee

338/351



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 12 19

339/351



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditor's report

To Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, solely in its capacity as
trustee of GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund, a sub-trust of MUGC GS Cayman
Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of GS Emerging Markets High Yield
Bond Fund (the “Sub-Trust”), a sub-trust of MUGC GS Cayman Fund, which comprise the
statements of financial position, including the schedules of investments, as of 30 September 2024
and 2023, and the related statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating units and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of GS Emerging Markets High Yield Bond Fund as of 30 September 2024 and
2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAS).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Sub-
Trust, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits, which include relevant ethical requirements in the United
States of America and the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Sub-Trust's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless management either intends to liquidate
the Sub-Trust or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
GAAS and ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are
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considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and ISAs, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Trust's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as

well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Sub-Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Appendix | - Advisory Fee Rates and Total Net Expense Ratios (Unaudited) (but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Sub-Trust in accordance
with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this
opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands

19 December 2024
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EU No.537/2014 2016 23 2016 23
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REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

To the Board of Directors,

Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A.
287-289, Route d"Arlon

L-1150 Luxembourg

Report on the audit of the annual accounts
Opinion

We have audited the annual accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg)
S.A. (the ““Bank”?), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2023, and the profit and
loss account for the year then ended, and notes to the annual accounts, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2023, and of the results of its operations for the year
then ended in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the
preparation and presentation of the annual accounts.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of 23 July 2016
on the audit profession (““Law of 23 July 2016””) and with International Standards on Auditing
(““I1SAs””) as adopted for Luxembourg by the ““Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier””
(““CSSF>?). Our responsibilities under the EU Regulation No 537/2014 , the law of 23 July 2016
and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the « Responsibilities of
the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” for the audit of the annual accounts» section of our report.
We are also independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by
the CSSF together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the annual
accounts, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the annual accounts of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of the audit of the annual accounts as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition - Commission receivable

Why the matter was considered to be
one of most significant in the audit

How the matter was addressed in the audit

We refer to Summary of significant
accounting policies - Note 2.13 -
Revenue Recognition and Note 22 on
Commission Receivable of the annual
accounts.

Commission receivable amounted to USD
120,905,992 as of 31 December 2023.
Commissions receivable mainly derive
from investment funds and global
custody operations.

The applicable rates per each type of
commission depend on the underlying
assets under custody and
administration, agreements and
services provided.

The recognition process of commission
receivable includes manual
intervention and it is considered to
be a key audit matter due to the
materiality of the related amounts,
combined with the volume of
transactions that are recorded.

Our audit focused on the following
procedures:

We held interviews with Finance and Billing
department and obtained an understanding of
the commission receivable recognition
process.

We assessed the design and implementation of

the internal controls surrounding commission

receivable and tested operating effectiveness
of the relevant related key controls.

We developed expectations for the aggregate
amounts per type of commission income and we
compared the expectations to the amounts
recorded by the Bank.

For a sample of the different types of
commissions:

We tested commission receivable by
performing independent recalculation of
the commissions for a sample of items.
This also included the reconciliation of
the fee terms to the underlying contracts
and the underlying basis to external
evidence;
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We agreed the receipt of accrued
commissions to payments subsequent year
end;

We included elements of
““unpredictability”” in the procedures
performed in response to the risk of
fraud by randomly selecting additional
items and by verifying appropriate
segregation of duties, as well as the
application of the ““4 eyes principle””,
within the fee and commission income
process.

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information stated in the management report but does not include the annual accounts and our
report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” thereon.

Our opinion on the annual accounts does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the annual accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the annual accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual
accounts in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the
preparation and presentation of the annual accounts, and for such internal control as the Board
of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing Bank"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

Responsibilities of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” for the audit of the annual accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual accounts as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the
““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the EU Regulation
N° 537/2014, the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual
accounts.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law dated 23 July 2016
and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” to
the related disclosures in the annual accounts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé””. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual accounts, including
the disclosures, and whether the annual accounts represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate to them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audit report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have been appointed as ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” by the Board of Directors on 14 March
2023 and the duration of our uninterrupted engagement, including previous renewals and
reappointments, is 4 years.

The management report is consistent with the annual accounts and has been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

We confirm that the prohibited non-audit services referred to in the EU Regulation N° 537/2014
were not provided and that we remained independent of the Bank in conducting the audit.
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Luxembourg, 15 March 2024

BDO Audit
Cabinet de révision agréé
represented by

Patrick Terazzi
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